



State of Wisconsin  
2025 - 2026 LEGISLATURE

LRBb0732/1

ALL:all

**ASSEMBLY AMENDMENT 15,  
TO ASSEMBLY SUBSTITUTE AMENDMENT 2,  
TO ASSEMBLY BILL 50**

July 2, 2025 - Offered by Representatives EMERSON, ANDERSON, ANDRACA, ARNEY, BARE, BILLINGS, BROWN, CRUZ, DESANTO, DESMIDT, DOYLE, FITZGERALD, GOODWIN, HAYWOOD, HONG, HYSELL, J. JACOBSON, JOERS, JOHNSON, KIRSCH, MADISON, MAYADEV, MCCARVILLE, MCGUIRE, MIRESE, MOORE OMOKUNDE, NEUBAUER, PALMERI, PHELPS, PRADO, RIVERA-WAGNER, ROE, SHEEHAN, SINICKI, SNODGRASS, SPAUDE, STROUD, STUBBS, SUBECK, TAYLOR, TENORIO, UDELL and VINING.

\*\*\*AUTHORS SUBJECT TO CHANGE\*\*\*

1 At the locations indicated, amend the substitute amendment as follows:

2 **1.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

3 “**SECTION 1.** 15.145 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 **15.145 (title) Same; attached boards, commissions, ~~and~~ councils, and**  
5 **offices.**

6 **SECTION 2.** 15.145 (7) of the statutes is created to read:

7 15.145 (7) OFFICE OF THE OMBUDSPERSON FOR CORRECTIONS. There is created  
8 an office of the ombudsperson for corrections, attached to the department of  
9 corrections under s. 15.03. The office shall be under the direction and supervision  
10 of an ombudsperson who shall be nominated by the governor, with the advice and

consent of three-fourths of members elected to the senate appointed, and may be removed only by the governor for just cause.

**SECTION 3.** 20.005 (3) (schedule) of the statutes: at the appropriate place, insert the following amounts for the purposes indicated:

**2025-26                      2026-27**

**20.410 Corrections, department of**

(4) OFFICE OF THE OMBUDSPERSON FOR  
CORRECTIONS

(a)	General program operations	GPR	A	901,300	1,201,700
(i)	Gifts and grants	PR	C	-0-	-0-
(k)	Interagency and intra-agency				
	assistance	PR-S	C	-0-	-0-
(m)	Federal aid	PR-F	C	-0-	-0-

**SECTION 4.** 20.410 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

20.410 (4) OFFICE OF THE OMBUDSPERSON FOR CORRECTIONS. (a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for the general program operations of the office of the ombudsperson for corrections.

(i) *Gifts and grants.* All moneys received from gifts and grants to carry out the purposes for which made.

(k) *Interagency and intra-agency assistance.* All moneys received from the department or any other state agency to carry out the purposes for which received.

(m) *Federal aid.* All moneys received as federal aid as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54 to carry out the purposes for which received.

1           **SECTION 5.** 20.923 (6) (bn) of the statutes is created to read:

2           20.923 **(6)** (bn) Corrections, department of: ombudsperson of the office of the  
3           ombudsperson for corrections.

4           **SECTION 6.** 230.08 (2) (ym) of the statutes is created to read:

5           230.08 **(2)** (ym) The ombudsperson of the office of the ombudsperson for  
6           corrections.

7           **SECTION 7.** 301.55 of the statutes is created to read:

8           **301.55 Office of the ombudsperson for corrections. (1) DEFINITIONS.**

9           In this section:

10          (a) “Office” means the office of the ombudsperson for corrections.

11          (b) “Ombudsperson” means the ombudsperson of the office.

12          **(2) STAFF.** The ombudsperson may appoint, in the classified service, one  
13          deputy ombudsperson of the office, and employees for the office to complete the  
14          ombudsperson’s duties described under this section. The ombudsperson may  
15          delegate to the deputy ombudsperson or other employees of the office any of the  
16          ombudsperson’s authority or duties except those described under subs. (5) (b) and  
17          (7) (b).

18          **(3) POWERS.** The ombudsperson may do all of the following:

19          (a) Investigate, upon a complaint or upon personal initiative, any matter  
20          described under sub. (4).

21          (b) Determine the scope and manner of investigations to be made.

22          (c) Enter and inspect, at any time, premises within the control of the  
23          department.

24          (d) Examine records and documents in the possession of the department,

1 including corrections and detention data and medical data maintained by the  
2 department and classified as private or confidential data on individuals when  
3 access to the data is necessary for the ombudsperson to perform the powers  
4 authorized under this subsection.

5 (e) Subpoena witnesses and the production of books, papers, records, and  
6 documents material to an investigation conducted by the office.

7 (f) Attend any proceedings and deliberations relating to the granting or  
8 revocation of parole, extended supervision, or probation.

9 **(4) INVESTIGATIONS.** The ombudsperson may investigate any of the following:

10 (a) Complaints regarding state correctional institutions and abuse, unfair  
11 acts, and violations of rights of prisoners and juveniles.

12 (b) The policies or practices of the department.

13 (c) Any action by the department that may be contrary to law or rule.

14 (d) Any other action by the department that has been alleged to be  
15 unreasonable, unfair, oppressive, or inconsistent with any policy or judgment of the  
16 department.

17 (e) Procedures and practices that may lessen the risk that objectionable  
18 actions by the department may occur in the future.

19 **(5) COMPLAINTS.** (a) The ombudsperson shall create a complaint form and  
20 provide sufficient blank copies of the form and self-sealing envelopes to state  
21 correctional institutions for distribution to prisoners and juveniles. Blank copies of  
22 the form and self-sealing envelopes shall be placed in locations where prisoners and  
23 juveniles regularly visit, such as a common area or library, and shall be provided

1 upon request to a prisoner or juvenile. The department shall also make the form  
2 available on its website.

3 (b) An operator of a state correctional institution shall immediately forward a  
4 complaint form described under par. (a) that has been completed by a prisoner or  
5 juvenile to the office. No individual other than an authorized employee of the office  
6 may open an envelope that contains a complaint form.

7 (c) The ombudsperson shall review each complaint form received under par.  
8 (b) and determine whether to make a recommendation regarding the complaint  
9 directly to the state correctional institution where the prisoner or juvenile is  
10 housed, the governor, the legislature, or other party, or make no recommendation.

11 (d) No operator of a state correctional institution may open and preview or  
12 screen mail addressed from the office to a prisoner or juvenile residing at the state  
13 correctional institution unless the operator has reason to believe that the mail  
14 contains contraband or is not a document from the office. If the operator has reason  
15 to believe that the mail contains contraband or is not a document from the office,  
16 the operator may open and inspect the mail in the presence of the prisoner or  
17 juvenile to whom it was addressed, but may inspect the document only to the extent  
18 necessary to determine whether it contains contraband or is not a document from  
19 the office. The operator may read the mail only if, after inspection, the operator has  
20 reason to believe it not a document from the office.

21 **(6) DISCLOSURES.** Information in the possession of the office that relates to a  
22 client, complaint, or investigation of the office may be disclosed only at the  
23 discretion of the ombudsperson or his or her designated representative. A  
24 disclosure of information under this subsection relating to a client, named witness,

1 or a prisoner or juvenile who is not a client may be made only if one of the following  
2 applies:

3 (a) The disclosure is authorized in writing by the client, named witness,  
4 prisoner, or juvenile or his or her legal guardian, if applicable.

5 (b) The disclosure is made pursuant to a lawful order of a court of competent  
6 jurisdiction.

7 **(7) REPORTS.** (a) If the ombudsperson determines to make a recommendation  
8 under sub. (5) (c) directly to the state correctional institution where the prisoner or  
9 juvenile is housed, the warden or superintendent of the state correctional  
10 institution shall respond within 30 days. The warden or superintendent shall  
11 include in the response what actions the warden or superintendent is taking as a  
12 result of the recommendations of the ombudsperson and why the warden or  
13 superintendent is taking those actions or not taking actions.

14 (b) If the ombudsperson has reason to believe that any public official or  
15 employee has acted in a manner warranting criminal or disciplinary proceedings,  
16 the ombudsperson may refer the matter to the appropriate authorities.

17 (c) The ombudsperson shall, at the request of the governor at any time, report  
18 to the governor on any matter over which the ombudsperson has authority.

19 (d) On or before December 31 of each year, the ombudsperson shall submit to  
20 the governor, the chief clerk of each house of the legislature for distribution to the  
21 legislature under s. 13.172 (2), and the secretary of corrections a report of the  
22 ombudsperson's findings and recommendations for improvements to policies and  
23 practices at state correctional institutions and the results of the ombudsperson's  
24 investigations conducted under sub. (4).

1           **SECTION 9108. Nonstatutory provisions; Corrections.**

2           (1) POSITION AUTHORITY FOR THE OFFICE OF THE OMBUDSPERSON FOR  
3           CORRECTIONS. On the effective date of this subsection, the authorized FTE  
4           positions for the department of corrections are increased by 11.0 GPR positions, to  
5           be funded from the appropriation under s. 20.410 (4) (a), to provide one  
6           ombudsperson for corrections and 10 program and policy chief positions for the  
7           office of the ombudsperson for corrections.”.

8           **2.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

9           “**SECTION 8.** 100.2091 of the statutes is created to read:

10           **100.2091 Broadband; discrimination prohibited.** (1) No broadband  
11           service provider may deny access to broadband service to any group of potential  
12           residential customers because of the race or income of the residents in the area in  
13           which the group resides.

14           (2) It is a defense to an alleged violation of sub. (1) based on income if, no later  
15           than 3 years after the date on which the broadband service provider began  
16           providing broadband service in this state, at least 30 percent of the households with  
17           access to the broadband service provider’s broadband service in the area in which a  
18           group of potential residential customers resides are low-income households.

19           (3) The department may enforce this section and may promulgate rules to  
20           implement and administer this section, including rules that define low-income  
21           households, and to align department rules with federal communications  
22           commission broadband rules. The department of justice may represent the  
23           department in an action to enforce this section. If the court finds that a broadband

1 service provider has not complied with this section, the court shall order the  
2 broadband service provider to comply with this section within a reasonable amount  
3 of time and, notwithstanding s. 814.14 (1), shall award costs, including reasonable  
4 attorney fees, to the department of justice.

5 (4) Any person that is affected by a failure to comply with this section may  
6 bring an action to enforce this section. If a court finds that a broadband service  
7 provider has not complied with this section, the court shall order the broadband  
8 service provider to comply with this section within a reasonable amount of time  
9 and, notwithstanding s. 814.14 (1), shall award costs, including reasonable attorney  
10 fees, to the person affected.

11 **SECTION 9.** 100.2092 of the statutes is created to read:

12 **100.2092 Broadband service subscriber rights. (1) RIGHTS. (a)** A  
13 broadband service provider shall repair broadband service within 72 hours after a  
14 subscriber reports a service interruption or requests the repair if the service  
15 interruption is not the result of a major system-wide or large area emergency, such  
16 as a natural disaster.

17 (b) Upon notification by a subscriber of a service interruption, a broadband  
18 service provider shall give the subscriber a credit for one day of broadband service  
19 if broadband service is interrupted for more than 4 hours in one day and the  
20 interruption is caused by the broadband service provider.

21 (c) Upon notification by a subscriber of a service interruption, a broadband  
22 service provider shall give the subscriber a credit for each hour that broadband



1 service is interrupted if broadband service is interrupted for more than 4 hours in  
2 one day and the interruption is not caused by the broadband service provider.

3 (d) Prior to entering into a service agreement with a subscriber, a broadband  
4 service provider shall disclose that a subscriber has a right to a credit for notifying  
5 the broadband service provider of a service interruption.

6 (e) A broadband service provider shall provide broadband service that  
7 satisfies minimum standards established by the department by rule.

8 (f) A broadband service provider shall give a subscriber at least 30 days'  
9 advance written notice before instituting a rate increase.

10 (g) A broadband service provider shall give a subscriber at least 7 days'  
11 advance written notice of any scheduled routine maintenance that causes a service  
12 slowdown, interruption, or outage.

13 (h) A broadband service provider shall give a subscriber at least 10 days'  
14 advance written notice of disconnecting service, unless the disconnection is  
15 requested by the subscriber.

16 (i) Prior to entering into a service agreement with a subscriber, a broadband  
17 service provider shall disclose the factors that may cause the actual broadband  
18 speed experience to vary, including the number of users and device limitations.

19 (j) A broadband service provider shall provide broadband service to a  
20 subscriber as described in point-of-sale advertisements and representations made  
21 to the subscriber.

22 (k) A broadband service provider shall give a subscriber at least 10 days'

1 advance written notice of a change in a factor that may cause the originally  
2 disclosed broadband speed experience to vary.

3 (L) A broadband service provider shall allow a subscriber to terminate a  
4 contract and receive a full refund without fees if the provider sells a service that  
5 does not satisfy the requirements established under par. (e) and the broadband  
6 service provider does not satisfy the requirements established under par. (e) within  
7 one month of written notification from the subscriber.

8 (2) ADVERTISING. A broadband service provider shall disclose the factors that  
9 may cause the actual broadband speed experience of a subscriber to vary, including  
10 the number of users and device limitations, in each advertisement of the speed of  
11 the provider's service, including in all of the following types of advertisements:

12 (a) Television and other commercials.

13 (b) Internet and email advertisements.

14 (c) Print advertisements and bill inserts.

15 (d) Any other advertising method or solicitation for the sale of new or  
16 upgraded broadband service.

17 (3) RULES. The department may promulgate rules to implement and  
18 administer this section, including rules to align department rules with federal  
19 communications commission broadband rules.

20 (4) PENALTY; ENFORCEMENT. (a) A person who violates this section may be  
21 required to forfeit not more than \$1,000 for each violation and not more than  
22 \$10,000 for each occurrence. Failure to give a notice required under sub. (1) (f) to  
23 more than one subscriber shall be considered one violation.

1 (b) The department or a district attorney may institute civil proceedings  
2 under this section.

3 **SECTION 10.** 165.25 (4) (ar) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 165.25 (4) (ar) The department of justice shall furnish all legal services  
5 required by the department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection relating  
6 to the enforcement of ss. 91.68, 93.73, 100.171, 100.173, 100.174, 100.175, 100.177,  
7 100.18, 100.182, 100.195, 100.20, 100.205, 100.207, 100.209, 100.2091, 100.2092,  
8 100.21, 100.28, 100.37, 100.42, 100.50, 100.51, 100.55, and 846.45 and chs. 126,  
9 136, 344, 704, 707, and 779, together with any other services as are necessarily  
10 connected to the legal services.

11 **SECTION 11.** 196.5048 of the statutes is created to read:

12 **196.5048 Internet service provider registration.** No person may provide  
13 Internet service in this state unless the person registers with the commission.

14 **SECTION 9302. Initial applicability; Agriculture, Trade and Consumer**  
15 **Protection.**

16 (1) SUBSCRIBERS PERMITTED TO TERMINATE BROADBAND CONTRACTS. The  
17 treatment of s. 100.2092 (1) (L) first applies to a contract that is entered into,  
18 renewed, or modified on the effective date of this subsection.

19 **SECTION 9436. Effective dates; Public Service Commission.**

20 (1) INTERNET SERVICE PROVIDER REGISTRATION REQUIREMENT. The treatment  
21 of s. 196.5048 takes effect on January 1, 2026.”.

22 **3.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

23 **“SECTION 9250. Fiscal changes; Workforce Development.**

1           (1) HOTLINE FOR EMPLOYERS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
2           appropriation to the department of workforce development under s. 20.445 (1) (a),  
3           the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$64,000 to increase the  
4           authorized FTE positions for the department by 1.0 GPR employment and training  
5           specialist position to staff the hotline under s. 106.361. In the schedule under s.  
6           20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of workforce development under  
7           s. 20.445 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$82,800 to  
8           provide funding for the position authorized under this subsection.

9           (2) CAREER NAVIGATORS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
10          appropriation to the department of workforce development under s. 20.445 (1) (a),  
11          the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$710,600 to increase the  
12          authorized FTE positions for the department by 11.0 GPR employment and  
13          training specialist positions to provide career navigator services. In the schedule  
14          under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of workforce  
15          development under s. 20.445 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is  
16          increased by \$910,800 to provide funding for the positions authorized under this  
17          subsection.

18          (3) VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION WORKER CONNECTION PROGRAM. (a) *State*  
19          *funding*. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the  
20          department of workforce development under s. 20.445 (5) (a), the dollar amount for  
21          fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$6,356,900 to increase the authorized FTE  
22          positions for the department by 1.15 GPR vocational rehabilitation services  
23          positions and provide funding for those services. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3)  
24          for the appropriation to the department of workforce development under s. 20.445

1 (5) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$9,059,000 to  
2 provide funding for the positions and services authorized under this subsection.

3 (b) *Federal funding.* In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation  
4 to the department of workforce development under s. 20.445 (5) (n), the dollar  
5 amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$287,900 to increase the authorized  
6 FTE positions for the department by 3.85 FED vocational rehabilitation services  
7 positions and provide funding for those services. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3)  
8 for the appropriation to the department of workforce development under s. 20.445  
9 (5) (n), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$20,564,300 to  
10 provide funding for the positions and services authorized under this subsection.

11 (4) TECHNICAL EDUCATION EQUIPMENT GRANTS. In the schedule under s.  
12 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of workforce development under  
13 s. 20.445 (1) (cg), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$200,000  
14 to provide increased funding for the technical education equipment grants under s.  
15 106.275. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the  
16 department of workforce development under s. 20.445 (1) (cg), the dollar amount for  
17 fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$200,000 to provide increased funding for the  
18 technical education equipment grants under s. 106.275.”.

19 **4.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

20 **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

21 (1) CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE GATHERING UNIT. In the schedule under s. 20.005  
22 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the  
23 dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$2,031,700 to increase the  
24 authorized FTE positions in the department by 12.0 GPR positions for a central

1 intelligence gathering unit. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
2 appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar  
3 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$2,209,700 to provide funding for the  
4 positions authorized under this subsection.”.

5 **5.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

6 **“SECTION 12.** 302.05 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 **302.05 (title) Wisconsin ~~substance abuse~~ earned release program.**

8 **SECTION 13.** 302.05 (1) (am) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 302.05 (1) (am) (intro.) The department of corrections and the department of  
10 health services may designate a section of a mental health institute as a  
11 correctional treatment facility for the treatment of substance ~~abuse~~ use disorder of  
12 inmates transferred from Wisconsin state prisons. ~~This section shall be~~  
13 ~~administered by the department of corrections and shall be known as the Wisconsin~~  
14 ~~substance abuse program.~~ The department of corrections and the department of  
15 health services shall ensure that the residents at the institution and the residents  
16 in the substance ~~abuse~~ use disorder program:

17 **SECTION 14.** 302.05 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 302.05 (1) (b) The department of corrections and the department of health  
19 services shall, at any correctional facility the departments determine is  
20 appropriate, provide a substance ~~abuse~~ use disorder treatment program for inmates  
21 for the purposes of the program described in sub. (3).

22 **SECTION 15.** 302.05 (1) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

23 302.05 (1) (c) 1. In this paragraph, “vocational readiness training program”

1 means an educational, vocational, treatment, or other evidence-based training  
2 program to reduce recidivism.

3 2. The department shall, at any correctional facility the department  
4 determines is appropriate, provide vocational readiness training programs for the  
5 purposes of the program described in sub. (3).

6 **SECTION 16.** 302.05 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 302.05 (2) Transfer to a correctional treatment facility for the treatment of a  
8 substance ~~abuse~~ use disorder shall be considered a transfer under s. 302.18.

9 **SECTION 17.** 302.05 (3) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 302.05 (3) (a) 2. ~~If the inmate is serving a bifurcated sentence imposed under~~  
11 ~~s. 973.01, the sentencing court decided under par. (e) or s. 973.01 (3g) The~~  
12 department determines that the inmate is eligible to participate in the earned  
13 release program described in this subsection. In making its determination, the  
14 department shall consider a decision of the sentencing court under s. 302.05 (3) (e),  
15 2023 stats., or s. 973.01 (3g), 2023 stats.

16 **SECTION 18.** 302.05 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 302.05 (3) (b) Except as provided in par. (d), if the department determines  
18 that an eligible inmate serving a sentence other than one imposed under s. 973.01  
19 has successfully completed a substance use disorder treatment program described  
20 in sub. (1) (b), a vocational readiness training program described in sub. (1) (c), or  
21 the mother-young child care program under s. 301.049, the parole commission shall  
22 parole the inmate for that sentence under s. 304.06, regardless of the time the  
23 inmate has served. If the parole commission grants parole under this paragraph for

1 the completion of a substance use disorder treatment program, it shall require the  
2 parolee to participate in an intensive supervision program for drug abusers as a  
3 condition of parole.

4 **SECTION 19.** 302.05 (3) (c) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 302.05 (3) (c) 1. Except as provided in par. (d), if the department determines  
6 that an eligible inmate serving the term of confinement in prison portion of a  
7 bifurcated sentence imposed under s. 973.01 has successfully completed a  
8 substance use disorder treatment program described in sub. (1) (b), a vocational  
9 readiness training program described in sub. (1) (c), or the mother-young child care  
10 program under s. 301.049, the department shall inform the court that sentenced  
11 the inmate.

12 **SECTION 20.** 302.05 (3) (c) 2. (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 302.05 (3) (c) 2. (intro.) Upon being informed by the department under subd.  
14 1. that an inmate whom the court sentenced under s. 973.01 has successfully  
15 completed a substance use disorder treatment program described in sub. (1) (b), a  
16 vocational readiness training program described in sub. (1) (c), or the mother-young  
17 child care program under s. 301.049, the court shall modify the inmate's bifurcated  
18 sentence as follows:

19 **SECTION 21.** 302.05 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 302.05 (3) (d) The department may place intensive sanctions program  
21 participants in a treatment program described in sub. (1) (b), but pars. (b) and (c) do  
22 not apply to those participants.

23 **SECTION 22.** 302.05 (3) (e) of the statutes is repealed.



1           **SECTION 23.** 973.01 (3g) of the statutes is repealed.

2           **SECTION 24.** 973.01 (8) (ag) of the statutes is repealed.

3           **SECTION 9108. Nonstatutory provisions; Corrections.**

4           (1) EARNED RELEASE PROGRAM RULES. The department of corrections shall  
5       update its administrative rules to implement earned release for completion of a  
6       vocational readiness training program under s. 302.05 (3), including specification of  
7       the eligibility criteria for persons sentenced before the effective date of this  
8       subsection to participate in the program.”.

9           **6.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

10          “**SECTION 25.** 20.395 (5) (eq) of the statutes is renumbered 20.395 (5) (ep) and  
11       amended to read:

12           20.395 (5) (ep) *Driver education grants, state funds.* As a continuing  
13       appropriation, from the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for driver  
14       education grants. All moneys lapsed to the general fund under s. 20.145 (1) (g), but  
15       not to exceed to \$6,000,000 in a fiscal year, shall be credited to this appropriation  
16       account.”.

17          **7.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

18          “**SECTION 9244. Fiscal changes; Transportation.**

19          (1) EXPRESSWAY POLICING AIDS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
20       appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (1) (gq), the  
21       dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$7,688,000 for expressway  
22       policing aids to Milwaukee County. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
23       appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (1) (gq), the

dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$8,586,400 for expressway policing aids to Milwaukee County.”.

**8.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9244. Fiscal changes; Transportation.**

(1) IN-VEHICLE VIDEO CAMERAS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (5) (da), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$3,980,300 to fund data storage costs for in-vehicle video cameras.”.

**9.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 26.** 753.06 (8) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

753.06 (8) (a) Brown County. The circuit has 8 branches. Commencing August 1, 2026, the circuit has 10 branches.

**SECTION 27.** 753.06 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by 2025 Wisconsin Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

753.06 (8) (a) Brown County. The circuit has ~~8 branches.~~ ~~Commencing August 1, 2026, the circuit has 10 branches.~~

**SECTION 28.** 753.0605 of the statutes is repealed.

**SECTION 9107. Nonstatutory provisions; Circuit Courts.**

(1) CIRCUIT COURT BRANCHES; BRANCH 9. The initial election for circuit judge for branch 9 of the circuit court for Brown County shall be at the spring election of 2026 for a term commencing August 1, 2026, and ending July 31, 2032.

(2) CIRCUIT COURT BRANCHES; BRANCH 10. The initial election for circuit judge

1 for branch 10 of the circuit court for Brown County shall be at the spring election of  
2 2026 for a term commencing August 1, 2026, and ending July 31, 2032.

3 (3) POSITION AUTHORIZATIONS; CIRCUIT COURT JUDGES. The authorized FTE  
4 positions for the circuit courts are increased by 2.0 GPR circuit judge positions on  
5 August 1, 2026, to be funded from the appropriation under s. 20.625 (1) (a), to  
6 provide one circuit judge in each of the circuit court branches created by this act in  
7 Brown County.

8 (4) POSITION AUTHORIZATIONS; COURT REPORTERS. The authorized FTE  
9 positions for the circuit courts are increased by 2.0 GPR court reporter positions on  
10 August 1, 2026, to be funded from the appropriation under s. 20.625 (1) (a), to  
11 provide one court reporter in each of the circuit court branches created by this act in  
12 Brown County.

13 **SECTION 9207. Fiscal changes; Circuit Courts.**

14 (1) CIRCUIT COURT COSTS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
15 appropriation to the director of state courts under s. 20.625 (1) (cg), the dollar  
16 amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$219,400 for additional support to  
17 counties to maintain current per-branch funding levels.

18 **SECTION 9407. Effective dates; Circuit Courts.**

19 (1) CIRCUIT COURT BRANCHES. The treatment of s. 753.06 (8) (a) (by SECTION  
20 27) takes effect on August 1, 2026.”.

21 **10.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

22 **“SECTION 9244. Fiscal changes; Transportation.**

23 (1) CAR-KILLED DEER PROGRAM. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
24 appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (4) (aq), the

dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$758,600 for the car-killed deer program. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (4) (aq), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$779,900 for the car-killed deer program.”.

**11.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9244. Fiscal changes; Transportation.**

(1) BODY-WORN CAMERAS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (4) (aq), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$3,628,200 to purchase body-worn cameras for state troopers.

(2) OPEN RECORDS REQUEST STAFF. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (4) (aq), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$247,600 and the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$320,100 to increase the authorized FTE positions for the department by 6.0 SEG positions for processing data and responding to open records requests from body-worn cameras.”.

**12.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9244. Fiscal changes; Transportation.**

(1) MICROWAVE RADIO NETWORK. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (4) (aq), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$1,253,500 and the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$1,253,500 to upgrade 59 communications links on the statewide microwave radio network.”.

1           **13.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

2           **“SECTION 9244. Fiscal changes; Transportation.**

3           (1) STATE TROOPER OVERTIME. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
4           appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (4) (aq), the  
5           dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$2,105,600 and the dollar  
6           amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$2,105,600 to fund overtime pay for  
7           Wisconsin state troopers.”

8           **14.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

9           **“SECTION 1.** 20.395 (5) (da) of the statutes is amended to read:

10           20.395 (5) (da) *State traffic patrol equipment, general fund.* From the general  
11           fund, the amounts in the schedule for in-vehicle video camera equipment, tasers,  
12           and tactical vests and helmets for the state traffic patrol.

13           **SECTION 9244. Fiscal changes; Transportation.**

14           (1) UPGRADED TASERS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
15           appropriation to the department of transportation under s. 20.395 (5) (da), the  
16           dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$2,437,200 to fund the  
17           purchase of 500 tasers for state troopers.”.

18           **15.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

19           **“SECTION 29.** 15.03 of the statutes is amended to read:

20           **15.03 Attachment for limited purposes.** Any division, office, commission,  
21           council or board attached under this section to a department or independent agency  
22           or a specified division thereof shall be a distinct unit of that department,  
23           independent agency or specified division. Any division, office, commission, council

1 or board so attached shall exercise its powers, duties and functions prescribed by  
2 law, including rule making, licensing and regulation, and operational planning  
3 within the area of program responsibility of the division, office, commission, council  
4 or board, independently of the head of the department or independent agency, but  
5 budgeting, program coordination and related management functions shall be  
6 performed under the direction and supervision of the head of the department or  
7 independent agency, except that with respect to the office of the commissioner of  
8 railroads, all personnel and biennial budget requests by the office of the  
9 commissioner of railroads ~~shall be provided to the department of transportation as~~  
10 ~~required under s. 189.02 (7) and~~ shall be processed and properly forwarded by the  
11 ~~public service commission~~ department of transportation without change except as  
12 requested and concurred in by the office of the commissioner of railroads.

13 **SECTION 30.** 15.465 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 **15.465 (title) Same; attached board and office.**

15 **SECTION 31.** 15.79 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 15.79 (1) There is created a public service commission consisting of one  
17 chairperson and 2 commissioners. The chairperson and any commissioner may not  
18 have a financial interest in a ~~railroad, water carrier, or~~ public utility. If the  
19 chairperson or a commissioner voluntarily becomes so interested, the chairperson's  
20 or commissioner's office shall become vacant. If the chairperson or commissioner  
21 involuntarily becomes so interested, the chairperson's or commissioner's office  
22 shall become vacant unless the chairperson or commissioner divests himself or  
23 herself of the interest within a reasonable time. The chairperson and each  
24 commissioner shall hold office until a successor is appointed and qualified.

1           **SECTION 32.** 15.795 (title) of the statutes is repealed.

2           **SECTION 33.** 15.795 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 15.465 (3) and amended  
3 to read:

4           15.465 (3) OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF RAILROADS. There is created an  
5 office of the commissioner of railroads which is attached to the ~~public service~~  
6 ~~commission~~ department of transportation under s. 15.03, provided that s. 85.02 (1)  
7 does not apply to the office of the commissioner of railroads. The commissioner of  
8 railroads shall have expertise in railroad issues and may not have a financial  
9 interest in a railroad, as defined in s. 195.02 (1), or a water carrier, as defined in s.  
10 195.02 (5). The commissioner may not serve on or under any committee of a  
11 political party. The commissioner shall hold office until a successor is appointed  
12 and qualified.

13           **SECTION 34.** 20.155 (2) (title) of the statutes is renumbered 20.395 (7) (title).

14           **SECTION 35.** 20.155 (2) (g) of the statutes is renumbered 20.395 (7) (ag).

15           **SECTION 36.** 20.155 (2) (m) of the statutes is renumbered 20.395 (7) (am).

16           **SECTION 37.** 25.40 (1) (f) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

17           25.40 (1) (f) 1. Moneys received from the federal government, for the  
18 regulation of railroads and water carriers, that are deposited in the general fund  
19 and credited to the appropriation under s. ~~20.155 (2) (m)~~ 20.395 (7) (am).

20           **SECTION 38.** 189.02 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

21           189.02 (3m) (a) Except as provided in s. 15.03, the ~~public service commission~~  
22 department shall have no control or jurisdiction over the office in matters relating  
23 to railroad regulation.

24           **SECTION 39.** 189.02 (3m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           189.02 **(3m)** (b) Notwithstanding par. (a), the commissioner of railroads shall  
2 seek the input of, and give considerable weight to the advice given by, the  
3 ~~chairperson of the public service commission~~ secretary on matters relating to the  
4 employment of persons by the office.

5           **SECTION 40.** 189.02 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

6           189.02 **(4)** Decisions of the office are not appealable to the ~~public service~~  
7 ~~commission~~ department. Decisions of the office are subject to judicial review under  
8 ch. 227.

9           **SECTION 41.** 189.02 (7) of the statutes is repealed.

10          **SECTION 42.** 190.11 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

11          190.11 **(3)** The office of the commissioner of railroads shall collect a fee of \$1  
12 per page filed under sub. (1). All fees received under this subsection shall be  
13 credited to the appropriation account under s. ~~20.155 (2) (g)~~ 20.395 (7) (ag).

14          **SECTION 43.** 195.60 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

15          195.60 **(1)** Whenever the office in a proceeding upon its own motion, on  
16 complaint, or upon an application to it deems it necessary in order to carry out the  
17 duties imposed upon it by law to investigate the books, accounts, practices and  
18 activities of, or make appraisals of the property of any railroad or water carrier or to  
19 render any engineering or accounting services to any railroad or water carrier, the  
20 railroad or water carrier shall pay the expenses attributable to such investigation,  
21 appraisal or service. The office shall ascertain such expenses, and shall render a  
22 bill therefor, by mail, to the railroad or water carrier, either at the conclusion of the  
23 investigation, appraisal or services, or during its progress. The bill shall constitute  
24 notice of assessment and demand of payment thereof. The railroad or water carrier



1 shall, within 30 days after the mailing thereof, pay to the office the amount of the  
2 special expense for which it is billed. Ninety percent of the payment shall be  
3 credited to the appropriation account under s. ~~20.155 (2) (g)~~ 20.395 (7) (ag). The  
4 total amount, in any one calendar year, for which any railroad or water carrier  
5 becomes liable, by reason of costs incurred by the office within such calendar year,  
6 shall not exceed four-fifths of one percent of its gross operating revenues derived  
7 from intrastate operations in the last preceding calendar year. Where, under this  
8 subsection, costs are incurred within any calendar year, which are in excess of four-  
9 fifths of one percent of such gross operating revenues, the excess costs shall not be  
10 chargeable as part of the remainder under sub. (2) but shall be paid out of the  
11 general appropriation to the office. Nothing in this subsection shall prevent the  
12 office from rendering bills in one calendar year for costs incurred within a previous  
13 year. For the purpose of calculating the costs of investigations, appraisals and other  
14 services under this subsection, 90 percent of the costs determined shall be costs of  
15 the office and 10 percent of the costs determined shall be costs of state government  
16 operations.

17 **SECTION 44.** 195.60 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 195.60 (2) The office shall annually, within 90 days after the close of each  
19 fiscal year, ascertain the total of its expenditures during such year which are  
20 reasonably attributable to the performance of its duties relating to railroads and  
21 water carriers. For purposes of such calculation, 90 percent of the expenditures so  
22 determined shall be expenditures of the office and 10 percent of the expenditures so  
23 determined shall be expenditures for state government operations. The office shall  
24 deduct therefrom all amounts chargeable to railroads and water carriers under sub.

(1) and s. 201.10 (3). A sum equal to the remainder plus 10 percent of the remainder shall be assessed by the office to the several railroads and water carriers in proportion to their respective gross operating revenues during the last calendar year, derived from intrastate operations. Such assessment shall be paid within 30 days after the bill has been mailed to the several railroads and water carriers, which bill shall constitute notice of assessment and demand of payment thereof. The total amount which may be assessed to the railroads and water carriers under authority of this subsection shall not exceed 1.85 percent of the total gross operating revenues of such railroads and water carriers, during such calendar year, derived from intrastate operations. Ninety percent of the payment shall be credited to the appropriation account under s. ~~20.155 (2) (g)~~ 20.395 (7) (ag). The railroads and water carriers shall furnish such financial information as the office requires for purposes of this section.”.

**16.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

“**SECTION 45.** 343.301 (1g) (a) 2. a. of the statutes is amended to read:

343.301 (**1g**) (a) 2. a. The ~~person had an offense involved the use of~~ alcohol concentration of 0.15 or more at the time of the offense.

**SECTION 9344. Initial applicability; Transportation.**

(1) IGNITION INTERLOCK DEVICE REQUIREMENT EXPANSION. The treatment of s. 343.301 (1g) (a) 2. a. first applies to violations committed on the effective date of this subsection.”.

**17.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

“**SECTION 46.** 165.83 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           165.83 (2) (d) ~~Obtain~~ Except as provided in par. (dd), obtain and file  
2 information relating to identifiable stolen or lost property.

3           **SECTION 47.** 165.83 (2) (dd) of the statutes is created to read:

4           165.83 (2) (dd) 1. If a law enforcement agency forwards a file under s. 175.36  
5 (2) (a) 2. to the department, enter the information into the national crime  
6 information center systems and put the file in a database that is created for stolen  
7 or lost firearms and make the database available to law enforcement agencies for  
8 the purpose of locating and identifying stolen or lost firearms and identifying  
9 violators of s. 175.36 (1).

10          2. If a law enforcement agency notifies the department under s. 175.36 (2) (b)  
11 that a stolen or lost firearm has been recovered, enter that information into the  
12 national crime information center systems and add to the database a notation that  
13 the firearm has been recovered and the date on which it was recovered.

14           **SECTION 48.** 175.36 of the statutes is created to read:

15           **175.36 Reporting stolen or lost firearm.** (1) (a) A person who owns a  
16 firearm and who discovers that the firearm is stolen or lost shall, within 24 hours of  
17 the discovery, report the theft or loss to a law enforcement agency that has  
18 jurisdiction over the area in which the firearm was stolen or lost.

19          (b) If a person who has reported a theft or loss under par. (a) recovers the  
20 firearm, the person shall report as soon as practicable to a law enforcement agency  
21 the date on which the firearm was recovered.

22          (2) (a) A law enforcement agency that receives under sub. (1) (a) a report of a  
23 stolen or lost firearm shall do all of the following:

1           1. Create a file that includes, if known, the date on which the firearm was  
2       stolen or lost; the caliber, make, and model of the firearm; the serial number of the  
3       firearm; any distinguishing mark on the firearm; and the location at which the  
4       firearm was purchased by, or transferred to, the person making the report under  
5       sub. (1) (a).

6           2. As soon as practicable, forward a copy of the file created under subd. 1. to  
7       the department of justice for inclusion in a database under s. 165.83 (2) (dd).

8           (b) A law enforcement agency that receives under sub. (1) (b) a report of a  
9       recovered firearm shall report to the department of justice the date on which the  
10      firearm was recovered.

11          (3) A person who reports under sub. (1) (a) a stolen or lost firearm, when he or  
12      she knows that the report is false, is guilty of violating s. 946.41.

13          (4) A person who violates sub. (1) (a) is guilty of one of the following:

14           (a) For a first offense, a Class A misdemeanor.

15           (b) For a 2nd or subsequent offense, a Class I felony.

16          **SECTION 49.** 175.37 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

17          **175.37** (title) **~~Warning~~ Requirements whenever transferring a**  
18      **firearm.**

19          **SECTION 50.** 175.37 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 175.37 (1) (intro.) and  
20      amended to read:

21          175.37 (1) (intro.) Upon the retail commercial sale or retail commercial  
22      transfer of any firearm, the seller or transferor shall provide to the buyer or  
23      transferee all of the following:

1       (a) A written warning in block letters not less than one-fourth inch in height:  
2       “IF YOU LEAVE A LOADED FIREARM WITHIN THE REACH OR EASY  
3       ACCESS OF A CHILD YOU MAY BE FINED OR IMPRISONED OR BOTH IF  
4       THE CHILD IMPROPERLY DISCHARGES, POSSESSES OR EXHIBITS THE  
5       FIREARM.”

6       **SECTION 51.** 175.37 (1) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

7       175.37 (1) (b) A secure, lockable container that is designed to store a firearm  
8       or a trigger lock for the firearm.

9       **SECTION 52.** 175.37 (1) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

10       175.37 (1) (c) A written notice of the requirements under s. 175.36 (1) and of  
11       the penalties under s. 175.36 (4).

12       **SECTION 53.** 939.6195 (1) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

13       939.6195 (1) (a) 1. A violation of s. 941.29 ~~or~~, 941.2905, or 941.293.

14       **SECTION 54.** 941.285 of the statutes is created to read:

15       **941.285 Possession of firearm accessories that accelerate the rate of**  
16       **fire.** (1) No person may import, sell or offer to sell, purchase, manufacture,  
17       transfer, use, or possess a trigger crank, a bump-fire device, or any part,  
18       combination of parts, component, device, attachment, or accessory that is added  
19       after manufacture that is designed to accelerate or functions to accelerate the rate  
20       of fire of a semiautomatic firearm.

21       (2) Any person violating sub. (1) is guilty of a Class G felony.

22       (3) Subsection (1) does not apply to importation, sale, purchase, manufacture,

1 transfer, use, or possession by or under the authority of the federal government or a  
2 state or local government.

3 **SECTION 55.** 941.29 (1g) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 941.29 (1g) (a) “Violent felony” means any felony under s. 943.23 (1m), 1999  
5 stats., s. 943.23 (1r), 1999 stats., or s. 943.23 (1g), 2021 stats., ~~this section sub. (1m)~~,  
6 or s. 940.01, 940.02, 940.03, 940.05, 940.06, 940.08, 940.09, 940.10, 940.19, 940.195,  
7 940.198, 940.20, 940.201, 940.203, 940.204, 940.21, 940.225, 940.23, 940.235,  
8 940.285 (2), 940.29, 940.295 (3), 940.30, 940.302, 940.305, 940.31, 940.43 (1) to (3),  
9 940.45 (1) to (3), 941.20, 941.26, 941.28, 941.285, 941.2905, 941.292, 941.293,  
10 941.30, 941.327 (2) (b) 3. or 4., 943.02, 943.04, 943.06, 943.10 (2), 943.231 (1),  
11 943.32, 943.87, 946.43, 948.02 (1) or (2), 948.025, 948.03, 948.04, 948.05, 948.051,  
12 948.06, 948.07, 948.08, 948.085, or 948.30.

13 **SECTION 56.** 941.29 (3m) of the statutes is created to read:

14 941.29 (3m) (a) A person who resides with a person who is prohibited under  
15 sub. (1m) from possessing a firearm shall, when not carrying the firearm, store any  
16 firearm he or she possesses in a securely locked box or container or in a locked  
17 location that a reasonable person would believe to be secure or ensure that a trigger  
18 lock is engaged on the firearm.

19 (b) A person who violates par. (a) is guilty of the following:

- 20 1. For a first violation, a Class A misdemeanor.  
21 2. For a 2nd or subsequent violation, a Class I felony.

22 **SECTION 57.** 941.291 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 941.291 (1) (b) “Violent felony” means any felony, or the solicitation,  
24 conspiracy, or attempt to commit any felony, under s. 943.23 (1m) or (1r), 1999

stats., or s. 943.23 (1g), 2021 stats., or s. 940.01, 940.02, 940.03, 940.05, 940.06, 940.08, 940.09, 940.10, 940.19, 940.195, 940.198, 940.20, 940.201, 940.203, 940.204, 940.21, 940.225, 940.23, 940.285 (2), 940.29, 940.295 (3), 940.30, 940.305, 940.31, 940.43 (1) to (3), 940.45 (1) to (3), 941.20, 941.26, 941.28, 941.285, 941.29 (1m), 941.293, 941.30, 941.327, 943.01 (2) (c), 943.011, 943.013, 943.02, 943.04, 943.06, 943.10 (2), 943.231 (1), 943.32, 943.81, 943.82, 943.83, 943.85, 943.86, 943.87, 943.88, 943.89, 943.90, 946.43, 947.015, 948.02 (1) or (2), 948.025, 948.03, 948.04, 948.05, 948.06, 948.07, 948.08, 948.085, or 948.30; or, if the victim is a financial institution, as defined in s. 943.80 (2), a felony, or the solicitation, conspiracy, or attempt to commit a felony under s. 943.84 (1) or (2).

**SECTION 58.** 941.293 of the statutes is created to read:

**941.293 Undetectable firearms; serial numbers on firearm components.** (1) In this section:

(a) “Major component” means the barrel, the slide or cylinder, or the frame or receiver of a firearm.

(b) “Undetectable firearm” means any of the following:

1. A firearm that, after the removal of grips, stocks, and magazines, is not detectable by a metal detector calibrated to detect a security exemplar, as defined in 18 USC 922 (p) (2) (C).

2. A firearm if any major component of it does not generate an image that accurately depicts the shape of the component when subject to inspection by security scanners, x-ray machines, or other security devices commonly used at airports.

1           (2) (a) 1. Whoever sells, offers to sell, transfers, transports, manufactures,  
2 possesses, or goes armed with an undetectable firearm is guilty of a Class G felony.

3           2. Whoever sells, offers to sell, transfers, posts, provides to another, or  
4 possesses plans for manufacturing an undetectable firearm is guilty of a Class H  
5 felony.

6           (b) Paragraph (a) does not apply to a person who is licensed by a state or the  
7 federal government to manufacture undetectable firearms while the person is on  
8 official duty. Paragraph (a) 1. does not apply to a law enforcement officer while on  
9 official duty or to armed forces or national guard personnel while on official duty.

10          (3) (a) Whoever possesses a frame or a receiver of a firearm that is not  
11 attached to a firearm and that is not marked or engraved with a serial number is  
12 guilty of a Class I felony.

13          (b) Paragraph (a) does not apply to a firearm frame or receiver manufactured  
14 before 1968, a person who is licensed by a state or the federal government to  
15 manufacture undetectable firearms while the person is on official duty, a law  
16 enforcement officer while on official duty, or armed forces or national guard  
17 personnel while on official duty.

18          **SECTION 59.** 948.55 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

19          **948.55 Storage of firearm if children present.** (1) Whoever resides with  
20 a child, or knows a child will be present in his or her residence, may not store or  
21 leave a firearm at his or her residence unless the firearm is in a securely locked box  
22 or container or in a locked location that a reasonable person would believe to be



1 secure or unless a trigger lock is engaged on the firearm. This prohibition does not  
2 apply to a person who is going armed with the firearm.

3 (2) A person who violates sub. (1) is guilty of the following:

4 (a) For a first violation, a Class A misdemeanor.

5 (b) For a 2nd or subsequent violation, a Class I felony.

6 **SECTION 60.** 968.02 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 968.02 (4) If the alleged violator under s. 948.55 ~~(2)~~ or 948.60 (2) (c) is or was  
8 the parent or guardian of a child who is injured or dies as a result of an accidental  
9 shooting, the district attorney may consider, among other factors, the impact of the  
10 injury or death on the alleged violator when deciding whether to issue a complaint  
11 regarding the alleged violation. This subsection does not restrict the factors that a  
12 district attorney may consider in deciding whether to issue a complaint regarding  
13 any alleged violation.

14 **SECTION 61.** 968.07 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 968.07 (3) If the alleged violator under s. 948.55 ~~(2)~~ or 948.60 (2) (c) is or was  
16 the parent or guardian of a child who is injured or dies as a result of an accidental  
17 shooting, no law enforcement officer may arrest the alleged violator until at least 7  
18 days after the date of the shooting.

19 **SECTION 62.** 973.123 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 973.123 (1) In this section, "violent felony" means any felony under s. 943.23  
21 (1m), 1999 stats., s. 943.23 (1r), 1999 stats., or s. 943.23 (1g), 2021 stats., or s.  
22 940.01, 940.02, 940.03, 940.05, 940.06, 940.08, 940.09, 940.10, 940.19, 940.195,  
23 940.198, 940.20, 940.201, 940.203, 940.204, 940.21, 940.225, 940.23, 940.235,  
24 940.285 (2), 940.29, 940.295 (3), 940.30, 940.302, 940.305, 940.31, 940.43 (1) to (3),

940.45 (1) to (3), 941.20, 941.26, 941.28, 941.285, 941.29 (1m), 941.292, 941.293,  
941.30, 941.327 (2) (b) 3. or 4., 943.02, 943.04, 943.06, 943.10 (2), 943.231 (1),  
943.32, 943.87, 946.43, 948.02 (1) or (2), 948.025, 948.03, 948.04, 948.05, 948.051,  
948.06, 948.07, 948.08, 948.085, or 948.30.

**SECTION 9151. Nonstatutory provisions; Other.**

(1) DELAYED PENALTY APPLICATION FOR VIOLATING PROHIBITION.  
Notwithstanding s. 941.285, no person may be subject to a penalty for violating s.  
941.285 (1) with regard to the possession of any device prohibited under that  
section for the first 180 days after the effective date of this subsection.

**SECTION 9351. Initial applicability; Other.**

(1) REQUIREMENTS WHEN SELLING OR TRANSFERRING FIREARMS. The  
treatment of s. 175.37 (title), the renumbering and amendment of s. 175.37 (1), and  
the creation of s. 175.37 (1) (b) first apply to sales and transfers that occur on the  
effective date of this subsection.

(2) LOST OR STOLEN FIREARMS. The treatment of s. 175.36 (1) (a) first applies  
to discoveries of stolen or lost firearms made on the effective date of this subsection.

(3) REQUIREMENTS WHEN TRANSFERRING FIREARM. The creation of s. 175.37  
(1) (c) first applies to sales and transfers that occur on the effective date of this  
subsection.”.

**18.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

“**SECTION 63.** 111.335 (3) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 111.335 (3) (ar).

**SECTION 64.** 111.335 (3) (ah) of the statutes is created to read:

111.335 (3) (ah) 1. Employment discrimination because of conviction record

1 includes, but is not limited to, requesting an applicant, employee, member, licensee,  
2 or any other individual, on an application form or otherwise, to supply information  
3 regarding a crime the record of which has been expunged under s. 973.015. A  
4 request to supply information regarding criminal convictions shall not be construed  
5 as a request to supply information regarding a crime the record of which has been  
6 expunged under s. 973.015.

7 2. Notwithstanding par. (ar) 1., and except as provided in par. (g), it is  
8 employment discrimination because of conviction record for an employer or  
9 licensing agency to engage in any act of employment discrimination specified in s.  
10 111.322 on the basis of a conviction the record of which has been expunged under s.  
11 973.015. This subdivision does not apply to the extent that its application conflicts  
12 with federal law.

13 **SECTION 65.** 111.335 (3) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

14 111.335 (3) (g) Notwithstanding s. 111.322, it is not employment  
15 discrimination because of conviction record for the law enforcement standards  
16 board to refuse to certify, recertify, or allow to participate in a preparatory training  
17 program or to decertify under s. 165.85 an individual who has a conviction the  
18 record of which has been expunged under s. 973.015.

19 **SECTION 66.** 111.335 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 111.335 (4) (b) It is employment discrimination because of conviction record  
21 for a licensing agency to refuse to license any individual under sub. (3) ~~(a)~~ (ar) 1. or  
22 to bar or terminate an individual from licensing under sub. (3) ~~(a)~~ (ar) 1. because

1 the individual was adjudicated delinquent under ch. 938 for an offense other than  
2 an exempt offense.

3 **SECTION 67.** 111.335 (4) (c) 1. (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 111.335 (4) (c) 1. (intro.) If a licensing agency refuses to license an individual  
5 under sub. (3) ~~(a)~~ (ar) 1. or bars or terminates an individual from licensing under  
6 sub. (3) ~~(a)~~ (ar) 1., the licensing agency shall, subject to subd. 2., do all of the  
7 following:

8 **SECTION 68.** 111.335 (4) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 111.335 (4) (e) A state licensing agency that may refuse to license individuals  
10 under sub. (3) ~~(a)~~ (ar) 1. or that may bar or terminate an individual from licensure  
11 under sub. (3) ~~(a)~~ (ar) 1. shall publish on the agency's Internet site a document  
12 indicating the offenses or kinds of offenses that may result in such a refusal, bar, or  
13 termination.

14 **SECTION 69.** 111.335 (4) (f) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 111.335 (4) (f) 1. A state licensing agency that may refuse to license  
16 individuals under sub. (3) ~~(a)~~ (ar) 1. or that may bar or terminate individuals from  
17 licensing under sub. (3) ~~(a)~~ (ar) 1. shall allow an individual who does not possess a  
18 license to, without submitting a full application and without paying the fees  
19 applicable to applicants, apply to the agency for a determination of whether the  
20 individual would be disqualified from obtaining the license due to his or her  
21 conviction record.

22 **SECTION 70.** 950.04 (1v) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 950.04 (1v) (g) To have reasonable attempts made to notify the victim of

1 hearings or court proceedings, as provided under ss. 302.113 (9g) (g) 2., 302.114 (6),  
2 938.27 (4m) and (6), 938.273 (2), 971.095 (3) ~~and~~, 972.14 (3) (b), and 973.015 (1m)  
3 (c).

4 **SECTION 71.** 973.015 (1b) of the statutes is created to read:

5 973.015 (1b) In this section, “record” means a criminal case file.

6 **SECTION 72.** 973.015 (1m) (a) 1. of the statutes is renumbered 973.015 (1m)

7 (a) 1. (intro.) and amended to read:

8 973.015 (1m) (a) 1. (intro.) Subject to subd. 2. ~~and except as provided in subd.~~  
9 ~~3., when a person is under the age of 25 at the time of the commission of an offense~~  
10 ~~for which the person has been found guilty in a court for violation of a law for which~~  
11 ~~the maximum period of imprisonment is 6 years or less, the~~, a court may order at  
12 ~~the time of sentencing~~ after a conviction that ~~the record~~ a criminal case be  
13 expunged ~~upon successful completion of the sentence if the court determines the~~  
14 ~~person will benefit and society will not be harmed by this disposition.~~ by one of the  
15 following methods:

16 (d) This subsection does not apply to information maintained by the  
17 department of transportation regarding a conviction that is required to be ~~included~~  
18 ~~in a record~~ kept under s. 343.23 (2) (a).

19 **SECTION 73.** 973.015 (1m) (a) 1. a. and b. of the statutes are created to read:

20 973.015 (1m) (a) 1. a. Except as provided in subd. 3., the court may order at  
21 the time of sentencing that the record be expunged upon successful completion of  
22 the sentence if the court determines that the person has not previously had a record

1 expunged under this section and that the person will benefit and society will not be  
2 harmed by this disposition.

3 b. If at least one year has passed since the person successfully completed his  
4 or her sentence, the person may file a petition in the county of conviction requesting  
5 that the record be expunged. Upon receipt of the petition, the court shall review the  
6 petition to determine if the person is ineligible to petition for expungement because  
7 subd. 3. or 4. applies, less than one year has passed since the person successfully  
8 completed his or her sentence, there are criminal charges pending against the  
9 person, the person has previously had a record expunged under this section, or the  
10 person has exceeded the maximum number of petitions allowed under this subd. 1.

11 b. If the court determines the person is eligible to petition for expungement, the  
12 court shall forward the petition to the district attorney. If the district attorney  
13 requests a hearing within 90 days after the court forwards the petition, the court  
14 shall schedule a hearing to review the petition. If the district attorney waives the  
15 hearing or at least 90 days have passed since the court forwarded the petition, the  
16 court may review the petition with or without a hearing. If a hearing is scheduled,  
17 then if practicable, the sentencing judge shall be the judge to review the petition.  
18 The court may order that the record be expunged if the court determines the person  
19 will benefit and society will not be harmed by this disposition. If the court does not  
20 order the record to be expunged under this subd. 1. b., the person may file a 2nd  
21 petition under this subd. 1. b. only if at least 2 years have passed since he or she  
22 filed the first petition. No person may file more than 2 petitions per record under

1 this subd. 1. b. For a 2nd petition regarding the same record, the person shall pay to  
2 the clerk of circuit court a \$100 fee to be retained for the use of the county.

3 **SECTION 74.** 973.015 (1m) (a) 3. a. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 973.015 (1m) (a) 3. a. A Class H felony, if the person has, in his or her lifetime,  
5 been convicted of a prior felony offense, or if the felony is a violent offense, as  
6 defined in s. 301.048 (2) (bm), or is a violation of s. ~~940.32~~, 948.03 (2), (3), or (5) (a)  
7 1., 2., 3., or 4., or 948.095.

8 **SECTION 75.** 973.015 (1m) (a) 3. c., cg., cr. and d. and 4. of the statutes are  
9 created to read:

10 973.015 (1m) (a) 3. c. A crime for which the maximum period of imprisonment  
11 is more than 6 years.

12 cg. A violation of s. 940.32 or 943.14 or, if the court noted in the record that the  
13 property damaged was a business, a violation of s. 943.01.

14 cr. A violation of a temporary restraining order or injunction issued under s.  
15 813.12 (3) or (4).

16 d. A violation of chs. 341 to 348.

17 4. The court may order at the time of sentencing that the record is ineligible  
18 for expungement.

19 **SECTION 76.** 973.015 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 973.015 (1m) (b) ~~—A—~~ For purposes of par. (a), a person has successfully  
21 completed the sentence if the person has completed all periods of incarceration,  
22 parole, or extended supervision to which he or she was sentenced; the person has  
23 paid all fines, costs, fees, surcharges, and restitution assessed and has completed

1 any court-ordered community service; the person has not been convicted of a  
2 subsequent ~~offense~~ crime; and, if ~~on~~ probation was imposed, the probation has not  
3 been revoked ~~and the probationer has satisfied the conditions of probation~~. Upon  
4 ~~successful~~ completion of ~~the~~ a sentence involving incarceration or probation, the  
5 detaining or probationary authority shall issue and forward to the court of record a  
6 certificate of discharge ~~which shall be forwarded to the court of record and which~~  
7 ~~shall have the effect of expunging the record~~ that indicates whether the person  
8 successfully completed his or her sentence. If the court has ordered the record  
9 expunged under par. (a) 1. a. or 2. and the person has successfully completed the  
10 sentence, the person's record shall be expunged as ordered. If the person has been  
11 ~~imprisoned~~ incarcerated, the detaining authority shall also forward a copy of the  
12 certificate of discharge to the department.

13 **SECTION 77.** 973.015 (1m) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

14 973.015 (1m) (c) Upon receipt of a petition under par. (a) 1. b., the district  
15 attorney shall make a reasonable attempt to notify the victim, as defined in s.  
16 950.02 (4), of the petition. In the notice, the district attorney shall inform the victim  
17 that he or she may waive the hearing requirement and that, if waived, the court  
18 may review the petition without a hearing. The district attorney shall inform the  
19 victim of the manner in which he or she may provide written statements concerning  
20 the petition and, if the victim does not waive the hearing requirement, that he or  
21 she may appear at the hearing. If the victim waives the hearing requirement, the  
22 district attorney may inform the court that there is no objection to waiving the  
23 hearing requirement. Notwithstanding the confidentiality of victim address



1 information obtained under s. 302.113 (9g) (g) 3., a district attorney who is required  
2 to make a reasonable attempt to notify a victim under this paragraph may obtain  
3 from the clerk of the circuit court the victim address information that the victim  
4 provided to the clerk under s. 302.113 (9g) (g) 3.

5 **SECTION 78.** 973.015 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

6 973.015 (4) A record of a crime expunged under this section is not considered  
7 a conviction for employment purposes or for purposes of the issuance of a license, as  
8 defined in s. 111.32 (10), by a licensing agency, as defined in s. 111.32 (11). This  
9 subsection does not apply to the extent that its application conflicts with federal  
10 law.

11 **SECTION 79.** 973.25 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 973.25 (1) (a) “Certificate of qualification for employment” means a  
13 certificate issued by the council on offender employment that provides an offender  
14 with relief from a collateral sanction, except that it does not provide relief from s.  
15 48.685 (5m), 50.065 (4m), or 111.335 (3) ~~(a)~~ (ar), (b), (c), or (e) or (4) (h) or (i).

16 **SECTION 9351. Initial applicability; Other.**

17 (1) EXPUNGEMENT. The treatment of s. 973.015 (1m) (a) 3. a., c., cg., cr., and d.  
18 and 4., (b), and (c), the renumbering and amendment of s. 973.015 (1m) (a) 1., and  
19 the creation of s. 973.015 (1m) (a) 1. a. and b. first apply to any conviction for which  
20 sentencing has occurred but for which the record has not been ordered expunged on  
21 the effective date of this subsection.

22 **SECTION 9451. Effective dates; Other.**

23 (1) EXPUNGEMENT. The treatment of ss. 111.335 (3) (a), (ah), and (g) and (4)

(b), (c) 1. (intro.), (e), and (f) 1., 950.04 (1v) (g), 973.015 (1b), (1m) (a) 3. a., c., cg., cr., and d. and 4., (b), and (c), and (4), and 973.25 (1) (a), the renumbering and amendment of s. 973.015 (1m) (a) 1., the creation of s. 973.015 (1m) (a) 1. a. and b., and SECTION 9351 (1) of this act take effect on the first day of the 13th month beginning after publication.”.

**19.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

“**SECTION 80.** 16.311 of the statutes is created to read:

**16.311 Supplement for crime victim services grants.** (1) From the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (e), the secretary may supplement s. 20.455 (5) (km) if the secretary determines that the moneys received from the federal government for crime victim assistance under 34 USC 20103, together with the moneys received in each fiscal year from the crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452, are insufficient to provide grants to crime victim services organizations under s. 165.935. If the secretary determines under this subsection that moneys received are insufficient, the secretary shall determine the amount of the supplement, but the secretary may not determine an amount that is larger than the difference between \$44,500,000 and the sum of the moneys received in each fiscal year under 34 USC 20103 plus the moneys received in each fiscal year under s. 973.0452.

(2) In determining under sub. (1) whether the moneys received are insufficient, the secretary may consider any factor, including:

(a) The needs of rural and urban communities.

(b) The amount of funding that a crime victim services organization receives as a percentage of its operating budget from the state or federal government.

1 (c) The degree to which the services of a crime victim services organization  
2 are coordinated with other resources in the community and state.

3 (d) The degree to which the services of a crime victim services organization  
4 are provided either directly or through a contract, subcontract, service agreement,  
5 or collaborative agreement with other organizations, entities, or individuals.

6 **SECTION 81.** 20.455 (5) (gL) of the statutes is created to read:

7 20.455 (5) (gL) *Grants for crime victim services.* All moneys received from the  
8 crime victim services surcharge imposed under s. 973.0452 for the purpose of  
9 awarding grants under s. 165.935.

10 **SECTION 82.** 20.455 (5) (km) of the statutes is created to read:

11 20.455 (5) (km) *Grants for crime victim services supplement — state funds.* All  
12 moneys transferred from the appropriation account under s. 20.505 (1) (e) for the  
13 purposes of awarding grants under s. 165.935.

14 **SECTION 83.** 20.505 (1) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

15 20.505 (1) (e) *Supplement to crime victim services grant program.* A sum  
16 sufficient not to exceed in each fiscal year the amount determined under s. 16.311  
17 (1) to supplement the crime victim services grant program under s. 165.935 as  
18 provided in s. 16.311.

19 **SECTION 84.** 165.935 of the statutes is created to read:

20 **165.935 Crime victim services grants.** (1) The department of justice  
21 shall award grants to eligible organizations from the appropriations under s. 20.455  
22 (5) (gL) and (km) to provide services for crime victims. The department of justice  
23 shall award grants under this section in a manner consistent with 34 USC 20103.

24 (2) An organization is eligible for a grant under this section if the department

1 of justice determines that the organization meets the criteria under 34 USC 20103  
2 (b).

3 (3) The grant awards under this section may supplement federal funds under  
4 34 USC 20103 but may not replace the funds.

5 **SECTION 85.** 814.75 (5g) of the statutes is created to read:

6 814.75 (5g) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

7 **SECTION 86.** 814.76 (4p) of the statutes is created to read:

8 814.76 (4p) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

9 **SECTION 87.** 814.77 (3p) of the statutes is created to read:

10 814.77 (3p) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

11 **SECTION 88.** 814.78 (4p) of the statutes is created to read:

12 814.78 (4p) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

13 **SECTION 89.** 814.79 (3p) of the statutes is created to read:

14 814.79 (3p) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

15 **SECTION 90.** 814.80 (4p) of the statutes is created to read:

16 814.80 (4p) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

17 **SECTION 91.** 814.81 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

18 814.81 (4) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

19 **SECTION 92.** 973.0452 of the statutes is created to read:

20 **973.0452 Crime victim services surcharge. (1)** If a court imposes a  
21 sentence, places a person on probation, or imposes a forfeiture for a violation of a  
22 law or an ordinance, the court shall impose a crime victim services surcharge. A  
23 surcharge imposed under this subsection may not be waived, reduced, or forgiven

1 for any reason. The amount of the surcharge is the combined amount of the  
2 following:

3 (a) Forty percent of the fine or forfeiture imposed or \$40, whichever is greater,  
4 for each offense.

5 (b) For each misdemeanor or felony count for which a conviction occurred, \$50.

6 (2) (a) In this subsection, "civil offense" means an offense punishable by a  
7 forfeiture.

8 (b) If the court finds a person committed a civil offense on or after the effective  
9 date of this paragraph .... [LRB inserts date], in addition to any forfeiture the court  
10 imposes, the court shall impose a crime victim services surcharge that is equal to  
11 the amounts under sub. (1) (a) and (b) if all of the following apply:

12 1. The person is charged with one or more misdemeanors or felonies in a  
13 complaint.

14 2. As a result of the complaint being amended, the person is charged with a  
15 civil offense in lieu of one of those misdemeanors or felonies.

16 (3) Notwithstanding sub. (1), the court may not impose the surcharge under  
17 sub. (1) for a violation of state laws or municipal or county ordinances involving  
18 nonmoving traffic violations.

19 (4) (a) If a court of record imposes the surcharge under sub. (1), the clerk of  
20 the court shall determine the amount that is due and collect and transmit the  
21 amount to the county treasurer as provided in s. 59.40 (2) (m). The county  
22 treasurer shall make payment to the secretary of administration as provided in s.  
23 59.25 (3) (f) 2.

24 (b) If a municipal court imposes the surcharge under sub. (1), the court shall

1 determine the amount due and collect and transmit the amount to the treasurer of  
2 the county, city, town, or village, and the treasurer shall make payment to the  
3 secretary of administration as provided in s. 66.0114 (1) (bm).

4 (5) If an inmate in a state prison or a person sentenced to a state prison has  
5 not paid the surcharge under sub. (1), the department shall assess and collect the  
6 amount owed from the inmate's wages or other moneys. Any amount collected  
7 under this subsection shall be transmitted to the secretary of administration.

8 **SECTION 9351. Initial applicability; Other.**

9 (1) CRIME VICTIM SERVICES SURCHARGE. The treatment of s. 973.0452 (1) first  
10 applies to sentences, periods of probation, or civil forfeitures imposed on the  
11 effective date of this subsection.”.

12 **20.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

13 “**SECTION 93.** 756.04 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 756.04 (2) (b) Each year, on a date agreed upon with the office of the director  
15 of state courts, the department of transportation shall compile a list that includes  
16 the name, address, county, date of birth, race, gender, identification number and  
17 renewal date of each person residing in the state who is licensed as a motor vehicle  
18 operator under ch. 343 or who has received an identification card under s. 343.50 or  
19 343.51, and social security number, as ~~permitted~~ allowed by law and any record  
20 sharing agreement between the department of transportation and the office of the  
21 director of state courts. The office of the director of state courts shall establish the  
22 format of the list by agreement with the department of transportation. The  
23 department of transportation shall transmit the list without charge to the office of

1 the director of state courts, ~~without charge.~~ and to the clerks of court for the district  
2 courts of the United States within this state. If the department of transportation  
3 does not have a record sharing agreement with the clerk of court for a district court  
4 that requires the clerk of court to keep prospective jurors' identification numbers,  
5 renewal dates, and social security numbers confidential and secure from  
6 unauthorized access, the department of transportation shall redact that  
7 information from the list the department of transportation transmits to the clerk of  
8 court.

9 **SECTION 94.** 756.04 (2) (c) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 756.04 (2) (c) (intro.) The office of the director of state courts ~~may~~ shall use  
11 ~~any~~ all of the following lists in addition to the list provided by the department of  
12 transportation under par. (b) in order to create the master list of potential jurors  
13 compiled under par. (a). ~~The director may each year request any of the following~~  
14 ~~information from the custodians of that information:~~

15 **SECTION 95.** 756.04 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 756.04 (2) (d) ~~If the records listed in par. (c) are requested, the director of state~~  
17 ~~courts may enter into a record sharing agreement with the custodian of the records.~~  
18 ~~Any record sharing agreement shall be in writing for a prescribed period of time~~  
19 ~~and~~ Each year, on a date agreed upon with the office of the director of state courts,  
20 each custodian of records described in par. (c) shall compile the list maintained by  
21 that custodian, as allowed by law and any record sharing agreement between the  
22 custodian and the office of the director of state courts. The office of the director of  
23 state courts shall establish the format of each list by agreement with the custodian  
24 that maintains the list, which shall identify data that would allow for a match of

1 personally identifiable information on the list ~~maintained by that custodian~~ with  
2 personally identifiable information in the master list of potential jurors to the  
3 extent required to identify duplicate names and to determine current addresses of  
4 prospective jurors. ~~Any list provided under par. (e)~~ The lists shall contain no data  
5 other than the data provided in par. (b). ~~The agreement shall establish the format~~  
6 ~~of the list and date of transmission of the list.~~ Each custodian shall transmit the list  
7 maintained by that custodian without charge to the office of the director of state  
8 courts.”.

9 **21.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

10 “**SECTION 96.** 16.967 (7) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

11 16.967 (7) (am) 2. The minimum amount of a grant under this paragraph is  
12 determined by subtracting the amount of fees that the county retained under s.  
13 59.72 (5) (b) in the preceding fiscal year from ~~\$100,000~~ \$140,000. The department  
14 is not required to award a grant to a county that retained at least ~~\$100,000~~  
15 \$140,000 in fees under s. 59.72 (5) (b) in the preceding fiscal year.

16 **SECTION 97.** 16.967 (7) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 16.967 (7) (b) In addition to any other grant ~~received~~ awarded under this  
18 subsection, the department may award a grant to any county in an amount not less  
19 than ~~\$1,000~~ \$5,000 per year to be used for the training and education of county  
20 employees for the design, development, and implementation of a land information  
21 system.

22 **SECTION 98.** 16.967 (7m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 16.967 (7m) (b) If the department determines that a county has violated s.



1 59.72, the department shall suspend the eligibility of the county to receive grants  
2 under sub. (7) and, after June 30, 2017, the county shall be eligible to retain only \$6  
3 of the portion of each fee submitted to the department under s. 59.72 (5) (a). After  
4 not less than one year, if the department determines that the county has resolved  
5 the violation, the department may reinstate the eligibility of the county for grants  
6 under sub. (7) and for retaining ~~\$8~~ of the full amount allowed to be retained from  
7 the portion of each fee submitted to the department under s. 59.72 (5) (a).

8 **SECTION 99.** 20.505 (1) (uc) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 20.505 (1) (uc) *Land information program; local aids.* From the land  
10 information fund, all moneys received by the department under s. 59.72 (5) (a),  
11 except moneys appropriated and expended by June 30 under par. (ub), for aids to  
12 counties under s. 16.967 (7).

13 **SECTION 100.** 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

14 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. Subject to s. 59.72 (5), for recording any instrument that is  
15 entitled to be recorded in the office of the register of deeds, ~~\$30~~ \$45, except that no  
16 fee may be collected for recording a change of address that is exempt from a filing  
17 fee under s. 185.83 (1) (b) or 193.111 (1) (b).

18 **SECTION 101.** 59.43 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 59.43 (2) (e) Subject to s. 59.72 (5), for filing any instrument ~~which~~ that is  
20 entitled to be filed in the office of register of deeds and for which no other specific  
21 fee is specified, ~~\$30~~ \$45.

22 **SECTION 102.** 59.72 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 59.72 (5) (a) Before the 16th day of each month a register of deeds shall  
24 submit to the department of administration ~~\$15~~ \$30 from the fee for recording or

1 filing each instrument that is recorded or filed under s. 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. or (e), less  
2 any amount retained by the county under par. (b).

3 **SECTION 103.** 59.72 (5) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 59.72 (5) (b) (intro.) Except as provided in s. 16.967 (7m), a county may retain  
5 \$8 ~~\$15~~ of the portion of each fee submitted to the department of administration  
6 under par. (a) from the fee for recording or filing each instrument that is recorded or  
7 filed under s. 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. or (e) if all of the following conditions are met:

8 **SECTION 9201. Fiscal changes; Administration.**

9 (1) LAND INFORMATION PROGRAM FUNDING. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3)  
10 for the appropriation to the department of administration under s. 20.505 (1) (uc),  
11 the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$8,294,100 and the dollar  
12 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$8,294,100 for the purpose for which  
13 the appropriation is made.

14 **SECTION 9330. Initial applicability; Local Government.**

15 (1) REGISTER OF DEEDS RECORDING FEES; LAND INFORMATION PROGRAM. The  
16 treatment of ss. 16.967 (7m) (b), 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. and (e), and 59.72 (5) (a) and (b)  
17 (intro.) first applies to an instrument that is submitted for recording or filing on the  
18 effective date of this subsection.

19 **SECTION 9430. Effective dates; Local Government.**

20 (1) REGISTER OF DEEDS RECORDING FEES; LAND INFORMATION PROGRAM. The  
21 treatment of ss. 16.967 (7m) (b), 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. and (e), and 59.72 (5) (a) and (b)  
22 (intro.) and SECTION 9330 (1) of this act take effect on the first day of the 4th month  
23 beginning after publication.”.

24 **22.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

1           **“SECTION 104.** 20.437 (1) (cj) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           20.437 (1) (cj) *Community youth and family aids.* The amounts in the  
3           schedule for the improvement and provision of community-based juvenile  
4           delinquency-related services under s. 48.526 and juvenile correctional services  
5           under s. 301.26 and for reimbursement to counties having a population of less than  
6           750,000 for the cost of court attached intake services as provided in s. 938.06 (4).  
7           Disbursements may be made from this appropriation account under s. 49.32 (2).  
8           Refunds received relating to payments made under s. 49.32 (2) shall be returned to  
9           this appropriation account. Notwithstanding ss. 20.001 (3) (a) and 20.002 (1), the  
10          department of children and families may transfer moneys under this paragraph  
11          between fiscal years. Except for moneys authorized to be carried forward under s.  
12          48.526 (3) (dm) or for transfer under s. 48.526 (3) (e), all moneys from this  
13          paragraph allocated under s. 48.526 (3) and not spent or encumbered by counties by  
14          December 31 of each year shall lapse into the general fund on the succeeding  
15          January 1. The joint committee on finance may transfer additional moneys to the  
16          next calendar year.

17          **SECTION 105.** 20.437 (1) (cm) of the statutes is amended to read:

18          20.437 (1) (cm) ~~*Community intervention program*~~ *Youth justice system*  
19          *improvement program.* The amounts in the schedule for the ~~community~~  
20          ~~intervention program~~ youth justice system improvement program under s. 48.528.

21          **SECTION 106.** 20.437 (1) (kp) of the statutes is created to read:

22          20.437 (1) (kp) *Youth aids funding for the youth justice system improvement*  
23          *program.* All moneys transferred from the appropriation account under par. (cj), as

provided under s. 48.526 (3) (e), for the youth justice system improvement program under s. 48.528.

**SECTION 107.** 48.526 (3) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.526 (3) (e) The department may ~~carry forward \$500,000 or~~ transfer to the appropriation account under s. 20.437 (1) (kp) 10 percent of its funds allocated under this subsection and not ~~encumbered~~ expended or carried forward under par. (dm) ~~by counties by December 31, whichever is greater, to the next 2 calendar years. The department may transfer moneys from or within s. 20.437 (1) (ej) or (q) to accomplish this purpose. The department may allocate these transferred moneys to counties with persistently high rates of juvenile arrests for serious offenses during the next 2 calendar years to improve community based juvenile delinquency related services, as defined in s. 46.011 (1e). The allocation does not affect a county's base allocation.~~

**SECTION 108.** 48.526 (3) (em) of the statutes is repealed.

**SECTION 109.** 48.526 (7) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.526 (7) ALLOCATIONS OF FUNDS. (intro.) Within the limits of the availability of the appropriations under s. 20.437 (1) (cj), (o), and (q), the department shall allocate funds for community youth and family aids for the period beginning on July 1, ~~2021~~ 2025, and ending on June 30, ~~2023 and for the 2023 fiscal biennium~~ 2027, as provided in this subsection to county departments under ss. 46.215, 46.22, and 46.23 as follows:

**SECTION 110.** 48.526 (7) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.526 (7) (a) For community youth and family aids under this section, amounts not to exceed ~~\$47,740,750~~ \$48,089,350 for the last 6 months of ~~2023~~,

1     ~~\$95,481,500~~ 2025, \$101,138,500 for ~~2024~~ 2026, and ~~\$47,740,750~~ \$51,610,850 for the  
2     first 6 months of ~~2025~~ 2027.

3           **SECTION 111.** 48.526 (7) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

4           48.526 (7) (b) (intro.) Of the amounts specified in par. (a), the department  
5     shall allocate \$2,000,000 for the last 6 months of ~~2023~~ 2025, \$4,000,000 for ~~2024~~  
6     2026, and \$2,000,000 for the first 6 months of ~~2025~~ 2027 to counties based on each  
7     of the following factors weighted equally:

8           **SECTION 112.** 48.526 (7) (bm) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           48.526 (7) (bm) Of the amounts specified in par. (a), the department shall  
10    allocate \$6,250,000 for the last 6 months of ~~2023~~ 2025, \$12,500,000 for ~~2024~~ 2026,  
11    and \$6,250,000 for the first 6 months of ~~2025~~ 2027 to counties based on each  
12    county's proportion of the number of juveniles statewide who are placed in a  
13    juvenile correctional facility or a secured residential care center for children and  
14    youth during the most recent 3-year period for which that information is available.

15          **SECTION 113.** 48.526 (7) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

16          48.526 (7) (c) Of the amounts specified in par. (a), the department shall  
17    allocate \$1,053,200 for the last 6 months of ~~2023~~ 2025, \$2,106,500 for ~~2024~~ 2026,  
18    and \$1,053,300 for the first 6 months of ~~2025~~ 2027 to counties based on each of the  
19    factors specified in par. (b) 1. to 3. weighted equally, except that no county may  
20    receive an allocation under this paragraph that is less than 93 percent nor more  
21    than 115 percent of the amount that the county would have received under this  
22    paragraph if the allocation had been distributed only on the basis of the factor  
23    specified in par. (b) 3.

24          **SECTION 114.** 48.526 (7) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

1       **SECTION 115.** 48.526 (7) (h) of the statutes is repealed.

2       **SECTION 116.** 48.526 (8) of the statutes is repealed.

3       **SECTION 117.** 48.528 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

4       **48.528 Youth justice system improvement program.** From the  
5       appropriations under s. 20.437 (1) (cm) and (kp), in each fiscal year, the department  
6       may expend funds for the following purposes:

7       (1) To fund programs that enhance diversion, prevention, or early  
8       intervention to reduce the number of justice-involved youth, as well as programs  
9       that promote successful outcomes for all justice-involved youth. To determine  
10      eligibility for a payment under this subsection, the department shall require a  
11      county or other provider to submit a plan for the expenditure of the payment.

12      (2) To address emergencies related to community youth and family aids under  
13      s. 48.526.

14      (3) To fund activities required of the department under s. 48.526 (1).”.

15      **23.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

16      **“SECTION 9241. Fiscal changes; Supreme Court.**

17      (1) SUPPORT FOR NEW CIRCUIT COURT BRANCHES. In the schedule under s.  
18      20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the supreme court under s. 20.680 (2) (j), the  
19      dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$64,700 to support information  
20      technology and computer maintenance supplies and services for 2 additional circuit  
21      court branches in Brown County.”.

22      **24.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

23      **“SECTION 118.** 49.1385 of the statutes is amended to read:

1           **49.1385 Grants for services for homeless and runaway youth.** The  
2 department may award not more than ~~\$400,000~~ \$2,872,800 in each fiscal year in  
3 grants to support programs that provide services for homeless and runaway youth.

4           **SECTION 9206. Fiscal changes; Children and Families.**

5           (1) GRANTS FOR SERVICES FOR HOMELESS AND RUNAWAY YOUTH. In the  
6 schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of children and  
7 families under s. 20.437 (2) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is  
8 increased by \$3,758,700 to increase funding for services for homeless and runaway  
9 youths. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department  
10 of children and families under s. 20.437 (2) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year  
11 2026-27 is increased by \$3,787,300 to increase funding for services for homeless and  
12 runaway youths.”.

13           **25.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

14           **“SECTION 9106. Nonstatutory provisions; Children and Families.**

15           (1) JUVENILE JUSTICE REFORM REVIEW COMMITTEE.

16           (a) There is created in the department of children and families a juvenile  
17 justice reform review committee with members appointed by the governor.

18           (b) The juvenile justice reform review committee shall study and, prior to  
19 September 15, 2026, provide recommendations to the department of children and  
20 families and the department of corrections on how to do all of the following:

- 21           1. Increase the minimum age of delinquency.
- 22           2. Eliminate original adult court jurisdiction over juveniles under s. 938.183.
- 23           3. Modify the waiver procedure for adult court jurisdiction over juveniles and

1 incorporate offenses currently subject to original adult court jurisdiction into the  
2 waiver procedure.

3 4. Eliminate the serious juvenile offender program under s. 938.538 and  
4 create extended juvenile court jurisdiction with a blended juvenile and adult  
5 sentence structure for certain juvenile offenders.

6 5. Prohibit placement of a juvenile in a juvenile detention facility for a status  
7 offense and limit sanctions and short-term holds in a juvenile detention facility to  
8 cases where there is a public safety risk.

9 6. Sunset long-term post-disposition programs at juvenile detention facilities.

10 7. Create a sentence adjustment procedure for youthful offenders.

11 8. Conform with the U.S. Constitution the statutes that mandate imposing  
12 sentences of life imprisonment without parole or extended supervision to minors.

13 (c) In submitting information under s. 16.42 (1) for purposes of the 2027-29  
14 biennial budget bill, the department of children and families and the department of  
15 corrections shall each include a request to implement the juvenile justice reform  
16 review committee's recommendations.

17 (d) The juvenile justice reform review committee terminates on September 15,  
18 2026.”.

19 **26.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

20 “**SECTION 119.** 301.26 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 301.26 (4) (b) Assessment of costs under par. (a) shall be made periodically on  
22 the basis of the per person per day cost estimate specified in par. (d) ~~2,~~ 3, and 4.  
23 Except as provided in pars. (bm), (c), and (cm), liability shall apply to county



1 departments under s. 46.215, 46.22, or 46.23 in the county of the court exercising  
2 jurisdiction under ch. 938 for each person receiving services from the department of  
3 corrections under s. 938.183 or 938.34 or the department of health services under s.  
4 46.057 or 51.35 (3). Except as provided in pars. (bm), (c), and (cm), in multicounty  
5 court jurisdictions, the county of residency within the jurisdiction shall be liable for  
6 costs under this subsection. Assessment of costs under par. (a) shall also be made  
7 according to the general placement type or level of care provided, as defined by the  
8 department, and prorated according to the ratio of the amount designated under s.  
9 48.526 (3) (c) to the total applicable estimated costs of care, services, and supplies  
10 provided by the department of corrections under ss. 938.183 and 938.34 and the  
11 department of health services under s. 46.057 or 51.35 (3).

12 **SECTION 120.** 301.26 (4) (cm) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

13 301.26 (4) (cm) 3. The per person daily reimbursement rate for juvenile  
14 correctional services under this paragraph shall be equal to the per person daily  
15 cost assessment to counties under par. (d) ~~2~~, 3., and 4. for juvenile correctional  
16 services.

17 **SECTION 121.** 301.26 (4) (cx) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 301.26 (4) (cx) If, notwithstanding ss. 16.50 (2), 16.52, 20.002 (11), and  
19 20.903, there is a deficit in the appropriation account under s. 20.410 (3) (hm) at the  
20 close of a fiscal biennium, the governor shall, to address that deficit, increase each  
21 of the rates specified under s. 301.26 (4) (d) ~~2~~ and 3. for care in a Type 1 juvenile  
22 correctional facility and for care for juveniles transferred from a correctional  
23 institution by \$6, in addition to any increase due to actual costs, in the executive

1 budget bill for each fiscal biennium, until the deficit under s. 20.410 (3) (hm) is  
2 eliminated.

3 **SECTION 122.** 301.26 (4) (d) 2. of the statutes is repealed.

4 **SECTION 123.** 301.26 (4) (d) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 301.26 (4) (d) 3. Beginning on July 1, ~~2024~~ 2025, and ending on June 30, ~~2025~~  
6 2027, the per person daily cost assessment to counties shall be, for care in a Type 1  
7 juvenile correctional facility, as defined in s. 938.02 (19), \$1,268 and, for care for  
8 juveniles transferred from a juvenile correctional institution under s. 51.35 (3),  
9 \$1,268.

10 **SECTION 124.** 938.357 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 938.357 (3) (d) A juvenile who is placed in a Type 1 juvenile correctional  
12 facility under par. (b) or (c) is the financial responsibility of the county department  
13 of the county where the juvenile was adjudicated delinquent. The county  
14 department shall reimburse the department of corrections at the rate specified  
15 under s. 301.26 (4) (d) ~~2. or 3., whichever is applicable,~~ for the cost of a juvenile's  
16 care while placed in a Type 1 juvenile correctional facility other than the Mendota  
17 juvenile treatment center. The county department shall reimburse the department  
18 of health services at a rate specified by that department for the cost of a juvenile's  
19 care while placed at the Mendota juvenile treatment center and these payments  
20 shall be deposited in the appropriation account under s. 20.435 (2) (gk).".

21 **27.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

22 **"SECTION 125.** 20.410 (3) (ab) of the statutes is created to read:

23 20.410 (3) (ab) *Contract payments for placement of juveniles.* A sum  
24 sufficient, not to exceed \$20,000,000 in each fiscal year, for payments made in

1 accordance with contracts for placement of juveniles who are under the supervision  
2 of the department of corrections under ch. 938.

3 **SECTION 126.** 20.410 (3) (ab) of the statutes, as created by 2025 Wisconsin Act  
4 ... (this act), is repealed.

5 **SECTION 9408. Effective dates; Corrections.**

6 (1) CONTRACT PAYMENTS FOR PLACEMENT OF JUVENILES. The repeal of s.  
7 20.410 (3) (ab) takes effect on July 1, 2029.”.

8 **28.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

9 “**SECTION 127.** 46.057 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 46.057 (2) From the appropriation account under s. 20.410 (3) (ba) or (hm),  
11 the department of corrections shall reimburse the department of health services for  
12 the cost of providing services for juveniles who are under the supervision of the  
13 department of corrections and are placed at the Mendota juvenile treatment center  
14 at a per person daily cost specified by the department of health services. The  
15 department of health services may charge the department of corrections not more  
16 than the actual cost of providing those services.”.

17 **29.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

18 “**SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

19 (1) ALTERNATIVES TO REVOCATION EXPANSION. In the schedule under s. 20.005  
20 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (b), the  
21 dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$2,987,200 to expand by 100  
22 beds the available options for residential community alternatives to revocation of  
23 probation, parole, and extended supervision. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for

1 the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (b), the dollar  
2 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$5,974,400 to fund the expansion  
3 under this subsection.”.

4 **30.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

5 “**SECTION 128.** 302.11 (7) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 302.11 (7) (am) The reviewing authority may return a parolee released under  
7 sub. (1) or (1g) (b) or s. 304.02 or 304.06 (1) to prison for a period up to the  
8 remainder of the sentence for a violation of the conditions of parole. The remainder  
9 of the sentence is the entire sentence, less time served in custody prior to parole and  
10 less any earned compliance credit under s. 973.156. The revocation order shall  
11 provide the parolee with credit in accordance with ss. 304.072 and 973.155.

12 **SECTION 129.** 302.113 (9) (ag) of the statutes is renumbered 302.113 (9) (ag)  
13 (intro.) and amended to read:

14 302.113 (9) (ag) (intro.) In this subsection “~~reviewing~~:

15 1. “Reviewing authority” means the division of hearings and appeals in the  
16 department of administration, upon proper notice and hearing, or the department  
17 of corrections, if the person on extended supervision waives a hearing.

18 **SECTION 130.** 302.113 (9) (am) of the statutes is renumbered 302.113 (9) (am)  
19 1. and amended to read:

20 302.113 (9) (am) 1. If a person released to extended supervision under this  
21 section violates a condition of extended supervision, the reviewing authority may  
22 revoke the extended supervision of the person. If the extended supervision of the  
23 person is revoked, the reviewing authority shall order the person to be returned to

1 prison for any specified period of time that does not exceed the time remaining on  
2 the bifurcated sentence. ~~The time~~

3 (ag) 2. “Time remaining on the bifurcated sentence is” means the total length  
4 of the bifurcated sentence, less time served by the person in confinement under the  
5 sentence before release to extended supervision under sub. (2), less any earned  
6 compliance credit under s. 973.156, and less all time served in confinement for  
7 previous revocations of extended supervision under the sentence.

8 (am) 2. The order returning a person to prison under this paragraph shall  
9 provide the person whose extended supervision was revoked with credit in  
10 accordance with ss. 304.072 and 973.155.

11 **SECTION 131.** 302.113 (9) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 302.113 (9) (b) A person who is returned to prison after revocation of extended  
13 supervision shall be incarcerated for the entire period of time specified by the order  
14 under par. (am) 1. The period of time specified under par. (am) 1. may be extended  
15 in accordance with sub. (3). If a person is returned to prison under par. (am) 1. for  
16 a period of time that is less than the time remaining on the bifurcated sentence, the  
17 person shall be released to extended supervision after he or she has served the  
18 period of time specified by the order under par. (am) 1. and any periods of extension  
19 imposed in accordance with sub. (3).

20 **SECTION 132.** 302.113 (9) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 302.113 (9) (c) A person who is subsequently released to extended supervision  
22 after service of the period of time specified by the order under par. (am) 1. is subject  
23 to all conditions and rules under sub. (7) and, if applicable, sub. (7m) until the

1 expiration of the time remaining ~~extended supervision portion of~~ on the bifurcated  
2 sentence. ~~The remaining extended supervision portion of the bifurcated sentence is~~  
3 ~~the total length of the bifurcated sentence, less the time served by the person in~~  
4 ~~confinement under the bifurcated sentence before release to extended supervision~~  
5 ~~under sub. (2) and less all time served in confinement for previous revocations of~~  
6 ~~extended supervision under the bifurcated sentence.~~

7 **SECTION 133.** 302.114 (9) (ag) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 302.114 **(9)** (ag) In this subsection “reviewing authority” has the meaning  
9 given in s. 302.113 (9) (ag) 1.

10 **SECTION 134.** 304.072 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 304.072 **(4)** The sentence of a revoked parolee or person on extended  
12 supervision resumes running on the day he or she is received at a correctional  
13 institution subject to sentence credit for the period of custody in a jail, correctional  
14 institution or any other detention facility pending revocation according to the terms  
15 of s. 973.155 and subject to earned compliance credit under s. 973.156.

16 **SECTION 135.** 973.15 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 973.15 **(5)** A convicted offender who is made available to another jurisdiction  
18 under ch. 976 or in any other lawful manner shall be credited with service of his or  
19 her Wisconsin sentence or commitment under the terms of ~~s.~~ ss. 973.155 and  
20 973.156 for the duration of custody in the other jurisdiction.

21 **SECTION 136.** 973.156 of the statutes is created to read:

22 **973.156 Earned compliance credit.** (1) In this section, “qualifying  
23 offense” means a crime other than a violation of ch. 940 or s. 948.02, 948.025,

1 948.03, 948.05, 948.051, 948.055, 948.06, 948.07, 948.075, 948.08, 948.085, or  
2 948.095.

3 (2) Upon the revocation of extended supervision under s. 302.113 (9) or parole  
4 under s. 302.11 (7), a person shall be given earned compliance credit toward the  
5 service of his or her sentence for a qualifying offense for each day that the person  
6 spent on extended supervision or parole without violating a condition or rule of  
7 extended supervision or parole prior to the violation that resulted in the revocation.

8 (3) Subsection (2) does not apply to a person who is required to register under  
9 s. 301.45.

10 (4) If a person is serving more than one sentence, earned compliance credit  
11 under sub. (2) is earned only for the time spent on extended supervision or parole  
12 for qualifying offenses.

13 (5) The amount of the earned compliance credit under sub. (2) shall be  
14 calculated and applied by the appropriate reviewing authority under s. 302.11 (7)  
15 (am) or 302.113 (9) (am) 1.

16 **SECTION 9108. Nonstatutory provisions; Corrections.**

17 (1) EARNED COMPLIANCE CREDIT. A person who is serving a sentence for a  
18 violation other than a crime specified in ch. 940 or s. 948.02, 948.025, 948.03,  
19 948.05, 948.051, 948.055, 948.06, 948.07, 948.075, 948.08, 948.085, or 948.095 and  
20 who is in custody upon revocation of extended supervision or parole on the effective  
21 date of this subsection may petition the department of corrections to be given credit  
22 under s. 973.156. Upon proper verification of the facts alleged in the petition, credit  
23 under s. 973.156 shall be applied retroactively to the person. If the department of

corrections is unable to determine whether credit under s. 973.156 should be given, or otherwise refuses to award retroactive credit, the person may petition the sentencing court for relief. This subsection applies regardless of the date the person was sentenced. A person who is required to register under s. 301.45 is not eligible to receive credit under this subsection.”.

**31.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

“**SECTION 137.** 20.005 (3) (schedule) of the statutes: at the appropriate place, insert the following amounts for the purposes indicated:

	2025-26	2026-27
--	---------	---------

**20.680 Supreme court**

(4) OFFICE OF THE MARSHALS OF THE SUPREME COURT

(a)	General program operations	GPR	A	1,184,300	1,092,600
-----	----------------------------	-----	---	-----------	-----------

**SECTION 138.** 20.680 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

20.680 (4) OFFICE OF THE MARSHALS OF THE SUPREME COURT. (a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for the general program operations of the office of the marshals of the supreme court.

**SECTION 139.** 40.02 (17) (o) of the statutes is created to read:

40.02 (17) (o) Notwithstanding par. (d), each participant who is a marshal of the supreme court and who is classified as a protective occupation participant shall be granted creditable service as a protective occupation participant for all covered service while a marshal of the supreme court that was earned on or after the effective date of this paragraph .... [LRB inserts date], but may not be granted



1     creditable service as a protective occupation participant for any covered service as  
2     an employee of the supreme court that was not as a protective occupation  
3     participant and that was earned before the effective date of this paragraph .... [LRB  
4     inserts date].

5           **SECTION 140.** 40.02 (48) (am) 24. of the statutes is created to read:

6           40.02 (48) (am) 24. A marshal of the supreme court.

7           **SECTION 141.** 40.02 (48) (b) 6. of the statutes is created to read:

8           40.02 (48) (b) 6. A “marshal of the supreme court” is an individual employed  
9     by the office of the marshals of the supreme court under s. 758.195 and whose  
10    principal duties are detecting and preventing crime and enforcing laws or  
11    ordinances of this state.

12          **SECTION 142.** 40.02 (48) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

13          40.02 (48) (c) In s. 40.65, “protective occupation participant” means a  
14    participating employee who is a police officer, fire fighter, an individual determined  
15    by a participating employer under par. (a) or (bm) to be a protective occupation  
16    participant, county undersheriff, deputy sheriff, county jailer who is certified as a  
17    protective occupation participant, state probation and parole officer, county traffic  
18    police officer, conservation warden, state forest ranger, field conservation employee  
19    of the department of natural resources who is subject to call for forest fire control or  
20    warden duty, member of the state traffic patrol, state motor vehicle inspector,  
21    University of Wisconsin System full-time police officer, guard or any other employee  
22    whose principal duties are supervision and discipline of inmates at a state penal  
23    institution, special agent employed by the department of revenue who is authorized  
24    to act under s. 73.031, person employed under s. 60.553 (1), 61.66 (1), or 62.13 (2e)

1 (a), ~~or~~ special criminal investigation agent employed by the department of justice, or  
2 marshal of the supreme court.

3 **SECTION 143.** 40.65 (4y) of the statutes is created to read:

4 40.65 (4y) A marshal of the supreme court under s. 758.195 who becomes a  
5 protective occupation participant on or after the effective date of this subsection ....  
6 [LRB inserts date], is not entitled to a duty disability benefit under this section for  
7 an injury or disease occurring before the effective date of this subsection .... [LRB  
8 inserts date].

9 **SECTION 144.** 165.85 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 165.85 (2) (c) “Law enforcement officer” means any person employed by the  
11 state or any political subdivision of the state, for the purpose of detecting and  
12 preventing crime and enforcing laws or ordinances and who is authorized to make  
13 arrests for violations of the laws or ordinances that the person is employed and  
14 sworn to enforce. “Law enforcement officer” includes a marshal of the supreme  
15 court under s. 758.195 and a university police officer, as defined in s. 175.42 (1) (b).

16 **SECTION 145.** 758.195 of the statutes is created to read:

17 **758.195 Office of the marshals of the supreme court. (1) CREATION.**

18 There is created the office of the marshals of the supreme court, under the direction  
19 and supervision of the chief marshal of the supreme court, which shall consist of all  
20 of the following personnel:

21 (a) The chief marshal of the supreme court.

22 (b) One deputy chief marshal of the supreme court.

23 (c) Deputy marshals of the supreme court.

1 (d) Administrative support personnel.

2 (2) LAW ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY. (a) The office of the marshals of the  
3 supreme court is a law enforcement agency, as defined in s. 165.85 (2) (bv).

4 (b) Marshals of the supreme court are law enforcement officers, are employed  
5 for the purpose of detecting and preventing crime and enforcing laws or ordinances,  
6 and are authorized to make arrests for violations of the laws or ordinances of this  
7 state. Marshals of the supreme court shall meet the requirements of s. 165.85 (4)  
8 (a) 2. and 7. a., and shall agree to accept the duties of a law enforcement officer  
9 under the laws of this state. Marshals of the supreme court shall have statewide  
10 jurisdiction.

11 (c) Marshals of the supreme court shall have concurrent police power with  
12 other authorized peace officers over any jurisdiction in which the marshal performs  
13 his or her duties. Such concurrent police authority may not be construed to reduce  
14 or lessen the authority of the police power of the community or communities in  
15 which a marshal may perform his or her duties. Marshals of the supreme court  
16 shall cooperate with and be responsive to the local police authorities as they meet  
17 and exercise their statutory responsibilities.

18 (d) Marshals of the supreme court shall meet the requirements established by  
19 the law enforcement standards board for officer certification, police pursuit,  
20 recruitment, and firearms training and comply with any other statutory  
21 requirements applicable to a law enforcement agency.

22 (3) POWERS. The office of the marshals of the supreme court may provide  
23 police services to the state court system, with statewide jurisdiction; provide

1 protective services for the supreme court justices and their offices; provide security  
2 assessments for the justices, judges, and facilities of the state court system; and  
3 provide safety and security support services and advanced security planning for  
4 circuit court proceedings.

5 **SECTION 146.** 939.22 (22) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 939.22 (22) “Peace officer” means any person vested by law with a duty to  
7 maintain public order or to make arrests for crime, whether that duty extends to all  
8 crimes or is limited to specific crimes. “Peace officer” includes a commission  
9 warden, a marshal of the supreme court under s. 758.195, and a university police  
10 officer, as defined in s. 175.42 (1) (b).

11 **SECTION 9141. Nonstatutory provisions; Supreme Court.**

12 (1) OFFICE OF THE MARSHALS OF THE SUPREME COURT. The authorized FTE  
13 positions for the supreme court are increased by 8.0 GPR law enforcement officer  
14 positions and 0.4 GPR civilian support staff position, to be funded from the  
15 appropriation under s. 20.680 (4) (a).”.

16 **32.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

17 “**SECTION 147.** 20.437 (1) (cL) of the statutes is created to read:

18 20.437 (1) (cL) *Seventeen-year-old juvenile justice aids.* A sum sufficient for  
19 the purposes under s. 48.5275.

20 **SECTION 148.** 48.02 (1d) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 48.02 (1d) “Adult” means a person who is 18 years of age or older, ~~except that~~  
22 ~~for purposes of investigating or prosecuting a person who is alleged to have violated~~

~~any state or federal criminal law or any civil law or municipal ordinance, “adult” means a person who has attained 17 years of age.~~

**SECTION 149.** 48.02 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.02 (2) “Child,” when used without further qualification, means a person who is less than 18 years of age, ~~except that for purposes of investigating or prosecuting a person who is alleged to have violated a state or federal criminal law or any civil law or municipal ordinance, “child” does not include a person who has attained 17 years of age.~~

**SECTION 150.** Subchapter IX (title) of chapter 48 [precedes 48.44] of the statutes is amended to read:

## **CHAPTER 48**

### **SUBCHAPTER IX**

#### **JURISDICTION OVER PERSON ~~17~~**

#### **~~OR OLDER~~ ADULTS**

**SECTION 151.** 48.44 of the statutes is amended to read:

**48.44 Jurisdiction over persons ~~17 or older~~ adults.** The court has jurisdiction over ~~persons 17 years of age or older~~ adults as provided under ss. 48.133, 48.355 (4), 48.357 (6), 48.365 (5), and 48.45 and as otherwise specifically provided in this chapter.

**SECTION 152.** 48.45 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.45 (1) (a) If in the hearing of a case of a child alleged to be in a condition described in s. 48.13 it appears that any ~~person 17 years of age or older~~ adult has been guilty of contributing to, encouraging, or tending to cause by any act or

1 omission,~~such~~ that condition of the child, the judge may make orders with respect  
2 to the conduct of ~~such~~ that person in his or her relationship to the child, including  
3 orders determining the ability of the person to provide for the maintenance or care  
4 of the child and directing when, how, and from where funds for the maintenance or  
5 care shall be paid.

6 **SECTION 153.** 48.45 (1) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 48.45 (1) (am) If in the hearing of a case of an unborn child and the unborn  
8 child's expectant mother alleged to be in a condition described in s. 48.133 it  
9 appears that any ~~person 17 years of age or over~~ adult has been guilty of contributing  
10 to, encouraging, or tending to cause by any act or omission,~~such~~ that condition of  
11 the unborn child and expectant mother, the judge may make orders with respect to  
12 the conduct of ~~such~~ that person in his or her relationship to the unborn child and  
13 expectant mother.

14 **SECTION 154.** 48.45 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 48.45 (3) If it appears at a court hearing that any ~~person 17 years of age or~~  
16 ~~older~~ adult has violated s. 948.40, the judge shall refer the record to the district  
17 attorney for criminal proceedings as may be warranted in the district attorney's  
18 judgment. This subsection does not prevent prosecution of violations of s. 948.40  
19 without the prior reference by the judge to the district attorney, as in other criminal  
20 cases.

21 **SECTION 155.** 48.5275 of the statutes is created to read:

22 **48.5275 Seventeen-year-old juvenile justice aids.** Notwithstanding s.  
23 48.526, from the appropriation under s. 20.437 (1) (cL), beginning on January 1,

2026, the department shall reimburse counties for the costs under s. 48.526 (2) (c) associated with juveniles who were alleged to have violated a state or federal criminal law or any civil law or municipal ordinance at age 17.

**SECTION 156.** 118.163 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

118.163 (4) A person who is ~~under 17 years of age~~ a minor on the date of disposition is subject to s. 938.342.

**SECTION 157.** 125.07 (4) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

125.07 (4) (d) A person who is ~~under 17 years of age~~ a minor on the date of disposition is subject to s. 938.344 unless proceedings have been instituted against the person in a court of civil or criminal jurisdiction after dismissal of the citation under s. 938.344 (3).

**SECTION 158.** 125.07 (4) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

125.07 (4) (e) 1. In this paragraph, “defendant” means a person found guilty of violating par. (a) or (b) who is ~~17, 18, 19 or 20~~ an adult under 21 years of age.

**SECTION 159.** 125.085 (3) (bt) of the statutes is amended to read:

125.085 (3) (bt) A person who is ~~under 17 years of age~~ a minor on the date of disposition is subject to s. 938.344 unless proceedings have been instituted against the person in a court of civil or criminal jurisdiction after dismissal of the citation under s. 938.344 (3).

**SECTION 160.** 165.83 (1) (c) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

165.83 (1) (c) 1. An act that is committed by ~~a person who has attained the age of 17~~ an adult and that is a felony or a misdemeanor.

**SECTION 161.** 165.83 (1) (c) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

1           165.83 (1) (c) 2. An act that is committed by a ~~person~~ minor who has attained  
2           the age of 10 ~~but who has not attained the age of 17~~ and that would be a felony or  
3           misdemeanor if committed by an adult.

4           **SECTION 162.** 301.12 (2m) of the statutes is amended to read:

5           301.12 (2m) The liability specified in sub. (2) shall not apply to ~~persons 17~~  
6           ~~and older~~ adults receiving care, maintenance, services, and supplies provided by  
7           prisons named in s. 302.01.

8           **SECTION 163.** 301.12 (14) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           301.12 (14) (a) Except as provided in pars. (b) and (c), liability of a person  
10          specified in sub. (2) or s. 301.03 (18) for care and maintenance of ~~persons under 17~~  
11          ~~years of age~~ minors in residential, nonmedical facilities such as group homes, foster  
12          homes, residential care centers for children and youth, and juvenile correctional  
13          institutions is determined in accordance with the cost-based fee established under  
14          s. 301.03 (18). The department shall bill the liable person up to any amount of  
15          liability not paid by an insurer under s. 632.89 (2) or (4m) or by other 3rd-party  
16          benefits, subject to rules that include formulas governing ability to pay  
17          promulgated by the department under s. 301.03 (18). Any liability of the resident  
18          not payable by any other person terminates when the resident ~~reaches age 17~~  
19          becomes an adult, unless the liable person has prevented payment by any act or  
20          omission.

21          **SECTION 164.** 302.31 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

22          302.31 (7) The temporary placement of persons in the custody of the  
23          department, other than ~~persons under 17 years of age~~ minors, and ~~persons who~~



1 ~~have attained the age of 17 years but have not attained~~ adults under the age of 25  
2 years who are under the supervision of the department under s. 938.355 (4) and  
3 who have been taken into custody pending revocation of community supervision or  
4 aftercare supervision under s. 938.357 (5) (e).

5 **SECTION 165.** 938.02 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 938.02 (1) "Adult" means a person who is 18 years of age or older, ~~except that~~  
7 ~~for purposes of investigating or prosecuting a person who is alleged to have violated~~  
8 ~~any state or federal criminal law or any civil law or municipal ordinance, "adult"~~  
9 ~~means a person who has attained 17 years of age.~~

10 **SECTION 166.** 938.02 (10m) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 938.02 (10m) "Juvenile," when used without further qualification, means a  
12 person who is less than 18 years of age, ~~except that for purposes of investigating or~~  
13 ~~prosecuting a person who is alleged to have violated a state or federal criminal law~~  
14 ~~or any civil law or municipal ordinance, "juvenile" does not include a person who~~  
15 ~~has attained 17 years of age.~~

16 **SECTION 167.** 938.12 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 938.12 (2) ~~SEVENTEEN-YEAR-OLDS~~ JUVENILES WHO BECOME ADULTS. If a  
18 petition alleging that a juvenile is delinquent is filed before the juvenile ~~is 17 years~~  
19 ~~of age~~ becomes an adult, but the juvenile becomes ~~17 years of age~~ an adult before  
20 admitting the facts of the petition at the plea hearing or, if the juvenile denies the  
21 facts, before an adjudication, the court retains jurisdiction over the case.

22 **SECTION 168.** 938.18 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 938.18 (2) PETITION. The petition for waiver of jurisdiction may be filed by the

1 district attorney or the juvenile or may be initiated by the court and shall contain a  
2 brief statement of the facts supporting the request for waiver. The petition for  
3 waiver of jurisdiction shall be accompanied by or filed after the filing of a petition  
4 alleging delinquency and shall be filed prior to the plea hearing, except that if the  
5 juvenile denies the facts of the petition and becomes ~~17 years of age~~ an adult before  
6 an adjudication, the petition for waiver of jurisdiction may be filed at any time prior  
7 to the adjudication. If the court initiates the petition for waiver of jurisdiction, the  
8 judge shall disqualify himself or herself from any future proceedings on the case.

9 **SECTION 169.** 938.183 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 938.183 (3) PLACEMENT IN STATE PRISON; PAROLE. ~~When~~ Subject to s. 973.013  
11 (3m), when a juvenile who is subject to a criminal penalty under sub. (1m) or s.  
12 938.183 (2), 2003 stats., ~~attains the age of 17 years~~ becomes an adult, the  
13 department of corrections may place the juvenile in a state prison named in s.  
14 302.01, except that that department may not place any person under the age of 18  
15 years in the correctional institution authorized in s. 301.16 (1n). A juvenile who is  
16 subject to a criminal penalty under sub. (1m) or under s. 938.183 (2), 2003 stats., for  
17 an act committed before December 31, 1999, is eligible for parole under s. 304.06.

18 **SECTION 170.** 938.255 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 938.255 (1) TITLE AND CONTENTS. (intro.) A petition initiating proceedings  
20 under this chapter, other than a petition initiating proceedings under s. 938.12,  
21 938.125, or 938.13 (12), shall be entitled, "In the interest of (juvenile's name), a  
22 person under the age of 18<sup>2</sup>." A petition initiating proceedings under s. 938.12,  
23 938.125, or 938.13 (12) shall be entitled, "In the interest of (juvenile's name), a

1 ~~person under the age of 17".~~ juvenile." A petition initiating proceedings under this  
2 chapter shall specify all of the following:

3 **SECTION 171.** 938.34 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 938.34 (8) FORFEITURE. Impose a forfeiture based upon a determination that  
5 this disposition is in the best interest of the juvenile and the juvenile's  
6 rehabilitation. The maximum forfeiture that the court may impose under this  
7 subsection for a violation by a juvenile is the maximum amount of the fine that may  
8 be imposed on an adult for committing that violation or, if the violation is applicable  
9 only to ~~a person under 18 years of age~~ juveniles, \$100. The order shall include a  
10 finding that the juvenile alone is financially able to pay the forfeiture and shall  
11 allow up to 12 months for payment. If the juvenile fails to pay the forfeiture, the  
12 court may vacate the forfeiture and order other alternatives under this section; or  
13 the court may suspend any license issued under ch. 29 for not less than 30 days nor  
14 more than 5 years, or suspend the juvenile's operating privilege, as defined in s.  
15 340.01 (40), for not more than 2 years. If the court suspends any license under this  
16 subsection, the clerk of the court shall immediately take possession of the  
17 suspended license if issued under ch. 29 or, if the license is issued under ch. 343, the  
18 court may take possession of, and if possession is taken, shall destroy, the license.  
19 The court shall forward to the department ~~which~~ that issued the license a notice of  
20 suspension stating that the suspension is for failure to pay a forfeiture imposed by  
21 the court, together with any license issued under ch. 29 of which the court takes  
22 possession. If the forfeiture is paid during the period of suspension, the suspension  
23 shall be reduced to the time period ~~which~~ that has already elapsed and the court

1 shall immediately notify the department, which shall then, if the license is issued  
2 under ch. 29, return the license to the juvenile. Any recovery under this subsection  
3 shall be reduced by the amount recovered as a forfeiture for the same act under s.  
4 938.45 (1r) (b).

5 **SECTION 172.** 938.343 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 938.343 (2) FORFEITURE. Impose a forfeiture not to exceed the maximum  
7 forfeiture that may be imposed on an adult for committing that violation or, if the  
8 violation is only applicable to ~~a person under 18 years of age~~ juveniles, \$50. The  
9 order shall include a finding that the juvenile alone is financially able to pay and  
10 shall allow up to 12 months for the payment. If a juvenile fails to pay the forfeiture,  
11 the court may suspend any license issued under ch. 29 or suspend the juvenile's  
12 operating privilege, as defined in s. 340.01 (40), for not more than 2 years. The  
13 court shall immediately take possession of the suspended license if issued under ch.  
14 29 or, if the license is issued under ch. 343, the court may take possession of, and if  
15 possession is taken, shall destroy, the license. The court shall forward to the  
16 department ~~which~~ that issued the license the notice of suspension stating that the  
17 suspension is for failure to pay a forfeiture imposed by the court, together with any  
18 license issued under ch. 29 of which the court takes possession. If the forfeiture is  
19 paid during the period of suspension, the court shall immediately notify the  
20 department, which shall, if the license is issued under ch. 29, return the license to  
21 the person. Any recovery under this subsection shall be reduced by the amount  
22 recovered as a forfeiture for the same act under s. 938.45 (1r) (b).

23 **SECTION 173.** 938.344 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           938.344 (3) PROSECUTION IN ADULT COURT. If the juvenile alleged to have  
2 committed the violation is within 3 months of ~~his or her 17th birthday~~ becoming an  
3 adult, the court assigned to exercise jurisdiction under this chapter and ch. 48 may,  
4 at the request of the district attorney or on its own motion, dismiss the citation  
5 without prejudice and refer the matter to the district attorney for prosecution under  
6 s. 125.07 (4). The juvenile is entitled to a hearing only on the issue of his or her age.  
7 This subsection does not apply to violations under s. 961.573 (2), 961.574 (2), or  
8 961.575 (2) or a local ordinance that strictly conforms to one of those statutes.

9           **SECTION 174.** 938.35 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

10           938.35 (1m) FUTURE CRIMINAL PROCEEDINGS BARRED. Disposition by the  
11 court assigned to exercise jurisdiction under this chapter and ch. 48 of any  
12 allegation under s. 938.12 or 938.13 (12) shall bar any future proceeding on the  
13 same matter in criminal court when the juvenile ~~attains 17 years of age~~ becomes an  
14 adult. This subsection does not affect proceedings in criminal court that have been  
15 transferred under s. 938.18.

16           **SECTION 175.** 938.355 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

17           938.355 (4) (b) Except as provided in s. 938.368, an order under s. 938.34 (4d)  
18 or (4m) made before the juvenile attains 18 years of age may apply for up to 2 years  
19 after the date on which the order is granted or until the juvenile's ~~18th~~ 19th  
20 birthday, whichever is earlier, unless the court specifies a shorter period of time or  
21 the court terminates the order sooner. If the order does not specify a termination  
22 date, it shall apply for one year after the date on which the order is granted or until  
23 the juvenile's ~~18th~~ 19th birthday, whichever is earlier, unless the court terminates

1 the order sooner. Except as provided in s. 938.368, an order under s. 938.34 (4h)  
2 made before the juvenile attains 18 years of age shall apply for 5 years after the date  
3 on which the order is granted, if the juvenile is adjudicated delinquent for  
4 committing a violation of s. 943.10 (2) or for committing an act that would be  
5 punishable as a Class B or C felony if committed by an adult, or until the juvenile  
6 reaches 25 years of age, if the juvenile is adjudicated delinquent for committing an  
7 act that would be punishable as a Class A felony if committed by an adult. Except  
8 as provided in s. 938.368, an extension of an order under s. 938.34 (4d), (4h), (4m),  
9 or (4n) made before the juvenile ~~attains 17 years of age~~ becomes an adult shall  
10 terminate at the end of one year after the date on which the order is granted unless  
11 the court specifies a shorter period of time or the court terminates the order sooner.  
12 No extension under s. 938.365 of an original dispositional order under s. 938.34  
13 (4d), (4h), (4m), or (4n) may be granted for a juvenile who is ~~17 years of age or older~~  
14 ~~when~~ becomes an adult by the time the original dispositional order terminates.

15 **SECTION 176.** 938.355 (4m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 938.355 (**4m**) (a) A juvenile who has been adjudged delinquent under s. 48.12,  
17 1993 stats., or s. 938.12 may, on ~~attaining 17 years of age~~ becoming an adult,  
18 petition the court to expunge the court's record of the juvenile's adjudication.  
19 Subject to par. (b), the court may expunge the record if the court determines that  
20 the juvenile has satisfactorily complied with the conditions of his or her  
21 dispositional order and that the juvenile will benefit from, and society will not be  
22 harmed by, the expungement.

23 **SECTION 177.** 938.39 of the statutes is amended to read:

**938.39 Disposition by court bars criminal proceeding.** Disposition by the court of any violation of state law within its jurisdiction under s. 938.12 bars any future criminal proceeding on the same matter in circuit court when the juvenile ~~reaches the age of 17~~ becomes an adult. This section does not affect criminal proceedings in circuit court that were transferred under s. 938.18.

**SECTION 178.** Subchapter IX (title) of chapter 938 [precedes 938.44] of the statutes is amended to read:

## CHAPTER 938

## SUBCHAPTER IX

JURISDICTION OVER ~~PERSONS~~ 17

## ~~OR OLDER~~ ADULTS

**SECTION 179.** 938.44 of the statutes is amended to read:

**938.44 Jurisdiction over ~~persons 17 or older~~ adults.** The court has jurisdiction over ~~persons 17 years of age or older~~ adults as provided under ss. 938.355 (4), 938.357 (6), 938.365 (5), and 938.45 and as otherwise specified in this chapter.

**SECTION 180.** 938.45 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

938.45 (1) (a) If in the hearing of a case of a juvenile alleged to be delinquent under s. 938.12 or in need of protection or services under s. 938.13 it appears that any ~~person 17 years of age or older~~ adult has been guilty of contributing to, encouraging, or tending to cause by any act or omission, ~~such~~ that condition of the juvenile, the court may make orders with respect to the conduct of that person in his or her relationship to the juvenile, including orders relating to determining the

1 ability of the person to provide for the maintenance or care of the juvenile and  
2 directing when, how, and from where funds for the maintenance or care shall be  
3 paid.

4 **SECTION 181.** 938.45 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 938.45 (3) PROSECUTION OF ADULT CONTRIBUTING TO DELINQUENCY OF  
6 JUVENILE. If it appears at a court hearing that any ~~person 17 years of age or older~~  
7 adult has violated s. 948.40, the court shall refer the record to the district attorney.  
8 This subsection does not prohibit prosecution of violations of s. 948.40 without the  
9 prior reference by the court to the district attorney.

10 **SECTION 182.** 938.48 (4m) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 938.48 (4m) (title) CONTINUING CARE AND SERVICES FOR JUVENILES ~~OVER 17~~  
12 WHO BECOME ADULTS.

13 **SECTION 183.** 938.48 (4m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 938.48 (4m) (a) Is ~~at least 17 years of age~~ an adult.

15 **SECTION 184.** 938.48 (4m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 938.48 (4m) (b) Was under the supervision of the department under s.  
17 938.183, 938.34 (4h), or 938.357 (3) or (4) when the person ~~reached 17 years of age~~  
18 became an adult.

19 **SECTION 185.** 938.48 (14) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 938.48 (14) SCHOOL-RELATED EXPENSES FOR JUVENILES ~~OVER 17~~ WHO BECOME  
21 ADULTS. Pay maintenance, tuition, and related expenses from the appropriation  
22 under s. 20.410 (3) (ho) for persons who, when they ~~attained 17 years of age~~ became  
23 adults, were students regularly attending a school, college, or university or



1 regularly attending a course of vocational or technical training designed to prepare  
2 them for gainful employment, and who upon ~~attaining that age~~ becoming adults  
3 were under the supervision of the department under s. 938.183, 938.34 (4h), or  
4 938.357 (3) or (4) as a result of a judicial decision.

5 **SECTION 186.** 938.57 (3) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 938.57 (3) (title) CONTINUING MAINTENANCE FOR JUVENILES ~~OVER 17~~ WHO  
7 BECOME ADULTS.

8 **SECTION 187.** 938.57 (3) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 938.57 (3) (a) (intro.) From the reimbursement received under s. 48.569 (1)  
10 (d), counties may provide funding for the maintenance of any ~~juvenile~~ person who  
11 meets all of the following qualifications:

12 **SECTION 188.** 938.57 (3) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

13 938.57 (3) (a) 1. Is ~~17 years of age or older~~ an adult.

14 **SECTION 189.** 938.57 (3) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 938.57 (3) (a) 3. Received funding under s. 48.569 (1) (d) immediately prior to  
16 ~~his or her 17th birthday~~ becoming an adult.

17 **SECTION 190.** 938.57 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 938.57 (3) (b) The funding provided for the maintenance of a ~~juvenile~~ person  
19 under par. (a) shall be in an amount equal to that which the ~~juvenile~~ person would  
20 receive under s. 48.569 (1) (d) if the person were a juvenile ~~were 16 years of age.~~

21 **SECTION 191.** 946.50 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 **946.50 Absconding.** (intro.) Any person who is adjudicated delinquent, but  
23 who intentionally fails to appear before the court assigned to exercise jurisdiction

1 under chs. 48 and 938 for his or her dispositional hearing under s. 938.335, and who  
2 does not return to that court for a dispositional hearing before ~~attaining the age of~~  
3 ~~17 years~~ becoming an adult is guilty of the following:

4 **SECTION 192.** 948.01 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 948.01 (1) "Child" means a person who has not attained the age of 18 years;  
6 ~~except that for purposes of prosecuting a person who is alleged to have violated a~~  
7 ~~state or federal criminal law, "child" does not include a person who has attained the~~  
8 ~~age of 17 years.~~

9 **SECTION 193.** 948.11 (2) (am) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 948.11 (2) (am) (intro.) ~~Any person who has attained the age of 17 and~~ adult  
11 who, with knowledge of the character and content of the description or narrative  
12 account, verbally communicates, by any means, a harmful description or narrative  
13 account to a child, with or without monetary consideration, is guilty of a Class I  
14 felony if any of the following applies:

15 **SECTION 194.** 948.45 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 948.45 (1) Except as provided in sub. (2), any ~~person 17 years of age or older~~  
17 adult who, by any act or omission, knowingly encourages or contributes to the  
18 truancy, as defined under s. 118.16 (1) (c), of a ~~person 17 years of age or under~~ child  
19 is guilty of a Class C misdemeanor.

20 **SECTION 195.** 948.60 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 948.60 (2) (d) A ~~person under 17 years of age~~ child who has violated this  
22 subsection is subject to the provisions of ch. 938 unless jurisdiction is waived under

1 s. 938.18 or the person is subject to the jurisdiction of a court of criminal  
2 jurisdiction under s. 938.183.

3 **SECTION 196.** 948.61 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 948.61 (4) A ~~person under 17 years of age~~ child who has violated this section  
5 is subject to the provisions of ch. 938, unless jurisdiction is waived under s. 938.18  
6 or the person is subject to the jurisdiction of a court of criminal jurisdiction under s.  
7 938.183.

8 **SECTION 197.** 961.455 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 **961.455 (title) Using a ~~child~~ minor for illegal drug distribution or**  
10 **manufacturing purposes.**

11 **SECTION 198.** 961.455 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 961.455 (1) Any ~~person who has attained the age of 17 years~~ adult who  
13 knowingly solicits, hires, directs, employs, or uses a ~~person who is under the age of~~  
14 ~~17 years~~ minor for the purpose of violating s. 961.41 (1) is guilty of a Class F felony.

15 **SECTION 199.** 961.455 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 961.455 (2) The knowledge requirement under sub. (1) does not require proof  
17 of knowledge of the age of the ~~child~~ minor. It is not a defense to a prosecution under  
18 this section that the actor mistakenly believed that the person solicited, hired,  
19 directed, employed, or used under sub. (1) had attained the age of 18 years, even if  
20 the mistaken belief was reasonable.

21 **SECTION 200.** 961.46 of the statutes is amended to read:

22 **961.46 Distribution to ~~persons under age 18~~ minors.** If ~~a person 17~~  
23 ~~years of age or over~~ an adult violates s. 961.41 (1) by distributing or delivering a

1 controlled substance or a controlled substance analog to a ~~person 17 years of age or~~  
2 ~~under~~ minor who is at least 3 years his or her junior, the applicable maximum term  
3 of imprisonment prescribed under s. 961.41 (1) for the offense may be increased by  
4 not more than 5 years.

5 **SECTION 201.** 961.573 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 961.573 (2) Any ~~person~~ minor who violates sub. (1) ~~who is under 17 years of~~  
7 ~~age~~ is subject to a disposition under s. 938.344 (2e).

8 **SECTION 202.** 961.574 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 961.574 (2) Any ~~person~~ minor who violates sub. (1) ~~who is under 17 years of~~  
10 ~~age~~ is subject to a disposition under s. 938.344 (2e).

11 **SECTION 203.** 961.575 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 961.575 (1) Any ~~person 17 years of age or over~~ adult who violates s. 961.574  
13 (1) by delivering drug paraphernalia to a ~~person 17 years of age or under~~ minor who  
14 is at least 3 years younger than the violator may be fined not more than \$10,000 or  
15 imprisoned for not more than 9 months or both.

16 **SECTION 204.** 961.575 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 961.575 (2) Any ~~person~~ minor who violates this section ~~who is under 17 years~~  
18 ~~of age~~ is subject to a disposition under s. 938.344 (2e).

19 **SECTION 205.** 961.575 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 961.575 (3) Any ~~person 17 years of age or over~~ adult who violates s. 961.574  
21 (3) by delivering drug paraphernalia to a ~~person 17 years of age or under~~ minor is  
22 guilty of a Class G felony.

23 **SECTION 206.** 990.01 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           990.01 (3) ADULT. “Adult” means a person who has attained the age of 18  
2 years, ~~except that for purposes of investigating or prosecuting a person who is~~  
3 ~~alleged to have violated any state or federal criminal law or any civil law or~~  
4 ~~municipal ordinance, “adult” means a person who has attained the age of 17 years.~~

5           **SECTION 207.** 990.01 (20) of the statutes is amended to read:

6           990.01 (20) MINOR. “Minor” means a person who has not attained the age of  
7 18 years, ~~except that for purposes of investigating or prosecuting a person who is~~  
8 ~~alleged to have violated a state or federal criminal law or any civil law or municipal~~  
9 ~~ordinance, “minor” does not include a person who has attained the age of 17 years.~~

10           **SECTION 9308. Initial applicability; Corrections.**

11           (1) AGE OF ADULT JURISDICTION. The treatment of ss. 48.02 (1d) and (2),  
12 48.44, 48.45 (1) (a) and (am) and (3), 118.163 (4), 125.07 (4) (d) and (e) 1., 125.085 (3)  
13 (bt), 165.83 (1) (c) 1. and 2., 301.12 (2m) and (14) (a), 302.31 (7), 938.02 (1) and  
14 (10m), 938.12 (2), 938.18 (2), 938.183 (3), 938.255 (1) (intro.), 938.34 (8), 938.343 (2),  
15 938.344 (3), 938.35 (1m), 938.355 (4) (b) and (4m) (a), 938.39, 938.44, 938.45 (1) (a)  
16 and (3), 938.48 (4m) (title), (a), and (b) and (14), 938.57 (3) (title), (a) (intro.), 1., and  
17 3., and (b), 946.50 (intro.), 948.01 (1), 948.11 (2) (am) (intro.), 948.45 (1), 948.60 (2)  
18 (d), 948.61 (4), 961.455 (title), (1), and (2), 961.46, 961.573 (2), 961.574 (2), 961.575  
19 (1), (2), and (3), and 990.01 (3) and (20), subch. IX (title) of ch. 48, and subch. IX  
20 (title) of ch. 938 first applies to a violation of a criminal law, civil law, or municipal  
21 ordinance allegedly committed on the effective date of this subsection.

22           **SECTION 9408. Effective dates; Corrections.**

23           (1) AGE OF ADULT JURISDICTION. The treatment of ss. 48.02 (1d) and (2),

48.44, 48.45 (1) (a) and (am) and (3), 118.163 (4), 125.07 (4) (d) and (e) 1., 125.085 (3) (bt), 165.83 (1) (c) 1. and 2., 301.12 (2m) and (14) (a), 302.31 (7), 938.02 (1) and (10m), 938.12 (2), 938.18 (2), 938.183 (3), 938.255 (1) (intro.), 938.34 (8), 938.343 (2), 938.344 (3), 938.35 (1m), 938.355 (4) (b) and (4m) (a), 938.39, 938.44, 938.45 (1) (a) and (3), 938.48 (4m) (title), (a), and (b) and (14), 938.57 (3) (title), (a) (intro.), 1., and 3., and (b), 946.50 (intro.), 948.01 (1), 948.11 (2) (am) (intro.), 948.45 (1), 948.60 (2) (d), 948.61 (4), 961.455 (title), (1), and (2), 961.46, 961.573 (2), 961.574 (2), 961.575 (1), (2), and (3), and 990.01 (3) and (20), subch. IX (title) of ch. 48, and subch. IX (title) of ch. 938 and SECTION 9308 (1) of this act take effect on January 1, 2026.”.

**33.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

“**SECTION 208.** 16.3085 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.3085 (2) (a) From the appropriation under s. 20.505 (7) (kg), the department may award ~~up to 10~~ grants, of up to ~~\$50,000~~ \$75,000 each, annually to any shelter facility.

**SECTION 9201. Fiscal changes; Administration.**

(1) CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICE GRANTS FOR HOMELESS FAMILIES. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of administration under s. 20.505 (7) (kg), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$500,000 to increase funding for grants under s. 16.3085 (2) (a). In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of administration under s. 20.505 (7) (kg), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$500,000 to increase funding for grants under s. 16.3085 (2) (a).”.

**34.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

1           **“SECTION 9250. Fiscal changes; Workforce Development.**

2           (1) CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTION JOB CENTERS. In the schedule under s. 20.005  
3           (3) for the appropriation to the department of workforce development under s.  
4           20.445 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$839,000 to  
5           increase the authorized FTE employment and training specialist positions in the  
6           department of workforce development by 13.0 GPR positions to support  
7           employment and training specialists in existing correctional institution job centers  
8           to better assist incarcerated individuals in finding and maintaining employment  
9           after being released from prison. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
10          appropriation to the department of workforce development under s. 20.445 (1) (a),  
11          the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$1,076,400 for the  
12          positions authorized under this subsection.”.

13           **35.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

14           **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

15          (1) CONTROL OF HAZARDOUS ENERGY PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION. In the  
16          schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections  
17          under s. 20.410 (1) (aa), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by  
18          \$285,800 to implement the federal occupational safety and health administration’s  
19          lockout/tagout standards under 29 CFR 1910.147 at correctional institutions and to  
20          provide training on the standards. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
21          appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (aa), the dollar  
22          amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$285,700 to implement the federal  
23          occupational safety and health administration’s lockout/tagout standards under 29

1 CFR 1910.147 at correctional institutions and to provide training on the  
2 standards.”.

3 **36.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

4 “**SECTION 209.** 961.443 (2) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 961.443 (2) (title) IMMUNITY FROM CRIMINAL PROSECUTION AND REVOCATION  
6 OF PAROLE, PROBATION, OR EXTENDED SUPERVISION.

7 **SECTION 210.** 961.443 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 961.443 (2) (a) and  
8 amended to read:

9 961.443 (2) (a) No aider may have his or her parole, probation, or extended  
10 supervision revoked, and an aider is immune from prosecution under s. 961.573 for  
11 the possession of drug paraphernalia, under s. 961.41 (3g) for the possession of a  
12 controlled substance or a controlled substance analog, and under s. 961.69 (2) for  
13 possession of a masking agent under the circumstances surrounding or leading to  
14 his or her commission of an act described in sub. (1) if the aider’s attempt to obtain  
15 assistance occurs immediately after the aider believes the other person is suffering  
16 from the overdose or other adverse reaction.

17 **SECTION 211.** 961.443 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

18 961.443 (2) (b) 1. No aided person person may have his or her parole,  
19 probation, or extended supervision revoked under the circumstances surrounding  
20 or leading to an aider’s commission of an act described in sub. (1) if the aided person  
21 completes a treatment program as a condition of his or her parole, probation, or  
22 extended supervision or, if a treatment program is unavailable or would be



1 prohibitive financially, agrees to be imprisoned in the county jail for not less than  
2 15 days.

3 2. If an aided person is subject to prosecution under s. 961.573 for the  
4 possession of drug paraphernalia, under s. 961.41 (3g) for the possession of a  
5 controlled substance or a controlled substance analog, or under s. 961.69 (2) for  
6 possession of a masking agent under the circumstances surrounding or leading to  
7 an aider's commission of an act described in sub. (1), the district attorney shall offer  
8 the aided person a deferred prosecution agreement that includes the completion of  
9 a treatment program. This subdivision does not apply to an aided person who is on  
10 parole, probation, or extended supervision and fails to meet a condition under subd.  
11 1.”.

12 **37.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

13 “**SECTION 212.** 100.306 of the statutes is created to read:

14 **100.306 Prohibited selling practices upon the occurrence of a severe**  
15 **thunderstorm.** (1) DEFINITIONS. In this section:

16 (a) “Consumer goods or services” means goods or services that are used  
17 primarily for personal, family, or household purposes.

18 (b) “Restoration and mitigation services provider” means a person that  
19 provides a service to prevent further damage or provide protection to property  
20 following a fire, smoke, water, or storm event.

21 (c) “Severe thunderstorm” means a weather event in which any of the  
22 following occurs:

23 1. Hail that is one inch or greater in diameter.

1           2. Wind gusts in excess of 50 knots.

2           3. A tornado.

3           **(2) PROHIBITION.** Upon the occurrence of a severe thunderstorm, a residential  
4 building contractor, tree trimmer, or restoration and mitigation services provider  
5 operating within the geographic region impacted by the severe thunderstorm and  
6 repairing damage caused by the severe thunderstorm may not do any of the  
7 following:

8           (a) Charge an unreasonably excessive price for labor in comparison to the  
9 market price charged for comparable services in the geographic region impacted by  
10 the severe thunderstorm.

11           (b) Charge an insurance company a rate for a consumer good or service that  
12 exceeds what the residential building contractor, tree trimmer, or restoration and  
13 mitigation services provider would otherwise charge a member of the general public  
14 for the consumer good or service.

15           **(3) RULES.** The department shall promulgate rules to establish formulas or  
16 other standards to be used in determining whether a price for labor is unreasonably  
17 excessive under sub. (2) (a).

18           **(4) ENFORCEMENT; PENALTY.** If a person violates sub. (2), the department or,  
19 after consulting with the department, the department of justice may commence an  
20 action against a person in the name of the state to recover a civil forfeiture of not  
21 more than \$1,000 per violation or to temporarily or permanently restrain or enjoin  
22 the person from violating sub. (2), or both.”.

23           **38.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

24           **“SECTION 213.** 49.175 (1) (i) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.175 (1) (i) *Emergency assistance*. For emergency assistance under s. 49.138 and for transfer to the department of administration for low-income energy or weatherization assistance programs, ~~\$6,000,000~~ \$10,414,400 in ~~each~~ fiscal year 2025-26 and \$10,414,300 in fiscal year 2026-27.

**SECTION 9206. Fiscal changes; Children and Families.**

(1) EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of children and families under s. 20.437 (1) (md), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$4,414,400 to reflect projected increases in average costs and caseloads under the emergency assistance program under s. 49.138. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of children and families under s. 20.437 (1) (md), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$4,414,300 to reflect projected increases in average costs and caseloads under the emergency assistance program under s. 49.138.”.

**39.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

“**SECTION 214.** 49.175 (1) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.175 (1) (g) *State administration of public assistance programs and overpayment collections*. For state administration of public assistance programs and the collection of public assistance overpayments, \$17,231,100 in fiscal year 2021-22 and \$17,482,300 in fiscal year 2022-23. In fiscal year 2023-24, for such purposes, \$19,015,300. In fiscal year 2024-25, for such purposes, \$19,424,300. In fiscal year 2025-26, for such purposes, \$25,113,900. In fiscal year 2026-27, for such purposes, \$25,563,100.

**SECTION 9206. Fiscal changes; Children and Families.**

(1) EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of children and families under s. 20.437 (1) (md), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$5,689,600 to support the costs of administering programs related to the temporary assistance for needy families block grant. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of children and families under s. 20.437 (1) (md), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$6,138,800 to support the costs of administering programs related to the temporary assistance for needy families block grant.”.

**40.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9201. Fiscal changes; Administration.**

(1) BUILDING MAINTENANCE FOR STATE CRIME LAB AND AIR FLEET HANGAR. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of administration under s. 20.505 (5) (ka), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$1,081,100 to support the ongoing maintenance of the new Milwaukee State Crime Lab and Wisconsin Air Services Hangar.”.

**41.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 215.** 16.19 of the statutes is created to read:

**16.19 Civil legal services.** From the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (ep), the department shall award grants to the Wisconsin Trust Account Foundation, Inc., to provide civil legal services. The Wisconsin Trust Account Foundation, Inc., shall distribute the amount received as grants to programs that provide civil legal services, and those programs may use the grant funds to match other federal and

1 private grants. The grants may be used only for the purposes for which the funding  
2 was provided.

3 **SECTION 216.** 20.505 (1) (ep) of the statutes is created to read:

4 20.505 (1) (ep) *Civil legal services.* As a continuing appropriation, the  
5 amounts in the schedule to provide grants under s. 16.19 to the Wisconsin Trust  
6 Account Foundation, Inc., for the provision of civil legal services.”.

7 **42.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

8 “**SECTION 217.** 16.971 (18) of the statutes is created to read:

9 16.971 (18) (a) The department shall conduct cybersecurity emergency  
10 incident response for agencies and authorities.

11 (b) For the department’s cybersecurity emergency incident response under  
12 par. (a), the secretary may allocate to the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (bv)  
13 amounts, not to exceed \$10,000,000 each fiscal year, previously allocated to general  
14 purpose revenue sum sufficient appropriations under ch. 20 and shall reduce the  
15 amounts allocated to such appropriations accordingly.

16 **SECTION 218.** 20.505 (1) (bv) of the statutes is created to read:

17 20.505 (1) (bv) *Cybersecurity emergency incident response.* A sum sufficient,  
18 not to exceed the amounts allocated under s. 16.971 (18) (b), for cybersecurity  
19 emergency incident response under s. 16.971 (18) (a).

20 **SECTION 219.** 20.505 (1) (em) of the statutes is created to read:

21 20.505 (1) (em) *Cybersecurity activities.* The amounts in the schedule for the  
22 department of administration’s cybersecurity activities.”.

23 **43.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

1           “**SECTION 220.** 16.075 of the statutes is created to read:

2           **16.075 Grants to tribes for alternatives to prosecution and**  
3           **incarceration programs. (1)** In this section, “tribe” has the meaning given in s.  
4           165.91 (1).

5           **(2)** From the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (cb), the department shall  
6           make grants to tribes for alternatives to prosecution and incarceration programs  
7           that meet the criteria specified in s. 165.95 (3).

8           **(5)** Grants made under sub. (2) shall be provided on a calendar year basis.

9           **(6)** The department of justice shall assist the department with its duties  
10          under this section.

11          **SECTION 221.** 20.505 (1) (cb) of the statutes is created to read:

12          20.505 (1) (cb) *Grants to tribes for alternatives to prosecution and*  
13          *incarceration programs.* The amounts in the schedule for grants to federally  
14          recognized American Indian tribes or bands in this state under s. 16.075 (2).

15          **SECTION 222.** 165.95 (9) of the statutes is renumbered 16.075 (4) and  
16          amended to read:

17          16.075 (4) The department of justice shall inform any ~~county or~~ tribe that is  
18          applying for a grant under ~~this section~~ sub. (2) whether the ~~county or~~ tribe meets  
19          the requirements established under ~~sub. s. 165.95~~ (3), regardless of whether the  
20          ~~county or~~ tribe receives a grant.

21          **SECTION 9101. Nonstatutory provisions; Administration.**

22          (1) ALTERNATIVES TO PROSECUTION AND INCARCERATION GRANT PROGRAM.  
23          Notwithstanding s. 16.42 (1) (e), in submitting information under s. 16.42 for  
24          purposes of the 2027 biennial budget act, the department of administration shall

1 submit information concerning the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (cb) as though  
2 the total amount appropriated under s. 20.505 (1) (cb) for the 2026-27 fiscal year  
3 was \$142,500 more than the total amount that was actually appropriated under s.  
4 20.505 (1) (cb) for the 2026-27 fiscal year.”.

5 **44.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

6 **“SECTION 9201. Fiscal changes; Administration.**

7 (1) REPRESENTATION FOR LAW LICENSE GRIEVANCES. In the schedule under s.  
8 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of administration under s.  
9 20.505 (1) (kr), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$91,600  
10 and the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$118,100 to increase  
11 the authorized FTE positions for the department by 1.0 PR position to hire an  
12 attorney to represent state attorneys before the office of lawyer regulation  
13 regarding grievances filed against their law licenses.”.

14 **45.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

15 **“SECTION 223.** 15.105 (35) of the statutes is created to read:

16 15.105 (35) OFFICE OF VIOLENCE PREVENTION. There is created in the  
17 department of administration an office of violence prevention.

18 **SECTION 224.** 16.02 of the statutes is created to read:

19 **16.02 Office of violence prevention. (1) PURPOSE.** The office of violence  
20 prevention shall coordinate and expand violence prevention activities in this state.

21 **(2) DUTIES.** The office of violence prevention shall do all of the following:

22 (a) Establish a violence prevention focus across state government.

23 (b) Collaborate with other state agencies that are interested or active in the

1 reduction of interpersonal violence, including child abuse, elder abuse, violence  
2 against youth, domestic violence, gun violence, intimate partner violence, suicide,  
3 sexual assault, and gender-based violence.

4 (c) Support the development and implementation of comprehensive,  
5 community-based violence prevention initiatives within local units of government  
6 across the state, including collaborating with law enforcement agencies.

7 (d) Develop sources of funding beyond state revenues to maintain the office  
8 and expand its activities.

9 (e) Create a directory of existing violence prevention services and activities in  
10 each county.

11 (f) Support and provide technical assistance to local organizations that  
12 provide violence prevention services, including in seeking out and applying for  
13 grant funding in support of their initiatives and provide technical assistance and  
14 support to the organizations to maximize the organizations' likelihood of success  
15 with their applications.

16 (g) Develop public education campaigns to promote safer communities.

17 **(3) GRANTS.** (a) From the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (bs), the office of  
18 violence prevention shall award grants to support effective violence reduction  
19 initiatives in communities across the state, including supporting efforts to reduce  
20 gun violence, group violence, suicides, domestic violence, intimate partner violence,  
21 and gender-based violence.

22 (b) The grants under this subsection shall be used to support, expand, and  
23 replicate evidence-based violence reduction initiatives, including hospital-based  
24 violence intervention programs, evidence-based street outreach programs, and



1 focused deterrence strategies, that seek to interrupt the cycles of violence,  
2 victimization, and retaliation in order to reduce the incidence of firearm violence.

3 (c) Of the grants the department awards under this section, the department  
4 shall award up to \$3,000,000 in grants each fiscal year to federally recognized  
5 American Indian tribes or bands in this state and organizations affiliated with  
6 tribes relating to missing and murdered indigenous women.

7 (d) Of the grants the department awards under this section, the department  
8 shall award up to \$500,000 in suicide prevention grants each fiscal year to  
9 organizations or coalitions of organizations, which may include a city, village, town,  
10 county, or federally recognized American Indian tribe or band in this state, for any  
11 of the following purposes:

12 1. To train staff at a firearm retailer or firearm range on how to recognize a  
13 person who may be considering suicide.

14 2. To provide suicide prevention materials for distribution at a firearm  
15 retailer or firearm range.

16 3. To provide voluntary, temporary firearm storage.

17 **SECTION 225.** 20.005 (3) (schedule) of the statutes: at the appropriate place,  
18 insert the following amounts for the purposes indicated:

19 **2025-26                      2026-27**

20 **20.505 Administration, department of**

21 (1) SUPERVISION AND MANAGEMENT

				2025-26	2026-27
--	--	--	--	---------	---------

(bp) Office of violence prevention;

general program operations	GPR	A	597,200	694,100
----------------------------	-----	---	---------	---------

(bs) Office of violence prevention;

violence reduction initiative	GPR	A	3,500,000	8,500,000
-------------------------------	-----	---	-----------	-----------

**SECTION 226.** 20.505 (1) (bp) of the statutes is created to read:

20.505 (1) (bp) *Office of violence prevention; general program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for the general program operations of the office of violence prevention.

**SECTION 227.** 20.505 (1) (bs) of the statutes is created to read:

20.505 (1) (bs) *Office of violence prevention; violence reduction initiative grants.* The amounts in the schedule for violence reduction initiative grants awarded under s. 16.02 (3).

**SECTION 9101. Nonstatutory provisions; Administration.**

(1) POSITION AUTHORIZATION; OFFICE OF VIOLENCE PREVENTION. The authorized FTE positions for the department of administration are increased by 7.0 GPR positions to staff the office of violence prevention.

(2) TASK FORCE ON MISSING AND MURDERED AFRICAN AMERICAN WOMEN AND GIRLS.

(a) *Definition.* In this subsection, “nongovernmental organization” means a nonprofit, nongovernmental organization that provides legal, social, or other community services.

(b) *Membership.* There is created a task force on missing and murdered African American women and girls. The task force shall consist of the following

1 members, who are knowledgeable in crime victims rights or violence protection,  
2 and who shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the governor unless  
3 otherwise specified:

4 1. Two members of the senate, one appointed by the majority leader and one  
5 appointed by the minority leader.

6 2. Two members of the assembly, one appointed by the speaker of the  
7 assembly and one appointed by the minority leader.

8 3. Two representatives from among the following:

9 a. The Wisconsin Chiefs of Police Association.

10 b. The Badger State Sheriffs' Association.

11 c. The division of criminal investigation within the department of justice.

12 4. One or more representatives from among the following:

13 a. The Wisconsin District Attorneys Association.

14 b. A U.S. Attorney's office in this state.

15 c. A judge or attorney working in juvenile court.

16 5. A county coroner or representative from a statewide coroner's association or  
17 a representative of the department of health services.

18 6. Three or more representatives from among the following:

19 a. A statewide or local organization that provides legal services to African  
20 American women and girls.

21 b. A statewide or local organization that provides advocacy or counseling for  
22 African American women and girls who have been victims of violence.

1 c. A statewide or local organization that provides nonlegal services to African  
2 American women and girls.

3 d. The Wisconsin Coalition Against Sexual Assault.

4 e. End Domestic Abuse Wisconsin.

5 f. An African American woman who is a survivor of gender violence.

6 (c) *Operation*.

7 1. The task force shall elect a chair and vice-chair from among the members of  
8 the task force and may elect other officers as necessary. The task force shall  
9 convene within 30 days after it is established and shall meet at least quarterly  
10 thereafter, or upon the call of its chair, and may hold meetings throughout the state.  
11 The task force shall meet sufficiently to accomplish the duties identified in par. (d).

12 2. The department of administration shall provide administrative support  
13 services to the task force. The task force may call upon any state agency or officer to  
14 assist the task force, and those agencies or officers shall cooperate with the task  
15 force to the fullest extent possible.

16 3. The department of administration shall reimburse members of the task  
17 force for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in carrying out their  
18 functions.

19 (d) *Duties*.

20 1. The task force shall examine all of the following topics:

21 a. The systemic causes behind violence that African American women and  
22 girls experience, including patterns and underlying factors that explain why  
23 disproportionately high levels of violence occur against African American women

1 and girls, including underlying historical, generational, social, economic,  
2 institutional, and cultural factors that may contribute to the violence.

3 b. Appropriate methods for tracking and collecting data on violence against  
4 African American women and girls, including data on missing and murdered  
5 African American women and girls.

6 c. Policies and institutions such as policing, child welfare, coroner practices,  
7 and other governmental practices that impact violence against African American  
8 women and girls and the investigation and prosecution of crimes of gender violence  
9 against African American people.

10 d. Measures necessary to address and reduce violence against African  
11 American women and girls.

12 e. Measures to help victims, victims' families, and victims' communities  
13 prevent and heal from violence that occurs against African American women and  
14 girls.

15 2. The task force shall, by December 31, 2025, and December 31, 2026, submit  
16 to the governor a report that includes all of the following:

17 a. Proposed institutional policies and practices that are effective in reducing  
18 gender violence and increasing the safety of African American women and girls.

19 b. Recommendations to eliminate violence against African American women  
20 and girls.

21 c. Recommendations to help victims and communities heal from gender  
22 violence and violence against African American women and girls.

23 3. In accomplishing the tasks in subds. 1. and 2., the task force shall seek out

1 and enlist the cooperation and assistance of nongovernmental organizations,  
2 community and advocacy organizations working with the African American  
3 community, and academic researchers and experts, specifically those specializing in  
4 violence against African American women and girls, representing diverse  
5 communities disproportionately affected by violence against women and girls, or  
6 focusing on issues related to gender violence and violence against African American  
7 women and girls.”.

8 **46.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

9 **“SECTION 9101. Nonstatutory provisions; Administration.**

10 (1) POSITION AUTHORIZATIONS; DIVISION OF CAPITOL POLICE. The authorized  
11 FTE positions for the department of administration are increased by 8.0 PR  
12 positions funded from the appropriation under s. 20.505 (5) (ka) to support the  
13 division of capitol police in the department of administration, consisting of 6 police  
14 officers, one dispatcher, and one police lieutenant.

15 **SECTION 9201. Fiscal changes; Administration.**

16 (1) DIVISION OF CAPITOL POLICE. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
17 appropriation to the department of administration under s. 20.505 (5) (ka), the  
18 dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$1,260,200 and the dollar  
19 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$1,175,200 to increase the staff of  
20 and support the division of capitol police in the department of administration.”.

21 **47.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

22 **“SECTION 228.** 20.505 (5) (ka) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 20.505 (5) (ka) *Facility operations and maintenance; police and protection*

1 *functions.* The amounts in the schedule for the purpose of financing the costs of  
2 operation of state-owned or operated facilities that are not funded from other  
3 appropriations, including custodial and maintenance services; for minor projects;  
4 for utilities, fuel, heat, and air conditioning; for assessments levied by the  
5 department under s. 16.847 (3) for costs incurred and savings generated at  
6 departmental facilities; for facility design services provided to agencies under s.  
7 16.849; and for costs incurred under ss. 16.858 and 16.895 by or on behalf of the  
8 department; and for police and protection functions under s. 16.84 (2) and (3),  
9 including to provide security services at multitenant state buildings or multitenant  
10 state facilities. All moneys received from state agencies for the operation of such  
11 facilities, from parking rental fees established under s. 16.843 (2) (bm) and  
12 miscellaneous other sources, from assessments under s. 16.895, from the  
13 performance of gaming protection functions under s. 16.84 (3), from charges to state  
14 agencies for security services under s. 16.84 (2), and from the fees assessed under s.  
15 16.849, and all moneys transferred from the appropriation account under s. 20.865  
16 (2) (e) for this purpose shall be credited to this appropriation account. No moneys  
17 may be expended from this appropriation for the purposes specified in par. (kg).

18 **SECTION 229.** 20.505 (5) (ks) of the statutes is repealed.”.

19 **48.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

20 **“SECTION 9201. Fiscal changes; Administration.**

21 (1) DEPARTMENT OF SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INFORMATION  
22 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to  
23 the department of administration under s. 20.505 (1) (kd), the dollar amount for  
24 fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$695,400 and the dollar amount for fiscal year

2026-27 is increased by \$692,500 to provide contractual information technology services for the department of safety and professional services.”.

**49.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9101. Nonstatutory provisions; Administration.**

(1) CERTAIN FEDERAL POSITION FUNDING AND INCUMBENT STAFF. On January 1, 2027, the funding source for 3.0 FTE FED positions in the department of administration changes from the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (mb) to the general purpose revenue appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (a), and the incumbent employees holding the positions on that date retain their positions. On January 1, 2027, the funding source for 1.0 FTE FED position in the department of administration changes from the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (mb) to the program revenue appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (ka), and the incumbent employee holding the position on that date retains their position. On January 1, 2027, the funding source for 20.0 FTE FED positions in the department of administration changes from the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (mb) to the program revenue appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (kz), and the incumbent employees holding the positions on that date retain their positions.

(2) CERTAIN FEDERAL POSITION FUNDING AND INCUMBENT STAFF TRANSFER. On January 1, 2027, 17.5 FTE FED positions in the department of administration, funded from the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (mb), and the incumbent employees holding those positions are transferred to the employment relations commission, and the funding for the positions is changed to the GPR appropriation under s. 20.425 (1) (a). Employees transferred under this subsection have all the rights and the same status under ch. 230 in the employment relations commission



1 that they enjoyed in the department of administration immediately before the  
2 transfer. Notwithstanding s. 230.28 (4), no employee transferred under this  
3 subsection who has attained permanent status in class is required to serve a  
4 probationary period.

5 (3) OFFICES OF DATA AND INFORMATION PRIVACY. In the schedule under s.  
6 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of administration under s.  
7 20.505 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$246,800 to  
8 increase the authorized FTE positions in the department of administration by 3.0  
9 GPR positions for the following purposes: 1.0 attorney supervisor funded at \$95,300  
10 to serve as the Enterprise Chief Privacy Officer of the Division of Legal Services;  
11 1.0 program and policy analyst-advanced funded at \$59,800 assigned to the Office  
12 of Information Privacy to identify opportunities for training and policy development  
13 for state employees o personally-identifiable or sensitive information and provide  
14 technical assistance in developing privacy policies, and 1.0 management  
15 information chief funded at \$91,700 to oversee the Office of Data.

16 (4) BUSINESS AUTOMATION SPECIALIST. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for  
17 the appropriation to the department of administration under s. 20.505 (1) (ka), the  
18 dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$75,000 to increase the  
19 authorized FTE positions for the department of administration by 1.0 PR business  
20 automation specialist.”.

21 **50.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

22 **“SECTION 9201. Fiscal changes; Administration.**

23 (1) RISK MANAGEMENT INSURANCE PREMIUM COSTS. In the schedule under s.  
24 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of administration under s.

20.505 (2) (k), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$5,519,400 and the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$8,068,500 to provide for actual and estimated increases in the cost of excess property and liability insurance premiums.”.

**51.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

(1) INTERNAL AFFAIRS OFFICE. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$412,000 to increase the authorized FTE positions for the department by 5.0 GPR positions within the internal affairs office. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$462,200 to provide funding for the positions authorized under this subsection.”.

**52.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

(1) VICTIM SERVICES. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$481,700 to increase the authorized FTE positions for the department of corrections by 5.0 GPR positions for the office of victim services and programs. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year

1 2026-27 is increased by \$404,300 to provide funding for the positions authorized  
2 under this subsection.”.

3 **53.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

4 **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

5 (1) AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE TEAM. In the schedule  
6 under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s.  
7 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$605,000 to  
8 increase the authorized FTE positions in the department by 1.0 GPR attorney  
9 position and 5.0 GPR program and policy-advanced positions for the purpose of the  
10 Americans with Disabilities Act compliance team and buying 5 vehicles for  
11 transportation for the team. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
12 appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar  
13 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$582,800 to provide funding for the  
14 positions authorized under this subsection.”.

15 **54.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

16 **“SECTION 9101. Nonstatutory provisions; Administration.**

17 (1) DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS GREEN BAY CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTION  
18 CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES. The director of the bureau of merit recruitment and  
19 selection in the division of personnel management in the department of  
20 administration is authorized to waive competitive hiring procedures required under  
21 ch. 230 for an employee in the classified service at the Green Bay Correctional  
22 Institution during the period in which the facility is decommissioned so that the  
23 employee may be hired into a different position within the department of

1 corrections if the individual is qualified to perform the duties of the position and the  
2 position meets either of the following requirements:

3 (a) The position is assigned to a class having the same pay range as the  
4 position in which the individual was employed at the Green Bay Correctional  
5 Institution.

6 (b) The position is assigned to a class having a lower pay range than the  
7 position in which the individual was employed at the Green Bay Correctional  
8 Institution.”.

9 **55.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

10 **“SECTION 9108. Nonstatutory provisions; Corrections.**

11 (1) MEDICAL-RELATED POSITION AUTHORIZATIONS. The authorized FTE  
12 positions for the department of corrections are increased by 4.0 GPR psychiatric  
13 advanced practice nurse practitioner positions, to be funded as provided in sub. (3).

14 (2) MEDICAL-RELATED LIMITED TERM EMPLOYEES. The authorized LTE  
15 positions for the department of corrections are decreased by 12.0 pharmacy  
16 technician positions and 4.0 psychiatric advanced practice nurse practitioner  
17 positions.

18 (3) MEDICAL-RELATED POSITIONS; FUNDING. The department shall allocate  
19 funding from the appropriation under s. 20.410 (1) (a) to fund the positions  
20 authorized under sub. (1) for 4.0 FTE GPR psychiatric advanced practice nurse  
21 practitioners.

22 **SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

23 (1) MEDICAL-RELATED POSITIONS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
24 appropriation to the department under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal

1 year 2025-26 is increased by \$568,900 to increase the authorized FTE positions for  
2 the department of corrections by 12.0 GPR positions for the purpose of converting  
3 certain medical-related LTE positions to permanent positions. In the schedule  
4 under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s.  
5 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$573,400 to  
6 fund the positions authorized under this subsection. The positions to be converted  
7 are 12.0 pharmacy technician LTE positions to 5.0 FTE pharmacist positions, 5.0  
8 FTE pharmacy technician-entry positions, 1.0 FTE intake pharmacist position,  
9 and 1.0 FTE sterile compound pharmacist position.”.

10 **56.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

11 **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

12 (1) MEDICATION ADMINISTRATION STAFF. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3)  
13 for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the  
14 dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$842,000 to increase the  
15 authorized FTE positions for the department by 12.5 GPR medical assistant 2  
16 positions for the purpose of providing medication administration staff at Columbia  
17 Correctional Institution and Waupun Correctional Institution. In the schedule  
18 under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s.  
19 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$2,033,600  
20 to fund the positions authorized under this subsection and to increase the  
21 authorized FTE positions for the department by an additional 12.5 GPR medical  
22 assistant 2 positions for the same purposes.”.

23 **57.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

1           **“SECTION 9202. Fiscal changes; Agriculture, Trade and Consumer**  
2           **Protection.**

3           (1) ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATION POSITIONS. In the schedule under s.  
4           20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of agriculture, trade and  
5           consumer protection under s. 20.115 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-  
6           26 is increased by \$245,000 and the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is  
7           increased by \$179,300 to increase the number of authorized FTE positions in the  
8           department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection by 2.0 GPR positions for  
9           oversight of electric vehicle charging stations.

10          (2) ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATION EQUIPMENT. In the schedule under  
11          s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of agriculture, trade and  
12          consumer protection under s. 20.115 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-  
13          26 is increased by \$110,000 for the one-time purchase of equipment for regular  
14          testing of electric vehicle charging stations.”.

15          **58.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

16          **“SECTION 230.** 16.306 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

17          16.306 (2) (a) From the appropriation under s. 20.505 (7) (fm), the  
18          department may award a grant to an eligible applicant for the purpose of providing  
19          housing and associated supportive services to homeless individuals and families to  
20          facilitate their movement to independent living if the conditions under par. (b) are  
21          satisfied. The department shall ensure that the funds for the grants are reasonably  
22          balanced among geographic areas of the state ~~that correspond to the geographic~~  
23          ~~areas served by each continuum of care organization designated by the federal~~

1 ~~department of housing and urban development~~, consistent with the quality of  
2 applications submitted.

3 **SECTION 231.** 16.3077 of the statutes is created to read:

4 **16.3077 Housing quality standards grants.** From the appropriation  
5 under s. 20.505 (7) (bp), the department shall award grants to owners of rental  
6 housing units in this state for purposes of satisfying applicable housing quality  
7 standards.

8 **SECTION 232.** 16.3085 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 16.3085 (2) (a) From the appropriation under s. 20.505 (7) (kg), the  
10 department may award ~~up to 10~~ grants, of up to ~~\$50,000~~ \$75,000 each, annually to  
11 any shelter facility.

12 **SECTION 233.** 20.505 (7) (bp) of the statutes is created to read:

13 20.505 (7) (bp) *Housing quality standards grants.* The amounts in the  
14 schedule for housing quality standards grants under s. 16.3077.

15 **SECTION 234.** 49.175 (1) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 49.175 (1) (f) *Homeless case management services grants.* For grants to  
17 shelter facilities under s. 16.3085, ~~\$500,000~~ \$1,000,000 in each fiscal year. All  
18 moneys allocated under this paragraph shall be credited to the appropriation  
19 account under s. 20.505 (7) (kg).”.

20 **59.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

21 **“SECTION 9106. Nonstatutory provisions; Children and Families.**

22 (1) ONLINE POSITIVE PARENTING PROGRAM. From the appropriation under s.  
23 20.437 (1) (nL), the department shall award \$1,538,300 in each fiscal year of the

2025-27 fiscal biennium a grant to Children’s Wisconsin for the purpose of making available statewide an online evidence–based parenting program that provides support to parents, reduces childhood behavioral issues, and increases family stability.”.

**60.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

(1) LINCOLN CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTION STAFFING. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$655,500 to increase the authorized FTE positions for the department of corrections by 7.0 GPR prison staff positions to be assigned to the Lincoln Correctional Institution. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$45,299,900 to increase the authorized FTE positions for the department of corrections by 268.40 GPR prison staff positions to be assigned to the Lincoln Correctional Institution and to provide funding for the positions authorized under this subsection.”.

**61.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

(1) SERIOUS JUVENILE OFFENDER PROGRAM. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (3) (cg), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$3,120,400 to provide juvenile institution care, alternate care, and community supervision for serious



1 juvenile offenders. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the  
2 department of corrections under s. 20.410 (3) (cg), the dollar amount for fiscal year  
3 2026-27 is decreased by \$2,403,100 to provide juvenile institution care, alternate  
4 care, and community supervision for serious juvenile offenders.”.

5 **62.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

6 **“SECTION 9206. Fiscal changes; Children and Families.**

7 (1) HOME VISITING PROGRAM. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
8 appropriation to the department of children and families under s. 20.437 (1) (ab),  
9 the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$1,200,000 to expand  
10 services under the home visiting program under s. 48.983. In the schedule under s.  
11 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of children and families under s.  
12 20.437 (1) (ab), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$3,896,000  
13 to expand services under the home visiting program under s. 48.983.”.

14 **63.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

15 **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

16 (1) SUPPORTIVE HOUSING SERVICES BEDS EXPANSION. In the schedule under s.  
17 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1)  
18 (d), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$1,063,500 to expand  
19 available options for supportive housing services beds by 50 additional beds. In the  
20 schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections  
21 under s. 20.410 (1) (d), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by  
22 \$2,127,000 to fund the bed expansion under this subsection.”.

23 **64.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

1           **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

2           (1) REGIONAL RECOVERY COACHES. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
3           appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (d), the dollar  
4           amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$339,000 to contract for nine  
5           community supervision regional recovery coaches around the state. In the schedule  
6           under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s.  
7           20.410 (1) (d), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$678,000 for  
8           the community supervision regional recovery coaches contracted under this  
9           subsection.”.

10          **65.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

11           **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

12           (1) TECHNICAL MOBILE LABS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
13           appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (d), the dollar  
14           amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$1,277,400 to pay instructor costs at  
15           6 technical mobile labs. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to  
16           the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (d), the dollar amount for fiscal  
17           year 2026-27 is increased by \$1,277,400 to pay instructor costs at 6 technical mobile  
18           labs.”.

19          **66.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

20           **“SECTION 235.** 16.311 of the statutes is created to read:

21           **16.311 Supplement for crime victim services grants.** (1) From the  
22           appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (e), the secretary may supplement s. 20.455 (5)  
23           (km) if the secretary determines that the moneys received from the federal

government for crime victim assistance under 34 USC 20103, together with the moneys received in each fiscal year from the crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452, are insufficient to provide grants to crime victim services organizations under s. 165.935. If the secretary determines under this subsection that moneys received are insufficient, the secretary shall determine the amount of the supplement, but the secretary may not determine an amount that is larger than the difference between \$44,500,000 and the sum of the moneys received in each fiscal year under 34 USC 20103 plus the moneys received in each fiscal year under s. 973.0452.

(2) In determining under sub. (1) whether the moneys received are insufficient, the secretary may consider any factor, including:

(a) The needs of rural and urban communities.

(b) The amount of funding that a crime victim services organization receives as a percentage of its operating budget from the state or federal government.

(c) The degree to which the services of a crime victim services organization are coordinated with other resources in the community and state.

(d) The degree to which the services of a crime victim services organization are provided either directly or through a contract, subcontract, service agreement, or collaborative agreement with other organizations, entities, or individuals.

**SECTION 236.** 20.455 (5) (gL) of the statutes is created to read:

20.455 (5) (gL) *Grants for crime victim services.* All moneys received from the crime victim services surcharge imposed under s. 973.0452 for the purpose of awarding grants under s. 165.935.

**SECTION 237.** 20.455 (5) (km) of the statutes is created to read:

1           20.455 (5) (km) *Grants for crime victim services supplement — state funds.* All  
2           moneys transferred from the appropriation account under s. 20.505 (1) (e) for the  
3           purposes of awarding grants under s. 165.935.

4           **SECTION 238.** 20.505 (1) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

5           20.505 (1) (e) *Supplement to crime victim services grant program.* A sum  
6           sufficient not to exceed in each fiscal year the amount determined under s. 16.311  
7           (1) to supplement the crime victim services grant program under s. 165.935 as  
8           provided in s. 16.311.

9           **SECTION 239.** 165.935 of the statutes is created to read:

10          **165.935 Crime victim services grants.** (1) The department of justice  
11          shall award grants to eligible organizations from the appropriations under s. 20.455  
12          (5) (gL) and (km) to provide services for crime victims. The department of justice  
13          shall award grants under this section in a manner consistent with 34 USC 20103.

14          (2) An organization is eligible for a grant under this section if the department  
15          of justice determines that the organization meets the criteria under 34 USC 20103  
16          (b).

17          (3) The grant awards under this section may supplement federal funds under  
18          34 USC 20103 but may not replace the funds.

19          **SECTION 240.** 814.75 (5g) of the statutes is created to read:

20          814.75 (5g) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

21          **SECTION 241.** 814.76 (4p) of the statutes is created to read:

22          814.76 (4p) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

23          **SECTION 242.** 814.77 (3p) of the statutes is created to read:

24          814.77 (3p) The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

1       **SECTION 243.** 814.78 (4p) of the statutes is created to read:

2       814.78 **(4p)** The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

3       **SECTION 244.** 814.79 (3p) of the statutes is created to read:

4       814.79 **(3p)** The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

5       **SECTION 245.** 814.80 (4p) of the statutes is created to read:

6       814.80 **(4p)** The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

7       **SECTION 246.** 814.81 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

8       814.81 **(4)** The crime victim services surcharge under s. 973.0452.

9       **SECTION 247.** 973.0452 of the statutes is created to read:

10       **973.0452 Crime victim services surcharge. (1)** If a court imposes a  
11 sentence, places a person on probation, or imposes a forfeiture for a violation of a  
12 law or an ordinance, the court shall impose a crime victim services surcharge. A  
13 surcharge imposed under this subsection may not be waived, reduced, or forgiven  
14 for any reason. The amount of the surcharge is the combined amount of the  
15 following:

16       (a) Forty percent of the fine or forfeiture imposed or \$40, whichever is greater,  
17 for each offense.

18       (b) For each misdemeanor or felony count for which a conviction occurred, \$50.

19       **(2)** (a) In this subsection, “civil offense” means an offense punishable by a  
20 forfeiture.

21       (b) If the court finds a person committed a civil offense on or after the effective  
22 date of this paragraph .... [LRB inserts date], in addition to any forfeiture the court  
23 imposes, the court shall impose a crime victim services surcharge that is equal to  
24 the amounts under sub. (1) (a) and (b) if all of the following apply:

1           1. The person is charged with one or more misdemeanors or felonies in a  
2 complaint.

3           2. As a result of the complaint being amended, the person is charged with a  
4 civil offense in lieu of one of those misdemeanors or felonies.

5           (3) Notwithstanding sub. (1), the court may not impose the surcharge under  
6 sub. (1) for a violation of state laws or municipal or county ordinances involving  
7 nonmoving traffic violations.

8           (4) (a) If a court of record imposes the surcharge under sub. (1), the clerk of  
9 the court shall determine the amount that is due and collect and transmit the  
10 amount to the county treasurer as provided in s. 59.40 (2) (m). The county  
11 treasurer shall make payment to the secretary of administration as provided in s.  
12 59.25 (3) (f) 2.

13           (b) If a municipal court imposes the surcharge under sub. (1), the court shall  
14 determine the amount due and collect and transmit the amount to the treasurer of  
15 the county, city, town, or village, and the treasurer shall make payment to the  
16 secretary of administration as provided in s. 66.0114 (1) (bm).

17           (5) If an inmate in a state prison or a person sentenced to a state prison has  
18 not paid the surcharge under sub. (1), the department shall assess and collect the  
19 amount owed from the inmate's wages or other moneys. Any amount collected  
20 under this subsection shall be transmitted to the secretary of administration.

21           **SECTION 9351. Initial applicability; Other.**

22           (1) CRIME VICTIM SERVICES SURCHARGE. The treatment of s. 973.0452 (1) first  
23 applies to sentences, periods of probation, or civil forfeitures imposed on the  
24 effective date of this subsection.”.

1           **67.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

2           “**SECTION 248.** 20.455 (2) (gr) of the statutes, as affected by 2023 Wisconsin  
3 Act 240, is repealed and recreated to read:

4           20.455 (2) (gr) *Handgun purchaser record check; checks for licenses or*  
5 *certifications to carry concealed weapons.* All moneys received as fee payments  
6 under ss. 175.35 (2i), 175.49 (5m), and 175.60 (7) (c) and (d), (13), and (15) (b) 4. a.  
7 and b. to provide services under ss. 165.28, 175.35, 175.49, and 175.60.

8           **SECTION 9227. Fiscal changes; Justice.**

9           (1) SCHOOL SAFETY OPERATIONS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
10 appropriation to the department of justice under s. 20.455 (2) (gr), the dollar  
11 amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$688,300 to increase the authorized  
12 FTE administrative staff positions for the department of justice by 12.0 PR  
13 positions for the office of school safety. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
14 appropriation to the department of justice under s. 20.455 (2) (gr), the dollar  
15 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$882,600 to provide funding for the  
16 positions authorized under this subsection.

17           **SECTION 9427. Effective dates; Justice.**

18           (1) REPEAL OF SUNSET FOR POSITIONS IN OFFICE OF SCHOOL SAFETY. The  
19 repeal and recreation of s. 20.455 (2) (gr) takes effect on October 1, 2025, or on the  
20 day after publication, whichever is later.”.

21           **68.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

22           “**SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

23           (1) CASE TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the

1 appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar  
2 amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$277,600 to pay costs associated with  
3 investigatory transcribing services. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
4 appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar  
5 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$277,600 to pay costs associated with  
6 investigatory transcribing services.”.

7 **69.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

8 **“SECTION 9227. Fiscal changes; Justice.**

9 (1) CYBERSECURITY AND COMPLIANCE ENHANCEMENTS. In the schedule under  
10 s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of justice under s. 20.455 (3)  
11 (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$6,000,000 to pay for  
12 supplies and services costs to meet federal requirements for criminal justice data  
13 and information systems security published by the U.S. department of justice in  
14 July 2024. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the  
15 department of justice under s. 20.455 (3) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-  
16 27 is increased by \$1,500,000 to pay for supplies and services costs to meet federal  
17 requirements for criminal justice data and information systems security published  
18 by the U.S. department of justice in July 2024.”.

19 **70.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

20 **“SECTION 9227. Fiscal changes; Justice.**

21 (1) DIVISION OF CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION STAFFING. In the schedule under s.  
22 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of justice under s. 20.455 (2) (a),  
23 the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$352,000 to increase the



1 authorized FTE positions for the department by 4.0 GPR special agent positions  
2 and 1.0 GPR senior criminal analyst position. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3)  
3 for the appropriation to the department of justice under s. 20.455 (2) (a), the dollar  
4 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$452,600 to provide funding for the  
5 positions authorized under this subsection.”.

6 **71.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

7 **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

8 (1) FULL FUNDING OF WISCONSIN SECURE PROGRAM FACILITY HEALTH  
9 SERVICES UNIT. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the  
10 department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year  
11 2025-26 is increased by \$133,300 to fully fund non-salary costs associated with the  
12 Wisconsin secure program facility's health services unit as authorized in 2023  
13 Wisconsin Act 19. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the  
14 department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year  
15 2026-27 is increased by \$133,300 to fully fund non-salary costs associated with the  
16 Wisconsin secure program facility's health services unit as authorized in 2023  
17 Wisconsin Act 19.”.

18 **72.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

19 **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

20 (1) JUVENILE POPULATION AND INFLATIONARY COSTS. In the schedule under s.  
21 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (3)  
22 (hm), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$22,800 for  
23 modifications to population-related funding for juvenile corrections. In the

1 schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections  
2 under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is decreased by  
3 \$462,800 for modifications to population-related funding for juvenile corrections.”.

4 **73.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

5 **“SECTION 9208. Fiscal changes; Corrections.**

6 (1) STANDARD BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS; TURNOVER REDUCTION; GPR. In the  
7 schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections  
8 under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is decreased by  
9 \$14,833,500 as a turnover reduction. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
10 appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar  
11 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is decreased by \$14,833,500 as a turnover reduction.

12 (2) STANDARD BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS; TURNOVER REDUCTION; PR. In the  
13 schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections  
14 under s. 20.410 (1) (gi), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is decreased by  
15 \$583,100 as a turnover reduction. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
16 appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (gi), the dollar  
17 amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is decreased by \$583,100 as a turnover reduction.

18 (3) STANDARD BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS; FULL FUNDING OF SALARIES AND FRINGE  
19 BENEFITS; GPR. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the  
20 department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year  
21 2025-26 is decreased by \$4,949,700 for a reduction in costs of funding salaries and  
22 fringe benefits for department employees. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for  
23 the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar

1 amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is decreased by \$4,949,700 for a reduction in costs of  
2 funding salaries and fringe benefits for department employees.

3 (4) STANDARD BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS; FULL FUNDING OF SALARIES AND FRINGE  
4 BENEFITS; FED. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the  
5 department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (n), the dollar amount for fiscal year  
6 2025-26 is increased by \$228,400 to fully fund salaries and fringe benefits for  
7 department employees. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to  
8 the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (n), the dollar amount for fiscal  
9 year 2025-26 is increased by \$228,400 to fully fund salaries and fringe benefits for  
10 department employees.

11 (5) STANDARD BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS; FULL FUNDING OF SALARIES AND FRINGE  
12 BENEFITS; PR. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the  
13 department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (gi), the dollar amount for fiscal year  
14 2025-26 is increased by \$1,707,800 to fully fund salaries and fringe benefits for  
15 department employees. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to  
16 the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (gi), the dollar amount for fiscal  
17 year 2025-26 is increased by \$1,707,800 to fully fund salaries and fringe benefits for  
18 department employees.

19 (6) STANDARD BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS; OVERTIME PAY; GPR. In the schedule  
20 under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s.  
21 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$94,976,000  
22 to provide funding for overtime pay for department employees. In the schedule  
23 under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s.

20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$94,976,000 to provide funding for overtime pay for department employees.

(7) STANDARD BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS; OVERTIME PAY; PR. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (gi), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$2,717,500 to provide funding for overtime pay for department employees. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (gi), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$2,717,500 to provide funding for overtime pay for department employees.

(8) STANDARD BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS; NIGHT AND WEEKEND DIFFERENTIAL; GPR. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$12,503,700 provide funding for night and weekend differential pay for department employees. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$12,503,700 provide funding for night and weekend differential pay for department employees.

(9) STANDARD BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS; NIGHT AND WEEKEND DIFFERENTIAL; PR. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (gi), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$773,800 provide funding for night and weekend differential pay for department employees. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (gi), the dollar amount for fiscal

1 year 2025-26 is increased by \$773,800 provide funding for night and weekend  
2 differential pay for department employees.”.

3 **74.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

4 “**SECTION 249.** 49.45 (62) of the statutes is created to read:

5 49.45 **(62)** PRERELEASE COVERAGE OF INCARCERATED INDIVIDUALS. (a) The  
6 department may submit to the secretary of the federal department of health and  
7 human services a request for a waiver of federal Medicaid law to conduct a  
8 demonstration project to provide incarcerated individuals prerelease health care  
9 coverage for certain services under the Medical Assistance program for up to 90  
10 days preceding the incarcerated individual’s release if the individual is otherwise  
11 eligible for coverage under the Medical Assistance program.

12 (b) If a waiver submitted by the department under par. (a) is approved by the  
13 federal department of health and human services, the department may provide  
14 reimbursement under the Medical Assistance program for both the federal and  
15 nonfederal share of services, including case management services, provided to  
16 incarcerated individuals under the approved waiver.”.

17 **75.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

18 “**SECTION 250.** 48.49 of the statutes is created to read:

19 **48.49 Benefits eligibility screening.** (1) The department and each county  
20 department shall periodically screen each child under the placement and care of the  
21 department or county department under this chapter or ch. 938, other than  
22 children placed with kinship care providers receiving payments under s. 48.57 (3m)  
23 or (3n), to determine whether the child is eligible for federal or state benefits.

1           (2) If a child in out-of-home care is found to be eligible for federal or state  
2           benefits under sub. (1), the department or county department shall do all the  
3           following:

4           (a) Apply for the benefits on behalf of the child following the procedures  
5           established by the department by rule, unless doing so would be contrary to the best  
6           interest of the child.

7           (b) Ensure that the child, the child's attorney or guardian ad litem, and the  
8           child's parent, guardian, or Indian custodian receive proper and timely notice of any  
9           application for benefits, the results of an application for benefits, and any appeal of  
10          a denial of benefits that could be or is filed on behalf of the child.

11          (c) Provide the child with training covering financial literacy and maintaining  
12          benefit eligibility prior to the child aging out of out-of-home care.

13          (3) If the department or county department is appointed as representative  
14          payee for a child in out-of-home care who receives benefits under sub. (2), the  
15          department or county department shall do all the following:

16          (a) Consistent with the best interests of the child, conserve the child's benefits  
17          in protected accounts that avoid asset limitations for federal and state programs.

18          (b) Provide a periodic accounting to the child, the child's attorney or guardian  
19          ad litem, and the child's parent, guardian, or Indian custodian regarding the  
20          conservation and use of the child's benefits while the child is in the department or  
21          county department's care.

22          (c) Work with the child and the appropriate federal agency to return  
23          remaining funds to the child or another fiduciary once the child exits out-of-home  
24          care.

1           (4) The department may take any necessary steps to facilitate statewide  
2 compliance with this section.

3           (5) The department or a county department may contract with a public or  
4 private agency to fulfill the requirements of this section. The department may  
5 contract with a public or private agency to fulfill the requirements of this section on  
6 behalf of a county department.

7           (6) State or federal benefits received by the department or a county  
8 department on behalf of a child may not be used by the department or a county  
9 department to pay for the costs of caring for the child in out-of-home care. The  
10 department or a county department may use the child's federal benefits for the  
11 child's unmet needs beyond what the agency is obligated to, is required to, or has  
12 agreed to provide as permitted by rules promulgated under sub. (7).

13           (7) The department shall promulgate rules to implement this section.

14           **SECTION 9106. Nonstatutory provisions; Children and Families.**

15           (1) BENEFITS ELIGIBILITY SCREENING; EMERGENCY RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY.  
16 The department of children and families may use the procedure under s. 227.24 to  
17 promulgate rules under s. 48.49 for the period before the effective date of any  
18 permanent rules promulgated under s. 48.49, notwithstanding s. 227.24 (1) (c).  
19 Notwithstanding s. 227.24 (1) (a) and (3), the department of children and families is  
20 not required to provide evidence that promulgating a rule under this subsection as  
21 an emergency rule is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health,  
22 safety, or welfare and is not required to provide a finding of emergency for a rule  
23 promulgated under this subsection.

24           **SECTION 9206. Fiscal changes; Children and Families.**

(1) FEDERAL BENEFITS FOR CHILDREN IN OUT-OF-HOME CARE. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of children and families under s. 20.437 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$3,000,000 to contract for ongoing statewide management of applications for federal benefits and trust accounts for children in out-of-home care who receive federal benefits.

**SECTION 9406. Effective dates; Children and Families.**

(1) BENEFITS ELIGIBILITY SCREENING. The treatment of s. 48.49 takes effect on July 1, 2027.”.

**76.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9250. Fiscal changes; Workforce Development.**

(1) AGENCY TRIBAL LIAISON. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of workforce development under s. 20.445 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$70,000 to increase the authorized FTE positions for the department by 1.0 GPR position for an agency tribal liaison. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of workforce development under s. 20.445 (1) (a), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$89,500 to provide funding for the position authorized under this subsection.”.

**77.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

**“SECTION 9108. Nonstatutory provisions; Corrections.**

(1) DEBT SERVICE REESTIMATE; ADULT CORRECTIONS; GPR. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s.



20.410 (1) (e), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is decreased by \$7,057,600 to reflect the current estimate of adult corrections debt service costs. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (e), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is decreased by \$9,433,400 to reflect the current estimate of adult corrections debt service costs.

(2) DEBT SERVICE REESTIMATE; JUVENILE CORRECTIONS; GPR. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (3) (e), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$2,152,100 to reflect the current estimate of juvenile corrections debt service costs. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (3) (e), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is increased by \$3,281,100 to reflect the current estimate of juvenile corrections debt service costs.

(3) DEBT SERVICE REESTIMATE; PR. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (ko), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is decreased by \$2,800 to reflect the current estimate of debt service costs. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of corrections under s. 20.410 (1) (ko), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is decreased by \$4,400 to reflect the current estimate of adult corrections debt service costs.”.

**78.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

“**SECTION 251.** 947.01 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 947.01 (1) (intro.) and amended to read:

947.01 (1) (intro.) Whoever, in a public or private place, engages in ~~violent,~~ abusive, any of the following is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor:

1        (b) Abusive, indecent, profane, boisterous, unreasonably loud or otherwise  
2 disorderly conduct under circumstances in which the conduct tends to cause or  
3 provoke a disturbance is ~~guilty of a Class B misdemeanor~~.

4        **SECTION 252.** 947.01 (1) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

5        947.01 (1) (a) Violent behavior that involves the use or attempted use of  
6 physical force or the use of or threat to use a dangerous weapon.

7        **SECTION 253.** 968.075 (1) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

8        968.075 (1) (a) (intro.) “Domestic abuse” means any of the following engaged  
9 in by an adult person against ~~his or her spouse or former spouse, against an adult~~  
10 ~~with whom the person resides or formerly resided or against an adult with whom~~  
11 ~~the person has a child in common~~ a relative of the adult person:

12        **SECTION 254.** 968.075 (1) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

13        968.075 (1) (f) “Relative” means any of the following:

- 14        1. A spouse or former spouse.
- 15        2. A parent or stepparent.
- 16        3. A legal guardian.
- 17        4. A person with whom the adult person has a child in common.
- 18        5. A person with whom the adult person is cohabiting or has cohabited as a  
19 spouse, a parent, or a legal guardian.
- 20        6. A person who is similarly situated to the adult person as a spouse, a parent,  
21 or a legal guardian.
- 22        7. An adult who is residing or has resided with the adult person if subd. 1., 2.,  
23 3., 4., 5., or 6. does not apply.”.

1           **79.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

2           “**SECTION 255.** 20.455 (2) (gr) of the statutes, as affected by 2025 Wisconsin  
3 Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

4           20.455 (2) (gr) ~~Handgun~~ Firearm purchaser record check; checks for licenses or  
5 certifications to carry concealed weapons. All moneys received as fee payments  
6 under ss. 175.35 (2i) (a), 175.49 (5m), and 175.60 (7) (c) and (d), (13), and (15) (b) 4.  
7 a. and b. to provide services under ss. 165.28, 175.35, 175.49, and 175.60.

8           **SECTION 256.** 175.33 of the statutes is created to read:

9           **175.33 Transfer of firearms. (1)** In this section:

10           (a) “Family member” means a spouse, parent, grandparent, sibling, child, or  
11 grandchild. The relationship may be by blood, marriage, or adoption.

12           (b) “Firearm” includes the frame or receiver of a firearm.

13           (c) “Firearms dealer” has the meaning given in s. 175.35 (1) (ar).

14           (d) “Transfer” has the meaning given in s. 175.35 (1) (br).

15           **(2)** No person may transfer ownership of a firearm, or be transferred  
16 ownership of a firearm, unless one of the following applies:

17           (a) The transferor is a firearms dealer.

18           (b) The transferor makes the transfer to or through a firearms dealer and  
19 obtains a receipt under s. 175.35 (2j) (b).

20           (c) The transfer of ownership of the firearm is one of the transfers listed under  
21 s. 175.35 (2t).

22           (d) The transferor is transferring ownership of the firearm to a family  
23 member by gift, bequest, or inheritance, the transferee is not prohibited from

1 possessing a firearm under s. 941.29 or federal law, and the transferee is at least 18  
2 years of age.

3 (3) Any person who intentionally violates sub. (2) is guilty of a misdemeanor  
4 and shall be fined not less than \$500 nor more than \$10,000 and may be imprisoned  
5 for not more than 9 months. The person is also prohibited under s. 941.29 from  
6 possessing a firearm for a period of 2 years.

7 **SECTION 257.** 175.35 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 **175.35 (title) Purchase of ~~handguns~~ firearms.**

9 **SECTION 258.** 175.35 (1) (at) of the statutes, as affected by 2025 Wisconsin Act  
10 .... (this act), is amended to read:

11 175.35 (1) (at) “Firearms restrictions record search” means a search of  
12 department of justice records to determine whether a person seeking to purchase  
13 receive the transfer of a handgun firearm is prohibited from possessing a firearm  
14 under s. 941.29 or is included in the database under s. 165.64 (3). “Firearms  
15 restrictions record search” includes a criminal history record search, a search to  
16 determine whether a person is prohibited from possessing a firearm under s. 51.20  
17 (13) (cv) 1., 2007 stats., a search in the national instant criminal background check  
18 system to determine whether a person has been ordered not to possess a firearm  
19 under s. 51.20 (13) (cv) 1., 51.45 (13) (i) 1., 54.10 (3) (f) 1., or 55.12 (10) (a), a search  
20 to determine whether the person is subject to an injunction under s. 813.12 or  
21 813.122, or a tribal injunction, as defined in s. 813.12 (1) (e), issued by a court  
22 established by any federally recognized Wisconsin Indian tribe or band, except the  
23 Menominee Indian tribe of Wisconsin, that includes notice to the respondent that

1 he or she is subject to the requirements and penalties under s. 941.29 and that has  
2 been filed with the circuit court under s. 813.128 (3g), a search to determine  
3 whether the person is subject to a temporary restraining order or injunction under  
4 s. 813.124, and a search to determine whether the person is prohibited from  
5 possessing a firearm under s. 813.123 (5m) or 813.125 (4m).

6 **SECTION 259.** 175.35 (1) (br) of the statutes is created to read:

7 175.35 (1) (br) "Transfer" includes to sell, assign, pledge, lease, loan, give  
8 away, or otherwise dispose of.

9 **SECTION 260.** 175.35 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 175.35 (2) (am)  
10 and amended to read:

11 175.35 (2) (am) When a firearms dealer ~~sells~~ transfers a ~~handgun~~ firearm,  
12 including the frame or receiver of a firearm, he or she may not transfer possession of  
13 that ~~handgun~~ firearm to any other person until all of the ~~following have occurred:~~  
14 requirements under par. (cm) have been met.

15 **SECTION 261.** 175.35 (2) (a), (b) and (c) of the statutes are renumbered 175.35  
16 (2) (cm) 1., 2. and 3.

17 **SECTION 262.** 175.35 (2) (bm) of the statutes is created to read:

18 175.35 (2) (bm) When a person transfers a firearm, including the frame or  
19 receiver of a firearm, through a firearms dealer, the transfer of possession of that  
20 firearm may not be made until all of the requirements of par. (cm) have been met.

21 **SECTION 263.** 175.35 (2) (cm) (intro.) of the statutes is created to read:

22 175.35 (2) (cm) (intro.) All of the following must occur before a firearm may be  
23 transferred under par. (am) or (bm):

1           **SECTION 264.** 175.35 (2) (d) of the statutes, as affected by 2025 Wisconsin Act  
2 .... (this act), is renumbered 175.35 (2) (cm) 4.

3           **SECTION 265.** 175.35 (2g) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

4           175.35 **(2g)** (a) The department of justice shall promulgate rules prescribing  
5 procedures under sub. (2) (cm) 1. for a transferee to provide and a firearms dealer to  
6 inspect identification containing a photograph of the transferee.

7           **SECTION 266.** 175.35 (2g) (b) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

8           175.35 **(2g)** (b) 1. The department of justice shall promulgate rules  
9 prescribing a notification form for use under sub. (2) (cm) 2. and 3. requiring the  
10 transferee to provide his or her name, date of birth, gender, race and social security  
11 number and other identification necessary to permit an accurate firearms  
12 restrictions record search under par. (c) 3. and the required notification under par.  
13 (c) 4. The department of justice shall make the forms available at locations  
14 throughout the state.

15           **SECTION 267.** 175.35 (2g) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

16           175.35 **(2g)** (b) 2. The department of justice shall ensure that each notification  
17 form under subd. 1. requires the transferee to indicate that he or she is not  
18 ~~purchasing~~ receiving a transfer of the firearm with the purpose or intent to transfer  
19 the firearm to a person who is prohibited from possessing a firearm under state or  
20 federal law and that each notification form informs the transferee that making a  
21 false statement with regard to this purpose or intent is a Class H felony.

22           **SECTION 268.** 175.35 (2g) (c) 4. c. of the statutes, as affected by 2025  
23 Wisconsin Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

1           175.35 (2g) (c) 4. c. If the search indicates that it is unclear whether the  
2           person is prohibited under state or federal law from possessing a firearm and the  
3           department needs more time than provided under sub. (2) ~~(d)~~ (cm) 4. to make the  
4           determination, the department shall make every reasonable effort to determine  
5           whether the person is prohibited under state or federal law from possessing a  
6           firearm and notify the firearms dealer of the results as soon as practicable but no  
7           later than 5 working days after the search was requested.

8           **SECTION 269.** 175.35 (2i) of the statutes is renumbered 175.35 (2i) (a) and  
9           amended to read:

10          175.35 (2i) (a) The department shall charge a firearms dealer a \$10 fee for  
11          each firearms restrictions record search that the firearms dealer requests under  
12          sub. (2) ~~(e)~~ (cm) 3.

13          (b) 1. The firearms dealer may collect the fee under par. (a) from the  
14          transferee.

15          (c) The department may refuse to conduct firearms restrictions record  
16          searches for any firearms dealer who fails to pay any fee under ~~this subsection~~ par.  
17          (a) within 30 days after billing by the department.

18          **SECTION 270.** 175.35 (2i) (b) 2. of the statutes is created to read:

19          175.35 (2i) (b) 2. If the transfer is made under sub. (2) (bm), the firearms  
20          dealer may collect from the transferor the fee under par. (a) and any additional  
21          amount to cover any costs he or she incurs in processing the transfer.

22          **SECTION 271.** 175.35 (2j) of the statutes is renumbered 175.35 (2j) (a).

23          **SECTION 272.** 175.35 (2j) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

24          175.35 (2j) (b) If a person transfers a firearm through a firearms dealer under

1 sub. (2) (bm), or transfers a firearm to a firearms dealer, the firearms dealer shall  
2 provide the person a written receipt documenting the dealer's participation in the  
3 transfer.

4 **SECTION 273.** 175.35 (2k) (ar) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 175.35 (2k) (ar) 2. Check each notification form received under sub. (2j) (a)  
6 against the information recorded by the department regarding the corresponding  
7 request for a firearms restrictions record search under sub. (2g). If the department  
8 previously provided a unique approval number regarding the request and nothing  
9 in the completed notification form indicates that the transferee is prohibited from  
10 possessing a firearm under s. 941.29, the department shall destroy all records  
11 regarding that firearms restrictions record search within 30 days after receiving  
12 the notification form.

13 **SECTION 274.** 175.35 (2k) (c) 2. a. of the statutes is amended to read:

14 175.35 (2k) (c) 2. a. A statement that the Wisconsin law enforcement agency  
15 is conducting an investigation of a crime in which a ~~handgun~~ firearm was used or  
16 was attempted to be used or was unlawfully possessed.

17 **SECTION 275.** 175.35 (2k) (c) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

18 175.35 (2k) (c) 2. b. A statement by a division commander or higher authority  
19 within the Wisconsin law enforcement agency that he or she has a reasonable  
20 suspicion that the person who is the subject of the information request has obtained  
21 or is attempting to obtain a ~~handgun~~ firearm.

22 **SECTION 276.** 175.35 (2k) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 175.35 (2k) (g) If a search conducted under sub. (2g) indicates that the



1 transferee is prohibited from possessing a firearm under s. 941.29, the attorney  
2 general or his or her designee may disclose to a law enforcement agency that the  
3 transferee has attempted to obtain a ~~handgun~~ firearm.

4 **SECTION 277.** 175.35 (2k) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 175.35 **(2k)** (h) If a search conducted under sub. (2g) indicates a felony charge  
6 without a recorded disposition and the attorney general or his or her designee has  
7 reasonable grounds to believe the transferee may pose a danger to himself, herself  
8 or another, the attorney general or his or her designee may disclose to a law  
9 enforcement agency that the transferee has obtained or has attempted to obtain a  
10 ~~handgun~~ firearm.

11 **SECTION 278.** 175.35 (2L) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 175.35 **(2L)** The department of justice shall promulgate rules providing for  
13 the review of nonapprovals under sub. (2g) (c) 4. a. Any person who is denied the  
14 right to ~~purchase~~ receive a transfer of a handgun firearm because the firearms  
15 dealer received a nonapproval number under sub. (2g) (c) 4. a. may request a  
16 firearms restrictions record search review under those rules. If the person  
17 disagrees with the results of that review, the person may file an appeal under rules  
18 promulgated by the department.

19 **SECTION 279.** 175.35 (2t) (a), (b) and (c) of the statutes are amended to read:

20 175.35 **(2t)** (a) Transfers of any ~~handgun~~ firearm classified as an antique by  
21 regulations of the U.S. department of the treasury.

22 (b) Transfers of any ~~handgun~~ firearm between firearms dealers or between  
23 wholesalers and dealers.

1 (c) Transfers of any ~~handgun~~ firearm to law enforcement or armed services  
2 agencies.

3 **SECTION 280.** 175.35 (3) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 175.35 (3) (b) 2. A person who violates sub. (2e) by intentionally providing  
5 false information regarding whether he or she is ~~purchasing~~ receiving a transfer of  
6 the firearm with the purpose or intent to transfer the firearm to another who the  
7 person knows or reasonably should know is prohibited from possessing a firearm  
8 under state or federal law is guilty of a Class H felony. The penalty shall include a  
9 fine that is not less than \$500.

10 **SECTION 281.** 175.355 of the statutes, as created by 2025 Wisconsin Act ....  
11 (this act), is repealed.

12 **SECTION 282.** 175.60 (7) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 175.60 (7) (d) A fee for a background check that is equal to the fee charged  
14 under s. 175.35 (2i) (a).

15 **SECTION 283.** 175.60 (15) (b) 4. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

16 175.60 (15) (b) 4. b. A fee for a background check that is equal to the fee  
17 charged under s. 175.35 (2i) (a).

18 **SECTION 284.** 938.341 of the statutes is amended to read:

19 **938.341 Delinquency adjudication; restriction on firearm possession.**

20 Whenever a court adjudicates a juvenile delinquent for an act that if committed by  
21 an adult in this state would be a felony or for a violation under s. 175.33 (2), the  
22 court shall inform the juvenile of the requirements and penalties under s. 941.29.

1           **SECTION 285.** 941.29 (1m) (dm), (dn) and (do) of the statutes are created to  
2 read:

3           941.29 **(1m)** (dm) The person has been convicted of a misdemeanor under s.  
4 175.33 (2), unless at least 2 years have passed since the conviction.

5           (dn) The person has been adjudicated delinquent for a violation under s.  
6 175.33 (2), unless at least 2 years have passed since the adjudication.

7           (do) The person has been found not guilty of a misdemeanor under s. 175.33  
8 (2) by reason of mental disease or defect, unless at least 2 years have passed since  
9 the finding.

10          **SECTION 286.** 971.17 (1g) of the statutes is amended to read:

11          971.17 **(1g)** NOTICE OF RESTRICTION ON FIREARM POSSESSION. If the  
12 defendant under sub. (1) is found not guilty of a felony, or of a violation under s.  
13 175.33 (2), by reason of mental disease or defect, the court shall inform the  
14 defendant of the requirements and penalties under s. 941.29.

15          **SECTION 287.** 973.176 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

16          973.176 **(1)** FIREARM POSSESSION. Whenever a court imposes a sentence or  
17 places a defendant on probation regarding a felony conviction or regarding a  
18 conviction for a misdemeanor under s. 175.33 (2), the court shall inform the  
19 defendant of the requirements and penalties applicable to him or her under s.  
20 941.29 (1m) or (4m).

21          **SECTION 9327. Initial applicability; Justice.**

22          (1) TRANSFERS OF FIREARMS. The treatment of ss. 175.33 and 175.35 (1) (at)  
23 (by SECTION 258) and (br) and (2) (intro.), (a), (b), (bm), (c), (cm) (intro.), and (d), the

renumbering of s. 175.35 (2j), and the creation of s. 175.35 (2j) (b) first apply to transfers that occur on the effective date of this subsection.

**SECTION 9427. Effective dates; Justice.**

(1) TRANSFERS OF FIREARMS. The treatment of ss. 175.33, 175.35 (title), (1) (at) (by SECTION 258) and (br), (2) (intro.), (a), (bm), (c), and (cm) (intro.), (2g) (a), (b) 1. and 2., and (c) 4. c. (by SECTION 268), (2k) (ar) 2., (c) 2. a. and b., (g), and (h), (2L), (2t) (a), (b), and (c), and (3) (b) 2., 176.60 (7) (d) and (15) (b) 4. b., 938.341, 941.29 (1m) (dm), (dn), and (do), 971.17 (1g), and 973.176 (1), the repeal of s. 175.355, the renumbering of s. 175.35 (2) (d) and (2j), the renumbering and amendment of s. 175.35 (2i), the amendment of s. 20.455 (2) (gr), and the creation of s. 175.35 (2i) (b) 2. and (2j) (b) and SECTION 9327 (1) of this act take effect on the first day of the 7th month beginning after publication.”.

**80.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

“**SECTION 288.** 165.63 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

165.63 (3) REQUESTS FROM COURTS. In making a determination required under s. 813.124 (7) (a), 813.1285 (7) (a), or 968.20 (1m) (d) 1., a judge or court commissioner shall request information under sub. (2) from the department or from a law enforcement agency or law enforcement officer as provided in sub. (4) (d).

**SECTION 289.** 165.63 (4) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

165.63 (4) (d) Aid the court in making a determination required under s. 813.124 (7) (a), 813.1285 (7) (a), or 968.20 (1m) (d) 1. or aid an entity in making a determination required under s. 968.20 (1m) (d) 2.

**SECTION 290.** 175.35 (1) (at) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           175.35 (1) (at) “Firearms restrictions record search” means a search of  
2   department of justice records to determine whether a person seeking to purchase a  
3   handgun is prohibited from possessing a firearm under s. 941.29 or is included in  
4   the database under s. 165.64 (3). “Firearms restrictions record search” includes a  
5   criminal history record search, a search to determine whether a person is  
6   prohibited from possessing a firearm under s. 51.20 (13) (cv) 1., 2007 stats., a search  
7   in the national instant criminal background check system to determine whether a  
8   person has been ordered not to possess a firearm under s. 51.20 (13) (cv) 1., 51.45  
9   (13) (i) 1., 54.10 (3) (f) 1., or 55.12 (10) (a), a search to determine whether the person  
10   is subject to an injunction under s. 813.12 or 813.122, or a tribal injunction, as  
11   defined in s. 813.12 (1) (e), issued by a court established by any federally recognized  
12   Wisconsin Indian tribe or band, except the Menominee Indian tribe of Wisconsin,  
13   that includes notice to the respondent that he or she is subject to the requirements  
14   and penalties under s. 941.29 and that has been filed with the circuit court under s.  
15   813.128 (3g), a search to determine whether the person is subject to a temporary  
16   restraining order or injunction under s. 813.124, and a search to determine whether  
17   the person is prohibited from possessing a firearm under s. 813.123 (5m) or 813.125  
18   (4m).

19           **SECTION 291.** 175.60 (9g) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

20           175.60 (9g) (a) 2. The department shall conduct a criminal history record  
21   search and shall search its records and conduct a search in the national instant  
22   criminal background check system to determine whether the applicant is  
23   prohibited from possessing a firearm under federal law; whether the applicant is

1 prohibited from possessing a firearm under s. 941.29; whether the applicant is  
2 prohibited from possessing a firearm under s. 51.20 (13) (cv) 1., 2007 stats.;  
3 whether the applicant has been ordered not to possess a firearm under s. 51.20 (13)  
4 (cv) 1., 51.45 (13) (i) 1., 54.10 (3) (f) 1., or 55.12 (10) (a); whether the applicant is  
5 subject to an injunction under s. 813.12 or 813.122, or a tribal injunction, as defined  
6 in s. 813.12 (1) (e), issued by a court established by any federally recognized  
7 Wisconsin Indian tribe or band, except the Menominee Indian tribe of Wisconsin,  
8 that includes notice to the respondent that he or she is subject to the requirements  
9 and penalties under s. 941.29 and that has been filed with the circuit court under s.  
10 813.128 (3g); whether the applicant is subject to a temporary restraining order or  
11 injunction under s. 813.124; and whether the applicant is prohibited from  
12 possessing a firearm under s. 813.123 (5m) or 813.125 (4m); and to determine if the  
13 court has prohibited the applicant from possessing a dangerous weapon under s.  
14 969.02 (3) (c) or 969.03 (1) (c) and if the applicant is prohibited from possessing a  
15 dangerous weapon as a condition of release under s. 969.01.

16 **SECTION 292.** 175.60 (11) (a) 2. f. of the statutes is amended to read:

17 175.60 (11) (a) 2. f. The individual becomes subject to ~~an~~ a temporary  
18 restraining order or injunction described in s. 941.29 (1m) (f) or is ordered not to  
19 possess a firearm under s. 813.123 (5m) or 813.125 (4m).

20 **SECTION 293.** 801.50 (5sb) of the statutes is created to read:

21 801.50 (5**sb**) Venue of an action under s. 813.124 shall be in the county in  
22 which the cause of action arose or where the petitioner or the respondent resides.

23 **SECTION 294.** 801.58 (2m) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           801.58 **(2m)** If, under sub. (2), the judge determines that the request for  
2       substitution was made timely and in proper form, any ex parte order granted by the  
3       original judge remains in effect according to the terms, except that a temporary  
4       restraining order issued under s. 813.12 (3), 813.122 (4), 813.123 (4), 813.124 (2t),  
5       or 813.125 (3) by the original judge is extended until the newly assigned judge holds  
6       a hearing on the issuance of an injunction. The newly assigned judge shall hear any  
7       subsequent motion to modify or vacate any ex parte order granted by the original  
8       judge.

9           **SECTION 295.** 813.06 of the statutes is amended to read:

10          **813.06 Security for damages.** In proceedings under s. 767.225 the court or  
11       judge may, and in all other proceedings except proceedings under ss. 813.12,  
12       813.122, 813.124, 813.125 and 823.113 the court or judge shall, require a bond of  
13       the party seeking an injunction, with sureties, to the effect that he or she will pay to  
14       the party enjoined such damages, not exceeding an amount to be specified, as he or  
15       she may sustain by reason of the injunction if the court finally decides that the  
16       party was not entitled thereto. Copies of such bond, affidavit or other pleading  
17       shall be served upon the party enjoined and the officer serving the same shall,  
18       within 8 days after such service, file his or her return in the office of the clerk of the  
19       court.

20          **SECTION 296.** 813.124 of the statutes is created to read:

21          **813.124 Extreme risk protection temporary restraining orders and**  
22       **injunctions. (1) DEFINITIONS.** In this section:

23           (a) “Family or household member” means any of the following:

1           1. A person related by blood, adoption, or marriage to the respondent.

2           2. A person with whom the respondent has or had a dating relationship, as  
3 defined in s. 813.12 (1) (ag), or with whom the respondent has a child in common.

4           3. A person who resides with, or within the 6 months before filing a petition,  
5 had resided with, the respondent.

6           4. A domestic partner under ch. 770 of the respondent.

7           5. A person who is acting or has acted as the respondent's legal guardian or  
8 who is or was a foster parent or other physical custodian described in s. 48.62 (2) of  
9 the respondent.

10          6. A person for whom the respondent is acting or has acted as a legal guardian  
11 or for whom the respondent is or was the foster parent or other physical custodian  
12 described in s. 48.62 (2).

13          (b) "Firearms dealer" has the meaning given in s. 175.35 (1) (ar).

14          (c) "Law enforcement officer" has the meaning given in s. 165.85 (2) (c).

15          **(2)** COMMENCEMENT OF ACTION AND RESPONSE. No action under this section  
16 may be commenced by complaint and summons. An action under this section may  
17 be commenced only by a petition described under sub. (4) (a).

18          **(2m)** PROCEDURE. Procedure for an action under this section is as follows:

19          (a) If the petitioner requests an extreme risk protection temporary restraining  
20 order, the court shall consider the request as provided under sub. (2t). If the court  
21 issues a temporary restraining order, the court shall set forth the date, which must  
22 be within 14 days of issuing the temporary restraining order, for the hearing on the  
23 injunction and shall forward a copy of the temporary restraining order, the



1 injunction hearing date, and the petition to the appropriate law enforcement agency  
2 with jurisdiction over the respondent's residence. The law enforcement agency  
3 shall immediately, or as soon as practicable, serve it on the respondent. If personal  
4 service cannot be effected upon the respondent, the court may order other  
5 appropriate service.

6 (b) The court shall hold a hearing under sub. (3) on whether to issue an  
7 extreme risk protection injunction, which is the final relief. If there was no  
8 temporary restraining order, the respondent shall be served notice of the petition by  
9 a law enforcement officer and the date for the hearing shall be set upon motion by  
10 either party. If personal service cannot be effected upon the respondent, the court  
11 may order other appropriate service. The service shall include the name of the  
12 respondent and of the petitioner, and, if known, notice of the date, time, and place of  
13 the injunction hearing.

14 (c) When the respondent is served under this subsection, the respondent shall  
15 be provided notice of the requirements and penalties under s. 941.29.

16 **(2t) EXTREME RISK PROTECTION TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER.** (a) A judge  
17 shall issue an extreme risk protection temporary restraining order under this  
18 subsection prohibiting the respondent from possessing a firearm and ordering the  
19 respondent to surrender all firearms in the respondent's possession if all of the  
20 following occur:

21 1. A petitioner files a petition alleging the elements under sub. (4) (a), and  
22 requests a temporary restraining order. The petition requesting a temporary  
23 restraining order shall be heard by the court in an expedited manner. The court

1 shall examine under oath the petitioner and any witness the petitioner may  
2 produce or may rely on an affidavit submitted in support of the petition.

3 2. The judge finds all of the following:

4 a. Substantial likelihood that the petition for an injunction will be successful.

5 b. Good cause to believe that there is an immediate and present danger that  
6 the respondent may injure themselves or another person if the respondent possesses a  
7 firearm and that waiting for the injunction hearing may increase the immediate  
8 and present danger.

9 (b) A temporary restraining order issued under this subsection shall remain  
10 in effect until a hearing is held on issuance of an injunction under sub. (3). Notice  
11 need not be given to the respondent before issuing a temporary restraining order  
12 under this subsection. A temporary restraining order may be entered against only  
13 the respondent named in the petition and may not be renewed or extended.

14 (c) A temporary restraining order issued under this subsection shall inform  
15 the respondent named in the petition of the requirements and penalties under s.  
16 941.29.

17 (d) The temporary restraining order issued under this subsection shall  
18 require one of the following:

19 1. If a law enforcement officer is able to personally serve the respondent with  
20 the order, the officer to require the respondent to immediately surrender all  
21 firearms in the respondent's possession.

22 2. If a law enforcement officer is not able to personally serve the respondent  
23 with the order, the respondent to, within 24 hours of service, surrender all firearms

1 in the respondent's possession to a law enforcement officer or transfer or sell all  
2 firearms in the respondent's possession to a firearms dealer. Within 48 hours of  
3 service, the respondent shall file with the court that issued the order under this  
4 subsection a receipt indicating that the respondent surrendered, transferred, or  
5 sold the firearms. The receipt must include the date on which each firearm was  
6 surrendered, transferred, or sold and the manufacturer, model, and serial number  
7 of each firearm and must be signed by either the law enforcement officer to whom  
8 the firearm was surrendered or the firearms dealer to whom the firearm was  
9 transferred or sold.

10 **(3) EXTREME RISK PROTECTION INJUNCTION.** (a) The court shall hold a  
11 hearing on whether to issue an extreme risk protection injunction, which is the  
12 final relief. At the hearing, a judge may grant an injunction prohibiting the  
13 respondent from possessing a firearm and, if there was no temporary restraining  
14 order under sub. (2t), ordering the respondent to surrender all firearms in the  
15 respondent's possession if all of the following occur:

16 1. The petitioner files a petition alleging the elements set forth under sub. (4)  
17 (a).

18 2. The petitioner serves upon the respondent a copy or summary of the  
19 petition and notice of the time for hearing on the issuance of the injunction, or the  
20 respondent serves upon the petitioner notice of the time for hearing on the issuance  
21 of the injunction.

22 3. The judge finds by clear and convincing evidence that the respondent is

1 substantially likely to injure themselves or another person if the respondent possesses  
2 a firearm.

3 (b) The judge may enter an injunction against only the respondent named in  
4 the petition.

5 (c) 1. Unless a judge vacates the injunction under par. (d), an injunction under  
6 this subsection is effective for a period determined by the judge that is no longer  
7 than one year.

8 2. When an injunction expires, the court shall extend the injunction, upon  
9 petition, for up to one year if the judge finds by clear and convincing evidence that  
10 the respondent is still substantially likely to injure themselves or another person if the  
11 respondent possesses a firearm.

12 (d) A respondent who is subject to an injunction issued under this subsection  
13 may request in writing a judge to vacate the injunction one time during any  
14 injunction period. If a respondent files a request under this paragraph, the  
15 petitioner shall be notified of the request before the judge considers the request.  
16 The judge shall vacate the injunction if the respondent demonstrates by clear and  
17 convincing evidence that the respondent is no longer substantially likely to injure  
18 themselves or another person if the respondent possesses a firearm.

19 (e) An injunction issued under this subsection shall inform the respondent  
20 named in the petition of the requirements and penalties under s. 941.29.

21 (4) PETITION. (a) The petition shall allege facts sufficient to show the  
22 following:

1           1. The name of the petitioner and, unless the petitioner is a law enforcement  
2 officer, how the petitioner is a family or household member of the respondent.

3           2. The name of the respondent.

4           3. That the respondent is substantially likely to injure themselves or another  
5 person if the respondent possesses a firearm.

6           4. If the petitioner knows, the number, types, and locations of any firearms  
7 that the respondent possesses.

8           5. If requesting a temporary restraining order, evidence of an immediate and  
9 present danger that the respondent may injure themselves or another person if the  
10 respondent possesses a firearm and that waiting for the injunction hearing may  
11 increase the immediate and present danger.

12           (b) The clerk of the circuit court shall provide simplified forms to help a  
13 person file a petition.

14           (c) Only the following persons may file a petition under this section:

15           1. A law enforcement officer.

16           2. A family or household member of the respondent.

17           **(5) ENFORCEMENT ASSISTANCE.** (a) 1. If a temporary restraining order is  
18 issued under sub. (2t) or an injunction is issued, extended, or vacated under sub. (3),  
19 the clerk of the circuit court shall notify the department of justice of the action and  
20 shall provide the department of justice with information concerning the period  
21 during which the order or injunction is in effect or the date on which the injunction  
22 is vacated and with information necessary to identify the respondent for purposes

1 of responding to a request under s. 165.63 or for purposes of a firearms restrictions  
2 record search under s. 175.35 (2g) (c) or a background check under s. 175.60 (9g) (a).

3 2. Except as provided in subd. 3., the department of justice may disclose  
4 information that it receives under subd. 1. only to respond to a request under s.  
5 165.63 or as part of a firearms restrictions record search under s. 175.35 (2g) (c) or  
6 a background check under s. 175.60 (9g) (a).

7 3. The department of justice shall disclose any information that it receives  
8 under subd. 1. to a law enforcement agency when the information is needed for law  
9 enforcement purposes.

10 (b) Within one business day after a temporary restraining order is issued  
11 under sub. (2t) or an injunction is issued, extended, or vacated under sub. (3), the  
12 clerk of the circuit court shall send a copy of the temporary restraining order, of the  
13 injunction, or of the order extending or vacating an injunction, to the sheriff or to  
14 any other local law enforcement agency that is the central repository for injunctions  
15 and that has jurisdiction over the petitioner's premises.

16 (c) No later than 24 hours after receiving the information under par. (b), the  
17 sheriff or other appropriate local law enforcement agency under par. (b) shall enter  
18 the information concerning a temporary restraining order issued under sub. (2t) or  
19 concerning an injunction issued, extended, or vacated under sub. (3) into the  
20 transaction information for management of enforcement system. The sheriff or  
21 other appropriate local law enforcement agency shall also make available to other  
22 law enforcement agencies, through a verification system, information on the  
23 existence and status of any order or injunction issued under this section. The

1 information need not be maintained after the order or injunction is no longer in  
2 effect.

3 (d) 1. The court may schedule a hearing to surrender firearms for any reason  
4 relevant to the surrender of firearms.

5 2. If the respondent does not comply with an order issued at a hearing to  
6 surrender firearms, or a law enforcement officer has probable cause to believe that  
7 the respondent possesses a firearm, the law enforcement officer shall request a  
8 search warrant to seize the firearms and may use information contained in the  
9 petition to establish probable cause.

10 (6) PENALTY FOR FALSE SWEARING. Whoever files a petition under this section  
11 knowing the information in the petition to be false is subject to the penalty for false  
12 swearing under s. 946.32 (1).

13 (7) RETURN OF FIREARMS AND FORM. (a) A firearm surrendered under this  
14 section may not be returned to the respondent until the respondent completes a  
15 petition for the return of firearms under par. (c) and a judge or circuit court  
16 commissioner determines all of the following:

17 1. If a temporary restraining order was issued, that the temporary restraining  
18 order has expired and no injunction has been issued.

19 2. If an injunction was issued, that the injunction has been vacated or has  
20 expired and not been extended.

21 3. That the person is not prohibited from possessing a firearm under any state  
22 or federal law or by the order of any federal court or state court, other than an order  
23 from which the judge or circuit court commissioner is competent to grant relief. The

1 judge or commissioner shall use the information provided under s. 165.63 to aid in  
2 making the determination under this subdivision.

3 (b) If a respondent surrenders under this section a firearm that is owned by a  
4 person other than the respondent, the person who owns the firearm may apply for  
5 its return to the circuit court for the county in which the person to whom the  
6 firearm was surrendered is located. The court shall order such notice as it  
7 considers adequate to be given to all persons who have or may have an interest in  
8 the firearm and shall hold a hearing to hear all claims to its true ownership. If the  
9 right to possession is proved to the court's satisfaction, it shall order the firearm  
10 returned. If the court returns a firearm under this paragraph, the court shall  
11 inform the person to whom the firearm is returned of the requirements and  
12 penalties under s. 941.2905.

13 (c) The director of state courts shall develop a petition for the return of  
14 firearms form that is substantially the same as the form under s. 813.1285 (5) (b).

15 (8) NOTICE OF FULL FAITH AND CREDIT. A temporary restraining order issued  
16 under sub. (2t) and an injunction issued under sub. (3) shall include a statement  
17 that the order or injunction may be accorded full faith and credit in every civil or  
18 criminal court of the United States, civil or criminal courts of any other state, and  
19 Indian tribal courts to the extent that such courts may have personal jurisdiction  
20 over nontribal members.

21 **SECTION 297.** 813.126 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 813.126 (1) TIME LIMITS FOR DE NOVO HEARING. If a party seeks to have the  
23 judge conduct a hearing de novo under s. 757.69 (8) of a determination, order, or



1 ruling entered by a court commissioner in an action under s. 813.12, 813.122,  
2 813.123, 813.124, or 813.125, including a denial of a request for a temporary  
3 restraining order, the motion requesting the hearing must be filed with the court  
4 within 30 days after the circuit court commissioner issued the determination, order,  
5 or ruling. The court shall hold the de novo hearing within 30 days after the motion  
6 requesting the hearing is filed with the court unless the court finds good cause for  
7 an extension. Any determination, order, or ruling entered by a court commissioner  
8 in an action under s. 813.12, 813.122, 813.123, 813.124, or 813.125 remains in effect  
9 until the judge in the de novo hearing issues his or her final determination, order, or  
10 ruling.

11 **SECTION 298.** 813.127 of the statutes is amended to read:

12 **813.127 Combined actions; domestic abuse, child abuse, extreme risk**  
13 **protection, and harassment.** A petitioner may combine in one action 2 or more  
14 petitions under one or more of the provisions in ss. 813.12, 813.122, 813.124, and  
15 813.125 if the respondent is the same person in each petition. In any such action,  
16 there is only one fee applicable under s. 814.61 (1) (a). In any such action, the  
17 hearings for different types of temporary restraining orders or injunctions may be  
18 combined.

19 **SECTION 299.** 813.128 (2g) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 813.128 (2g) (b) A foreign protection order or modification of the foreign  
21 protection order that meets the requirements under this section has the same effect  
22 as an order issued under s. 813.12, 813.122, 813.123, 813.124, or 813.125, except

1 that the foreign protection order or modification shall be enforced according to its  
2 own terms.

3 **SECTION 300.** 941.29 (1m) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 941.29 (1m) (f) The person is subject to an injunction issued under s. 813.12  
5 or 813.122, a temporary restraining order or an injunction issued under s. 813.124,  
6 or ~~under~~ a tribal injunction, as defined in s. 813.12 (1) (e), issued by a court  
7 established by any federally recognized Wisconsin Indian tribe or band, except the  
8 Menominee Indian tribe of Wisconsin, that includes notice to the respondent that  
9 he or she is subject to the requirements and penalties under this section and that  
10 has been filed under s. 813.128 (3g).

11 **SECTION 9107. Nonstatutory provisions; Circuit Courts.**

12 (1) EXTREME RISK PROTECTION ORDERS; INTENT STATEMENT. The intent of s.  
13 813.124 is to implement a state crisis intervention court proceeding in the form of  
14 an extreme risk protection order program that is eligible for federal grants under 34  
15 USC 10152 (a) (1) (I) (iv).”.

16 **81.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

17 “**SECTION 301.** 175.35 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 175.35 (2) (d) ~~The~~ If the firearm is a handgun, 48 hours have elapsed from the  
19 time that the firearms dealer has received ~~an approval~~ a confirmation number  
20 regarding the firearms restrictions record search under sub. (2g) (c) from the  
21 department of justice or, if the firearm is not a handgun, the firearms dealer has  
22 received a confirmation number regarding the firearms restrictions record search  
23 under sub. (2g) (c) from the department of justice and, for any firearm, the firearms

1 dealer has not been notified that the person is prohibited under state or federal law  
2 from possessing a firearm or that the department needs an extension under sub.  
3 (2g) (c) 4. c.

4 **SECTION 302.** 175.35 (2g) (c) 4. c. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 175.35 **(2g)** (c) 4. c. If the search indicates that it is unclear whether the  
6 person is prohibited under state or federal law from possessing a firearm and the  
7 department needs more time than provided under sub. (2) (d) to make the  
8 determination, the department shall make every reasonable effort to determine  
9 whether the person is prohibited under state or federal law from possessing a  
10 firearm and notify the firearms dealer of the results as soon as practicable but no  
11 later than 5 working days after the search was requested.

12 **SECTION 9327. Initial applicability; Justice.**

13 (1) WAITING PERIOD FOR HANDGUN PURCHASES. The treatment of s. 175.35  
14 (2g) (c) 4. c. (by SECTION 302) and the amendment of s. 175.35 (2) (d) first apply to a  
15 sale that occurs on the effective date of this subsection.”.

16 **82.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

17 **“SECTION 9206. Fiscal changes; Children and Families.**

18 (1) FAMILY RESOURCE CENTERS. In the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the  
19 appropriation to the department of children and families under s. 20.437 (1) (ab),  
20 the dollar amount for fiscal year 2025-26 is increased by \$4,875,000 to fund child  
21 abuse and neglect prevention grants to family resource centers under s. 48.983. In  
22 the schedule under s. 20.005 (3) for the appropriation to the department of children  
23 and families under s. 20.437 (1) (ab), the dollar amount for fiscal year 2026-27 is

1 increased by \$4,875,000 to fund child abuse and neglect prevention grants to family  
2 resource centers under s. 48.983.”.

3 **83.** At the appropriate places, insert all of the following:

4 “**SECTION 303.** 995.70 of the statutes is created to read:

5 **995.70 Eligibility of certain individuals who are not U.S. citizens to**  
6 **receive professional licenses.** (1) In this section, “professional license” means  
7 a license, registration, certification, or other approval to perform specific work  
8 tasks, whether issued by the state or a local governmental entity.

9 (2) Pursuant to 8 USC 1621 (d), an individual who is not a U.S. citizen is not  
10 ineligible to receive any professional license issued in this state because of the  
11 individual’s citizenship status.

12 (3) Nothing in this section affects any requirement or qualification for an  
13 individual to obtain a professional license that is not related to the citizenship  
14 status of the individual.”.

15 (END)